SE b=

HANHUA EINANCIAL HOLBDING

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*

BEESEROGBELAR

(A joint stock limited liability company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China)
(RAZEA RRFE 7 H I IR 17 B RR 2 E])

Stock Code B {0435 : 3903

ol

Annual Report 2014
* For identification purpose only : g — [}II fﬁ Jg ?ﬁ& %

* EHEE



CONTENTSEH %

11

15

84

108

128

149

153

1565

156

157

158

159

161

163

Corporate Profile

NCILOM

Corporate Information

NEER

Summary of Accounting Data and Financial Indicators

SR BIBME IR E

Financial Highlights
IS E

Chairman’s Statement

BEEREE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE T AT
15 Industry Overview
TEBE
20 Business Overview
E s oSu
52 Financial Review
B TS ER
82 Prospects
AIREE

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
B EELaRERE

Corporate Governance Report

hEERWE

Report of the Board of Directors

ExgWE

Report of the Board of Supervisors
EFEgWRE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B AZ B R

Consolidated Income Statement

A OEFIER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
apftiFaliams

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Ao BRI E

Statement of Financial Position

Bk &

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR R ERZ R

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EfRERER

Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ERAR MY

Annual Report 2014
—E-MEER



Corporate Profile
NG W

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“Hanhua Financial” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries named as the “Group”,
“we”, “our” or “us”) (Stock Code: 3903) is the first inclusive financial
institution in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”)
listed in Hong Kong that has integrated two major businesses of
credit guarantee and SME lending.

Hanhua Financial focused on providing diversified and
comprehensive financial services such as credit guarantee,
small loans, financial factoring, asset management and credit
management to small and medium-sized enterprise(s) (“SMEs”)
in China. We are a privately owned financing guarantee company
with the greatest geographical coverage and the third largest SME
lending service provider in China.

Hanhua Financial is a vice-chairman unit of the China National
Credit Guarantee Association (FBERZHE) and the China
Microfinance Association (FE/NEEERAFIHBE), the two most
influential self-governing associations in our industry. We possess
vastly experienced and proactive management and execution
teams, strong financial operation capabilities, an extensive branch
network, outstanding risk control capabilities, and have also
obtained the highest credit rating of AA+ for the privately owned
corporate capital market within the industry. We have established
trust with various financial institutions across China and maintained
close business relationships with them, allowing us to provide
comprehensive credit and financing services to SMEs accordingly,
thus fulfilling their diversified financing and business needs.

Since our listing, the capital strength of the Group has been further
enhanced, its financing and risk resistance capabilities continued
to grow, its financing channels continued to expand, and overall
competitiveness grew constantly, which allowed us to further grasp
market opportunities and lay a solid foundation for the constant
enhancement in profitability.
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Corporate Information
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Cui Weilan
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Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman and Executive Director)
Ms. Lai Siu Kuen (Joint Company Secretary)

REGISTERED OFFICE

6-9, Building 2, 11 East Honghu Road
Yubei District

Chongaing

PRC

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRLE

BHREEES

REFAELE (EEREMTES) (EE)
RIEERE GFTESR)
FEFFRE GFETES)

HITEES

RERELEE (EEREKNITES) (1)
Meggk &

(175 E - N2015FE3A17HEHE)
REELE ERITES)

B+ GEMITES)

FrEEzT GERITES)

REKFESHE GERITESE)

2B Szt GERITES)

BRBEELE ERITES)

BEDRWE

EsEA
/4844 (FCIS » FCS)

REAX

REFELE (ESRAATES)
ROBLE (BEARWE)

AR ERE

H

BE™M

At

SR ER 1187 21%6-9



PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

36/F, Tower Two

Times Square, 1 Matheson Street
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACES OF BUSINESS IN PRC

1/F, A Building, No. 2 Fortune Tower
No. 15 Caifu Avenue

Chongaing

PRC

and

13/F, East Tower, World Financial Center
No. 1 East Third Ring Middle Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing

PRC

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

China Galaxy International Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Limited

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation (Headquarters)
No. 25 Financial Street

Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC
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Corporate Information
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China Development Bank Corporation (Headquarters)
No. 29 Fuchengmenwai Street

Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (Headquarters)
No. 7088 Shennan Boulevard

Futian District

Shenzhen

Guangdong Province

PRC

China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. (Headquarters)
No. 25 Taipinggiao Ave

Xicheng District

Beijing

PRC

China CITIC Bank Co., Ltd. (Headquarters)

Fuhua Plaza, Building C, No. 8 Chaoyangmen North Street
Dongcheng District

Beijing

PRC

AUDITORS

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISORS TO THE COMPANY (AS TO
HONG KONG AND UNITED STATES LAW)

Jones Day
COMPANY’S WEBSITE
www.hanhua.com
STOCK CODE

3903
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Summary of Accounting Data and Financial Indicators

S BENPBEESRE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) (2 A: AN - UAREEETIIR)
Increase/
decrease %
of the current
reporting period
compared
with the same
2014 2013 period last year 2012 2011
TRESL
20145 20135  LEREERY 2012F 2011E
Operating results mesE
Operating income BERA 2,000.8 1,576.7 26.9% 1,143.3 870.3
- Net guarantee and consulting fee income - ERRAABEFUA 958.3 913.1 5.0% 784.5 452.7
~ Net interest and handling fee income -FISRFEETRA 1,042.5 663.6 57.1% 358.8 4176
Operating expenses 2ELH 1,362.4 1,147.3 18.7% 538.2 416.8
- Provisions for guarantee losses - EREBRRAISEE
EEe 724 149.0 -51.6% 51.7 1239
- Impairment losses - EERERR 431.7 2944 46.6% 130.1 435
- Administrative expenses -EBREEE 858.6 703.9 22.0% 356.4 249.4
Net profit FHE 507.4 356.7 42.2% 517.8 476.2
Profitability indicators BRRNER
Return on average total assets'! T BEERRE 4.9% 5.2% 10.8% 13.1%
Return on average sharsholder equity® TR R ERERE 7.8% 9.0% 22.9% 29.2%
Cost to income ratio AL 42.9% 44.6% 31.2% 28.7%
Scale indicators BEEE
Total assets BELE 11,938.3 8,628.0 38.4% 4,967.9 4,617.2
- Total cash and cash equivalents - gt 2,531.1 940.5 169.1% 254.4 528.5
- Total restricted bank deposits -GFHRESEE 2,124.5 2,293.2 -7.4% 2,207.2 2,233.1
- Total loans and advances to customers - BHERRBT B 6,286.0 4,777.4 31.6% 2,045.6 1,665.3
Total liabilities afEesE 4,361.9 3,169.6 37.6% 2,459.9 2,612.6
Owner’s equity EEES 1,576.4 5,458.4 38.8% 2,508.0 2,004.5
Critical operating indicators of ERERELER
the credit guarantee business BEEE
Reportable segment revenue DEA 1,055.7 964.5 9.5% 807.8 467.2
Total outstanding balance of guarantees BERRE 23,566.5 21,300.2 10.6% 14,686.2 14,2125
Qutstanding balance of financing guarantees ~ BAERHE 22,704.0 20,154.1 12.7% 13,399.1 12,193.7
Net assets of the credit guarantee business ERERERZEE 3,827.1 3,506.3 9.1% 2,849.8 2,514.7
Leverage ratio® BERRAEH 5.9 5.7 3.5% 4.7 48
Provisions for guarantee losses REBETERS 501.3 429.2 16.8% 280.2 228 6
Provision rate® BEx6 2.1% 2.0% 1.9% 6%
Default payments BHER 478.7 258.8 85.0% 198.5 %o
Recovered amounts ElEa: 59.5 24.9 139.0% 59.5 17.0
Default rate® REXO 1.9% 1.6% 1.2% 0.4%
Critical indicators of the SME PN EERERERER
lending business
Reportable segment revenue DEMA 945.1 612.2 54.4% 335.5 403.1
QOutstanding balance of loans and BHEST
advances to customers :ﬁ?%ﬁ 6,286.0 47774 31.6% 2,045.6 1,665.3
Allowance for impairment losses ENREEE 288.9 1975 46.3% 84.0 48.4
Provision rate” Bk 4.6% 4.1% 4.1% 2.9%
Impaired loans BREER 228.3 122.8 63.8 69.5
Impaired loans ratio® REET RS 3.6% 2.6% 3.1% 4.2%
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Summary of Accounting Data and Financial Indicators

S BENMBEESRE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) (378 LA -

Notes:

M

Net profit divided by average balance of total assets as of the
beginning and end of the year.

Net profit divided by average balance of total equity as of the
beginning and end of the year.

Administrative expenses divided by net fee and interest income.

The balance of outstanding balance of financing guarantees divided
by net assets of our credit guarantee business.

Provisions for guarantee losses at year end divided by the balance
of the outstanding guarantees. The provision rate indicates the level
of reserve we set aside for our guarantee portfolio.

Default payments made on default borrower’s behalf divided by
guarantee released.

Allowance for impairment losses divided by the outstanding balance
of loans and advances to customers.

The balance of impaired loans divided by the outstanding balance of
loans and advances to customers.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The financial information set out in this annual report was prepared
on a consolidated basis according to Hong Kong financial reporting
standards (“HKFRSs”). Unless otherwise stated, the financial 5
information of the Group is expressed in RMB million.

Financial Highlights

N e

B HME

AEEREMBMBER TG HEER
REAVBREEANRR KBTS
N REENMBERUAAREBE TS

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2014
20145

2013
20134

% of net
handling fee
and interest

% of net
handling fee
and interest

Amount income Amount income
FFEE FFEE
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 28 RFAEKA 28 RFIEYA
(BRBEFEHEIN - LARBEELITR) % %
Operating results R
Net guarantee and consulting &R KA E FUWA
fee income 958.3 47.9 913.1 57.9
Net interest and handling fee  FIERFEEFUYA
income 1,042.5 52.1 663.6 42 1
Net handling fee and FFEBRFEWRA
interest income 2,000.8 100.0 1,576.7 100.0
Other revenue HAb A 29.5 1.5 44.0 2.8
Provisions for guarantee losses FE|HAZ FE#E S (72.1) (3.6) (149.0) (9.5)
Impairment losses BEREBRKX (431.7) (21.6) (294.4) (18.7)
Administrative expenses EEREEE (858.6) (42.9) (703.9) (44.6)
Other net losses Hh B EFE (3.4) (0.1) (1.2) -
Profit before taxation RIS 664.5 33.3 472.3 30.0
Income tax Fris®i (157.1) (7.9) (115.6) (7.4)
Net profit FERE 507.4 25.4 356.7 22.6

In 2014, our total

net fee and interest income was
RMB2,000.8 million, increasing by 26.9% compared with the total
net fee and interest income of RMB1,576.7 million in 2013, which
was mainly attributable to the substantial increase of net interest
and handling fee income generated from SME lending business by
57.1%. Also, net guarantee and consulting fee income generated

from the guarantee business increased by 5.0%.

20145 - M FFEE RN EWA
WA ANR%2,000.88 8 T 520134
FFEBRAMBRABRE ARY1,576.7
A& K26.9%  TEERA AT/
XEFEBERFEBFRAKNEL K
57 1%PTE o o -

FEREBOERNIE

ABFWAILRSE.0% °
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Financial Highlights
B HEE

In 2014, our net profit was RMB507.4 million, increasing by 42.2%
compared with the net profit of RMB356.7 million in 2013, which
was mainly attributable to the constant expansion of the SME
lending business and guarantee business. Nevertheless, due to
increased downward pressure on macroeconomic conditions, we
continued to adopt conservative accounting estimates. The increase
in provisions for loan assets and default payment receivable assets
offset income growth to a certain extent.

The proportion of net interest and handling fee income to net fee
and interest income grew substantially from 42.1% in 2013 to
52.1% in 2014. This was mainly attributable to new proceeds from
our initial public offering and being gradually utilized, stepping up
efforts to transfer benefit rights of loan assets which expanded
financing channels, as well as utilization of idle assets which
provided more capital for the development of the business, allowing
the SME lending business to grow constantly. At the same time,
we also adopted flexible cash management strategies, leading to
a steady rise of profits from cash assets, which also contributed to
the growth of the net interest and handling fee income. The scale of
our SME lending business grew by 31.6% from RMB4.78 billion as
at 31 December 2013 to RMB6.29 billion as at 31 December 2014.
Also, the average monthly outstanding balance of loan assets grew
by 79.7% from RMB3.16 billion in 2013 to RMB5.68 billion in 2014,
The average return rate of the SME lending business was relatively
stable, which was maintained at approximately 20.0% to 22.0%.

In 2014, during the process of expanding operating network
and scale, we continued to reinforce operating management
and cost control measures, which kept the cost-to-income ratio
(administrative expenses/net fee and interest income) relatively
stable, and was far lower than the growth rate of our net fee and
interest income.

In 2014, our net profit margin (net profit/net fee and interest income)
was 25.4%, which represented an increase of 2.8 percentage points
compared to the net margin of 22.6% in 2013.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (“Directors”) of Hanhua Financial
(the “Board”), | am pleased to present the first annual report
as at 31 December 2014 since the H shares of the Company
were successfully listed (the “Listing”) on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” or “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”) on 19 June 2014 (the “Listing Date”).

The Listing of Hanhua Financial is an important milestone in the
strategic development of the Group. The Group therefore became
the first inclusive finance institution in China listed in Hong Kong
that has integrated two major businesses of credit guarantee and
SME lending business listed in Hong Kong. Domestic and foreign
investment institutions recognize the leading position of Hanhua
Financial in the inclusive finance field, and are confident in the
capabilities of management and business prospects of the Group.

2014 was a critical year for the various reform measures
implemented in China. Faced with the complex economic situation
of lukewarm recovery of the global economy and increasing
uncertainty, the gross domestic product (GDP) of China grew
steadily by 7.4%, demonstrating the positive trends of structural
improvement and quality enhancement of the national economy as
well as improved living standards. Hanhua Financial persisted with
the Company’s principle of “credit operations, asset management,
serving the people, creating value together” and continued to
optimize corporate management, adjust asset structure, enhance
service efficiency and optimize profitability models, actively facing
the challenges presented by the complex global economy, and
achieved balanced development.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYFH

Streams trickle into rivers and oceans; a thousand-mile journey is
travelled by taking small steps. After ten years of persistent effort
establishing our roots in inclusive finance, we have grown from a
small company with only seven employees to a financial holding
group with RMB7.58 billion of net assets, over 2,000 employees
and with credit guarantee and SME lending businesses in 23
provinces and 11 cities. The development of Hanhua Financial
benefitted from over 30 years of rapid economic development under
China’s economic reforms, the liberalization of privately owned
capital in China’s market economy, the full support, assistance,
guidance and aid at various levels of government and regulating
authorities, the long-term strategic investment of shareholders, as
well as a Hanhua team which is full of passion, dreams, and beliefs.

Supported by the two major business platforms of credit guarantee
and SME lending, Hanhua Financial strictly controlled risk, expedited
transformation and upgrades and business innovation, allowing the
continuous growth of the Group and the Company. As at the end of
2014, total assets of the Group reached RMB11.94 billion, income
from main businesses grew by 26.9% compared to last year,
outstanding guarantees balance and loans balance grew by 10.6%
and 31.6% respectively, while net profit realized was RMB5.07
billion, increased by 42.2% compared to last year, achieving the
Group and Company’s target of rapid and steady development.

In 2014, we were faced with the complex situation of various
constantly emerging uncertainty factors, such as slowed economic
development in China, reduced investment growth, excess
capacity in some industries, restrictions of financing bottlenecks in
society. However, we also saw the government actively implement
macroeconomic-control policies and measures which stabilized
growth and adjusted economic structure. As market capital
tightened, the People’s Bank of China (PBOC) further increased
capital supply and provided support for liquidity through monetary
policies such as lowering interest rates and reducing deposit
reserve ratios, and new monetary policy adjusting tools such as
reverse purchases, pledged supplementary lending (PSL) and
standing lending facilities (SLF). It also reduced the financing cost of
the real economy by reducing the capital cost of banks, providing a
favorable monetary environment for the reform of economic systems
and structural transformation and upgrade of industries.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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In 2014, Hanhua Financial actively adapted to new market and
monetary environments, developed new business sectors in an
orderly fashion according to the development strategy of the Group
and also launched business innovations. In 2014, Hanhua Financial
successfully acquired 90% of equity of Chongging Changjiang
Financial Factoring Co., Ltd, further promoting the diversification
inclusive financial products of Hanhua. Hanhua Financial also
stepped up its efforts developing the internet financial services
field. After launching internet financial service platforms such as
“Hanhua Tong” (small credit services platform) and “Miao Miao Jin
Lang” (microfinance services platform), the “Hanhua Yun” platform is
one of the substantial measures taken by Hanhua Financial to bring
innovative development to its internet financial services. “Hanhua
Micro-credit Asset-backed Securities Plan no.1” established on
30 December 2014, which was introduced by Chongqging Hanhua
Micro-credit Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Hanhua Financial with an
issuance size of RMBO0.5 billion, is the first asset-backed securities
product listed and traded in Chinese capital markets, and was
successfully listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange on 10 February
2015.

Through a series of strategic measures, not only has Hanhua
Financial opened up a brand new business sector, promoting
further diversification of financing channels and reducing financing
cost, it has also improved corporate capital structure. Also, it has
realized the Company’s leading position and innovation in inclusive
finance business in terms of liquidising remnant asset, enhancing
allocation efficiency of the financial resources and enhancing the
market operating standards and profitability of the Company.

On the foundations of the two major business platforms of credit
guarantee and SME lending, Hanhua Financial is striving to become
a new financial holding company with comprehensive development
in asset management, credit management, equity investment,
financial factoring and internet finance. We will also provide
diversified financing services and comprehensive financial services
to SMEs and microenterprises, effectively improve resource sharing
and information communications between financial institutions,
bringing a positive effect to the enhancement of the value and
expansion of inclusive financial services, as well as the restructuring
of transaction value chains.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ESRYFH

In the future, Hanhua Financial will continue to operate in the
inclusive financial field, persist with the service principle of
“trust, simplicity and happiness”, focus on serving SMEs and
microenterprises, persist with the “small and diverse” operating
model, as well as a “people-centric” soft management style,
striving for the harmonious integration of the personal values of
shareholders, clients, employees and the values of the Company
and society, as well as providing better financial services for SMEs
and microenterprises to become China’s leading diversified and
integrated inclusive financial group.

By order of the Board

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
Zhang Guoxiang

Chairman of the Board

27 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Disparity in global economic development intensifies

In 2014, the global economy has yet to emerge from the shadows
of the global economic crisis, overall growth was slow and recovery
was weak, while the disparity in global economy became more
apparent. As the U.S. ended its third round of quantitative easing
monetary policies, along with the gradual recovery of the U.S.
economy, unemployment reached an all-time low in seven years,
the U.S. GDP grew steadily by 2.4%, and the U.S. dollar (USD)
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displayed trends of capital inflow. Together with the expected FEBBEMBTERNEE  ETERXRER
impact of the Federal Reserve raising interest rates in 2015, BRERERBE -
exchange rates for the USD displayed a strong upward trend.
FEIBEAEERE(GDP) EERKEXZBEE
Gross domestic product (GDP) growth rate and unemployment trend in the U.S.
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At the same time, the majority of non-U.S. currencies such as the
Euro, Japanese Yen, British Pound, Australian Dollar and Ruble
underwent varying degrees of depreciation, while the price of
the majority of bulk stocks such as crude oil, gold and copper
plummeted. Global economy was expected to tighten, leading to
increased fluctuations of global capital. Economic recovery in the
Eurozone nations has mostly come to a halt, while the Japanese
economy still remains in a slump despite implementing monetary
easing policies. Emerging economies, mainly represented by the
BRICS nations, experienced slowed economic growth, creating
difficulty for capital outflow.
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BrERARERBENEELME (GDP) FXBYE
Annual trend of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in the Eurozone and Japan
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Source: EDATASEA.COM - global economic information inquiry and service platform

The PBOC adopted a wide range of monetary policies
and measures to ensure the stability of the monetary
environment

2014 is the first year when China underwent comprehensive and
thorough reforms. The internationalization of RMB and interest
rate marketization picked up pace, internet finance continued to
gain popularity, along with the implementation of a number of
substantial reforming measures such as privately owned banks
searching for a deposit insurance system suitable for China,
were all new forces which propelled the development of China’s
economy. The PBOC reduced interest rates and deposit reserve
ratios (including dedicated deposits) to reduce market interest rates
and corporate financing costs. At the same time, PBOC utilized
directional adjustment tools such as refinancing, rediscounts,
short-term liquidity operations (SLO), standing lending facilities
(SLF) and directional central bank bills to perform short-term
market operations, maintaining the stability of market liquidity,
which provided an overall stable and partially flexible monetary
environment, allowing China’s economy to achieve stable growth
of 7.4%.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The development of small and microenterprises and the
“three rural issues” have been elevated to the strategic
level of the development of the national economy

In 2014, the central government convened economic working
conferences, making full plans for economic works and clearly
pointed out that financial services are to be reinforced, especially
increasing support for small and microenterprises and “the three
rural issues” to solve the problem of financing being too difficult and
expensive. The national policies cultivate the ability to raise funds
for financing of small and microenterprises on three levels:

1. “Transfer of funds”, reduction of taxes and fees, targeted
reserve requirement ratio cuts can temporarily relieve financial
difficulties of companies;

2. Creating a fair environment for market competition, simplifying
policies and delegating authority, introducing “zero barriers”
for newly registered companies, and establishing a social
credit information archive with full coverage;

3. Utilizing the leverage effect of credit and fiscal capital to
establish a long-standing mechanism to aid small and
microenterprises, encourage and guide companies to be
innovative, establish policy frameworks which provide financial
support for the development of SMEs, as well as tax reforms.

The implementation of various policies indicates that the government
has already elevated the issue of aiding the development of small
and microenterprises to a national strategic level.
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An unprecedented development opportunity for
inclusive finance

On 18 December 2014, Ma Kai, the Vice Premier of the State
Council, convened the “Television and Telephone Conference for
Experience Sharing to Promote the Development of the Financing
Guarantee Industry Across China”. The conference conveyed
an important message from Premier Li Kegiang, which was “the
development of financing guarantee is the crucial measure and
step in solving the problem of financing being too difficult and
expensive for small and microenterprises and the three rural issues”.
The influence of financial guarantee institutions in enhancing social
credit, supporting the real economy, promoting the development
of small and microenterprises, creating more jobs and promoting
socioeconomic development is gaining recognition and attention.
The government’s promotion of the healthy development of the
financial guarantee industry to better serve the development
of the economy and society has presented an unprecedented
development opportunity for the financing guarantee industry.

Although numerous adverse factors such as banks raising
cooperation barriers, reduced credit granted for cooperation
between banks and guarantee companies, as well as deteriorating
macroeconomic conditions exist, and some provinces and cities
have experienced a fall in the guarantees business and industry
abnormalities, more small-to-mid financing guarantee companies
will undergo transformation or go out of business in the next few
years, with the preliminary establishment of a socialized credit
system, constant optimization of a professionalized credit rating
system and the gradual improvement of a socialized risk dispersal
and compensation mechanism, the guarantee industry will undergo
restructuring and integration. Survival of the fittest will be beneficial
to the long term development of strong companies in the industry
with large amounts of capital, large talent pool and optimized risk
control measures.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRLE

EESRORELHRREKE

2014512 H181 - ElKbr B2 IE F5l 4 H
T I2BREREHERITERRLERIIN
BEREEER] o LEETFRBAED
EEMHTR - B [EEREEEREWE/MID
ENMIZR ) EHREENENEETFER
MEARIRET | - MERRBBLRAMEE
B XEERLE RENMIEERER -
BARENMESHELEEREFTEEE
FERAMIREZ R AER - BKEER
BERITERBEER  FUMRBEEL
BERAR  BEERITEAREL M
LRS-

WARRITIRS A EPIE - WRRESE
RERE  UREBEETTSHZ A
AEFE HBoaTmhHAEREFEEBT
[ERITRTBLR] RREFHHEELZH
ROBMEEFREEBEESELSCRE - B
EHEMAEGERANNLEL - BX(E
AFERSENTE B HtetnmEBD
HMEERNE TS  BRTESHEER
BHERERE  BBLIABNRITERER
REA ATBERENAZERERETENES
TERERER -
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In recent years, the PBOC and the China Banking Regulatory
Commission jointly issued a series of guideline documents including
the Guiding Opinions on the Work at Pilot Locations of Small Loan
Companies, Provisional Regulations for the Management of Loan
Companies, and Working Guidelines for the Establishment and
Approval of Loan Companies, regulating the nature, establishment
conditions, capital source, operations and monitoring management
of small loan companies. Local governments across China have
commenced works of small loan pilot locations.

As a privately owned financial “pilot location” regulated by the
government, small loan companies have experienced explosive
growth in the process of relieving capital difficulties of SMEs due to
its precise market positioning and flexible loan application process.
As at the end of 2014, there were 8,791 small loan companies in
China, with loans amounting to RMB942 billion, while new loans in
2014 amounted to RMB122.8 billion.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Credit guarantee business

The following table sets forth the crucial business indicators of the
guarantee business of the Group as of the periods indicated:

FRERRE

TREINNFARBEAEBEREE SR
RS R EIR -

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

2014 2013 Change
20145 20134 g
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %
(BRBEFEHI - LAREEETLIIT) 28 Ea] %
Guarantee and consulting EREZHBRA
fee income 958.3 913.1 5.0
Default rate RE=R 1.9% 1.6%
Default payments JEROINEN 478.7 258.8 85.0
Guarantees released TERBRIER 24,443.8 15,996.3 52.8
Provision rate BE=R 2.1% 2.0%
Provisions for guarantee losses REBE T EES 501.3 429.2 16.8
Total outstanding guarantees balance #¥E{R8%8 23,566.5 21,300.2 10.6
Loss ratio BR=E 1.0% 1.1%
Impairment losses for receivables FEURRE R
for default payments BERBRELX 250.3 173.7 441
Guarantees released TEFBRIER 24,443.8 15,996.3 52.8
Recovery rate =] Uk b Z 12.4% 9.6%
Recovered amount E et 59.5 24.9 139.0
Default payments BARMRK 478.7 258.8 85.0
Leverage ratio BREBMAEE 5.9 5.7
Outstanding balance of financing BB VE(RERER
guarantee 22,704.0 20,154 1 12.7
Net assets of the credit guarantee ERERERTEEE
business 3,827.1 3,506.3 9.1

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRLE



Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2014, the guarantee business of the Group developed
steadily. It also thoroughly promoted structural adjustments of
the guarantee business, fully reinforced post-loan management,
enhanced diagnostic investigation for key industries and areas,
took preemptive measures to mitigate risk, expedited the disposal
of non-performing loans and strived to maintain the quality of
guarantee assets.

As at 31 December 2014, the outstanding balance of the credit
guarantee business of the Group was RMB23.57 billion, increased
by RMB2.27 billion as compared with the same period in 2013,
representing a growth of 10.6%. The growth was mainly attributable
to the substantial growth of the capital market guarantee business
(providing guarantees for corporate issued bonds and funds issued
by fund management companies). At the same time, in 2014,
the guarantee and consulting fee income of our credit guarantee
business was RMB958.3 million, which increased by RMB45.2
million as compared with the same period in 2013, representing a
growth of 5.0%.

In 2014, our guarantee business continued to expand. As downward
pressure on the domestic economy increased and the credit
condition of a proportion of our guarantee customers deteriorated,
our default payments increased. In 2014, we paid RMB478.7 million
on behalf of defaulting customers, which was up by RMB219.9
million compared with the same period in 2013. The default rate of
our credit guarantee business also rose slightly by 0.3 percentage
points from 1.6% in 2013 to 1.9% in 2014. Affected by this, we
continued to adopt conservative accounting estimates, causing
the overall provision rate for guarantee losses of the guarantee
business to rise from 2.01% on 31 December 2013 to 2.12% on
31 December 2014.

In order to effectively manage and lower our risk, we reinforced
and increased the frequency of risk management measures
targetting guarantee customers during the process of business
development before, during and after guarantees, and stepped
up the management of counter guarantees and collateral and the
recollection of default payments. In 2014, the accumulated cash
collected from default customers was RMB59.5 million. Due to
our effective management, the loss ratio of our credit guarantee
business fell from 1.1% in 2013 to 1.0% in 2014.
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Although downward pressure on the domestic economy intensified,
we continued to adopt more prudent risk management strategies.
We also maintained sufficient cash and flexibly managed capital
strategies to meet urgent liquidity payment demands. We believe
after experiencing a difficult phase in the industry, there will be more
room for development for companies with good reputation, strong
capabilities and standardized operations.

The following table sets forth the major fee rates of the various
guarantee businesses of the Company as for the periods indicated:

BEBAZBEETTENZRH MK A
AP PRER E DR R A [ o2 o TR RS ¢ [RIBS
RE/EATNRESMBLZEENE SR
IEEZOREENFR - LFAE
RETEORNAERS  SHEERK B
NEFAKERBOBREHEROER

ZEfA] e

TREINRFIRHE QRS RERERSH
TRWEBRER

For the year ended
31 December
HZ12A31ALLEE

2014 2013
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014% 20134
(REBEEFRAN  UARBEETIITR) % %
Financing guarantees BB LR 4.28 5.25
- Bank financing guarantees — RITRLE R 5.28 5.57
e Bank financing guarantees (not o SRITREE EIR

including fully backed bank financing (T BREBEIERY
guarantees) SRITREEELR) 4.28 4.57
e Fully backed bank financing guarantees o FBEUAMMBITRIE FEIR 20.87 21.58
— Capital market guarantees — BATHER 0.63 0.70
- Non-bank financing guarantees — FERITRBERER 3.02 3.43
Non-financing guarantees FERLE PEIR 0.30 0.51

To better serve SMEs, we lowered the fee rates of the bank financing
guarantee business. In 2014, the fee rate of the bank financing
guarantee business was 4.28%, which was 0.29 percentage points
lower than 4.57% in 2018.

At the same time, we adjusted the business product structure and
channel cooperation structure and made greater effort to expand
the capital market guarantee business. As of 31 December 2014,
the outstanding balance of our capital market guarantee business
was RMB5.97 billion, which grew by 286.2% compared with the
outstanding balance of RMB1.54 billion on 31 December 2013. As
the business faces a lower risk compared to other businesses, our
fee rate was only approximately 0.6%. As the business expanded
rapidly, the overall fee rate of our financing guarantee business was
only 4.28% in 2014.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The following table sets forth the outstanding balance of the various
guarantee businesses of the Company as for the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

TREHRFIR B HRRFRERERH
BESRERBR

At 31 December

R12H31H

2014 2013 Change

20145 20134 b))

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %

(BRSBTS - UARBEETIIR) - Ea ] %

Bank financing guarantees RITREER 14,561.4 15,898.5 (8.4)
Other non - bank financing E M IERITREE ER

guarantees 2,176.2 2,715.9 (19.9)

Capital market guarantees BEATSER 5,966.4 1,544.7 286.2

Financing guarantee subtotal RMEER DT 22,704.0 20,154.1 12.7

Non financing guarantees FERE R 862.5 1,146.1 (24.7)

Total outstanding guarantees ERBREE 23,566.5 21,300.2 10.6

In terms of the development of the guarantee business, the Group
persisted with the principles of compliant operations and “protection
and suppression”, effectively integrating the macroeconomic control
policies of the government to develop the guarantee business in a
prudent, steady and appropriate manner. As at 31 December 2014,
our outstanding guarantee liability was RMB23.57 billion, which
grew by 10.6% compared with the outstanding guarantee liability of
RMB21.3 billion for the same period in 2013. This was mainly due
to the rapid development of the capital market guarantee business.

We mainly provide two types of financing guarantees, namely
bank financing guarantees and non-bank financing guarantees.
We provide guarantee for bank financing (mainly bank loans). We
also provide non-bank financing guarantee for bond issuance and
repurchase transactions, small-to-medium loans and micro loans,
financing of non-bank financing institutions (such as trust loans
and financing leases), and guarantee for capital preservation public
funds.

REBBBEESREE  BREEBNER
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B BENEEERES - BE20145F
128310 ' IEREEHBTEAARK235.7
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Bank and non-bank financing guarantee

The guarantee business product framework continued to be
optimized. The Group continuously optimized the product
framework according to macroeconomic conditions and features of
the financial industry, combined with future business development
requirements, providing more diversified product support for
business sales. The Group also amended and optimized some
existing products according to changes in the market, constantly
enhancing utilization and competitiveness of products. The Group
will also continue with product innovation, which will promote the
continued optimization of the business product framework of the
Group.

In 2014, downward pressure on the domestic economy intensified,
and the credit default risk of some SME customers increased. In
order to effectively manage the risk exposure of the Company, we
proactively adjusted the structure of business products.

At the same time, due to greater downward pressure on the
economy, the subjective desire of financing demands of SME
customers fell. Also, in terms of customer selection, we lowered
fee rates to attract customers of better quality, effectively mitigating
risk. We also adjusted business cooperation channels to reduce
our reliance on a single product or channel. As a result, the overall
outstanding liability of our traditional bank financing guarantee
business and non-bank financing guarantee business fell from
RMB18.61 billion as at 31 December 2013 to RMB16.74 billion as
at 31 December 2014, representing a decline of 10.0%.

Capital market guarantee business
As we establish our brand gradually in the capital market in the

PRC, we started to devote our efforts to developing the capital
market guarantee business. Of which:

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Capital preservation public fund guarantee

In 2013, the Company began providing capital preservation public
fund guarantees. In 2014, the business developed rapidly, providing
guarantees for four capital preservation fund products. As at 31
December 2014, we provided guarantees for six fund products
from four fund management companies, with outstanding guarantee
balance of RMB4.59 billion.

Capital preservation public funds are fund products offered for
public subscription which guarantee the return of principal at the
maturity date and are managed through various capital preservation
investment strategies. Under this new guarantee product, we
typically guarantee the payment of any shortfall between the net
asset value of a particular capital preservation public fund at its
maturity date and its principal value when initially launched. Capital
preservation funds utilize interest or an extremely small proportion
of assets to conduct high risk investments, while the majority of
assets are used for fixed return investments, which means the
value of the fund will never be lower than its guaranteed price no
matter how the market which the fund is invested drops, thereby
achieving capital preservation (i.e. the Constant Proportion Portfolio
Insurance (CPPI) investment strategy). In terms of the entire capital
preservation fund market, there is not a single fund that was unable
to preserve its capital at the maturity date.

Bond guarantee

In 2012, we started to guarantee bonds issued by SMEs in China
and publically offered municipal bonds, whereby we guarantee the
scheduled payments of interest and principal on the bonds in the
event of a default by the issuer. Bond guarantee is a form of “credit
enhancement,” which generally increases the credit rating of the
bonds issued and reduces the interest rate, making them more
appealing to investors.

As at 31 December 2014, we provided guarantees for the bonds
issued by 14 customers, outstanding guarantee balance was
RMB1.38 billion.

The level of credit enhancement we provide to bond offerings
usually depends on our own credit rating.
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BEERWED T

We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from Shanghai Brilliance Credit Rating & Investors Service
Co., Ltd. in September 2014;

and

We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from China Chengxin Securities Rating Company Limited
in September 2014;

and

We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from Pengyuan Credit Rating Co., Ltd. in October 2014;

and

We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from Lianhe Credit Rating Co., Ltd. in December 2014;

and

We received an “AA+” long-term corporate rating with positive
outlook from Dagong Global Credit Rating Co., Ltd. in March 2015;

Non-financing Guarantee

We offer non-financing guarantees in our credit guarantee business
whereby we act as guarantor to promise to pay one party (i.e. the
obligor) a certain amount if a second party, the principal, fails to
meet certain obligations, such as fulfilling the terms of a contract.
To reduce our credit risks, we require business owners or controlling
persons of the principal to post counter-guarantees, which make
them jointly and severally liable together with the principal when
we incur a loss.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

We consider the offering of non-financing guarantees can enhance
the efficiency of capital utilization as such business is not subject to
any net asset leverage ratio requirements in our financing guarantee
business. During the year ended 31 December 2014, we primarily
offered two types of non-financing guarantee: contract bonds and
attachment bonds.

The following table sets forth the distribution of the guarantee
products of our outstanding guarantee business (excluding capital
preservation fund guarantees) as at the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

BMRBRHIEMEEBRAURESERE
BHE REAREHEEBTIRMELRE
BEE & EFEERLEE MRS -
REZ2014F12A318LFE - B2
REMEIEMEER  TRRBERER
2R o

TR R B HMBRRAESERN
BEREBERERD MIFR -

At 31 December

R12H31H

2014 2013

201445 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(RS BEFRAI - UARBEETIITR) k] 1548 8E % 5] 1 AB5E %
Unsecured guarantees EIERER 8,529.9 44.9 10,137.0 49.9
Secured guarantees BEMER 10,449.9 55.1 10,163.2 50.1
— Land and buildings — Tt REF 10,439.9 55.0 8,957.9 441

— Accounts receivable and

equity interest — FEUBR TR S A i 10.0 0.1 1,205.3 6.0
Total &5t 18,979.8 100.0 20,300.2 100.0

We persisted with the operating principle of “Trust, Simplicity,
Happiness” to serve customers with higher efficiency. As there was
greater downward pressure on macroeconomic conditions, the

operations of SMEs were also affected. We increased the collateral

ratio of financing guarantees, which rose from 50.1% as at 31

December 2013 to 55.1% as at 31 December 2014.
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Industry distribution of the guarantee business

The following table sets forth the industry distribution of the

BREBNITRIM

TERHINFAREBMEREHTEOME

guarantee business as for the dates indicated: o
At 31 December
M12A31H
2014 20183
20145 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(RZEFAEIN  MARBBEETIIR) o] 1A 58 % -l 14858 %
Manufacturing and BlENINT 3
processing industry 5,112.5 21.7 6,207.5 291
Construction industry FERE 4,936.3 20.9 4,661.0 21.9
Commercial services EHE 4,917.7 20.9 6,076.9 28.5
Fund guarantees ESER 4,586.7 19.5 1,000.0 4.7
Household goods ra 2,188.1 9.3 1,315.5 6.2
Others Hh 1,825.2 7.7 2,039.3 9.6
Total &% 23,566.5 100.0 21,300.2 100.0

We persisted with the concept of “industry diversion” to avoid
over reliance on a single industry. Also, in order to effectively
diversify risk, our credit guarantee business revolved around the
principle of “keeping in-sync with the livelihood of people and
providing concrete services to SMEs”, providing active support for
the development of SMEs. In 2014, the guarantees business was
mainly concentrated in the manufacturing, construction, commercial
services, fund guarantees and the household goods industries,
which accounted for 21.7%, 20.9%, 20.9%, 19.5%, 9.3% and
7.7% of the guarantee business of the Group respectively. There
was no over reliance on a single industry and the situation remained
relatively stable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Distribution of guarantees according to risk exposure

The following table sets forth the distribution of outstanding
guarantee balances according to risk exposure as for the dates

BEERWED T

ZEREOE D NIERD M

TERHIIN AR B Bz E R D &0 H 7E
RERER DD -

indicated:
At 31 December
MR12831H
2014 2013
20144 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBHEFEEIN - LARBEELIITR) 28 1HAEEE % Ea ] 154858 %
Up to RMB3 million 0EAR¥IEETT 2,236.1 9.5 2,939.4 13.8
Over RMB3 million to ARMIEEILIAL
RMB5 million EARBEEHEET 3,552.1 15.1 4,091.3 19.2
Over RMB5 million to ARMSEETTIA L
RMB10 million EYNEE A TER 4,387.0 18.6 5,913.1 27.8
Over RMB10 million to ARBA0EE LU £
RMB30 million ZEARKI0EET 5,329.9 22.6 6,063.0 28.5
Over RMB30 million ARBI0EETLIAE 8,061.4 34.2 2,293.4 10.7
Total &5t 23,566.5 100.0 21,300.2 100.0

As the Group continued to focus on reinforcing the cooperation
with quality SME customers, it also continued to cooperate with
quality companies such as top 100 companies, industry leading
companies and government institutions. As at 31 December 2014,
outstanding balance for SME customers with a guaranteed amount
below RMB10 million was RMB10.18 billion, accounting for 43.2%
of the outstanding guarantee balance, which fell slightly compared
with 2013. For single projects with amounts exceeding RMB10
million, 44.1% were guarantees provided for bonds and capital
preservation funds.
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the remaining
maturity time of the guarantee business as for the dates indicated:

TRETIR PR B B RE TSR 62 5 6
B iIER

At 31 December

12A31H
2014 2013
20145 20134

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BREBEFEBEI - LARBEELIIT) 28 154858 % TR 15 AEEE %
Due within six months 61E H AR 9,251.7 39.3 9,718.7 45.6
Due over six months up to 618 A A =128 A

12 months 10,925.8 46.3 9,122.0 42.8
Due over 12 months up to 12 A A E= 1818 A

18 months 1,113.2 4.7 573.1 2.7
Due over 18 months 181E A LA E 2,275.8 9.7 1,886.4 8.9
Total &5t 23,566.5 100.0 21,300.2 100.0

We focus on providing short-term guarantees to minimize our risk
exposure and, as a result, a substantial majority of our outstanding
guarantees to customers have a maturity of not more than one year.

Channel establishment

The Group continued to reinforce the establishment of cooperation
channels with various financial institutions and have entered
into Strategic Cooperation Agreements with various banks and
financial service companies. As at 31 December 2014, the Group
has cooperated with 65 banks and was granted RMB40 billion
of credit. The Group has also cooperated with 29 non-bank
financial institutions, and was granted over RMB10 billion credit.
Of which, 18 new institutions were gained in 2014, acquiring up to
RMB?7 billion of credit.
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The following table sets forth the top ten credit granting banks:

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

TR T AIRERTT

Amount of
Item Cooperating bank Credit granting method credit granted
755 S1ERT EEAN REEE
1 China Merchants Bank Total credit RMB5 billion
HBERIT B REAREBS0E
2 China Construction Bank Total credit RMB4 billion
BEERIRTT B REARKAIE
3 Chongging Rural Commercial Bank Independent credit RMB2.5 billion
BERNEERTT B ERE REARK5E
4 Bank of Chengdu Total credit RMB2 billion
FEBERTT BmEEEE REARE20E
5 Bank of Tianjin Total credit RMB2 billion
RIERTT BmEEEE REARE20E
6 Bank of China Independent credit RMB1.7 billion
R EIERTT BEE REARE1TE
7 Bank of Ningxia Independent credit RMB1.5 billion
BEIRTT BUEE REARE15E
8 Bank of Chongging Total credit RMB1.5 billion
BEIRTT BERE REARE15E
9 Postal Savings Bank of China Total credit RMB1.2 billion
BREIRTT BERE REARE12(E
10 China Development Bank Total credit RMB1 billion
BlFI1T BERE REAREB10E

Constantly expanding cooperation channels have allowed for
stable development of the guarantee business, providing favorable
conditions for the growth of the scale of the guarantee business

of the Group.
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Market coverage TmEEE

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has established branch offices HE2014F128318 » AEBE B &K E23(F
for the guarantee business in 23 provinces and cities. BMETERD IHE

(@)

BRI

Heilongjiang

L B ‘

Gansu  shaanxi

)il © ‘
Sichuan T WL 2 X -
O Chongqing Hubei Anhui Shanghai

@)
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W

- Credit guarantee network coverage ;
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Guangdong
® Micro and small loans network coverage s
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth our guarantee amounts by
geographical regions as for the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

TREHINARBE - RIVIRATE S
DHEREE

At 31 December

12A31H

2014 2013

201445 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRE BRI - UARBE&ETIITR) 28 1548 8E % 2R 1 4B EE %
Chongaing HE 8,086.8 34.3 8,489.1 39.9
Sichuan )l 3,436.0 14.6 4,220.0 19.8
Beijing headquarters bR E 5,936.4 25.2 2,340.5 11.0
Liaoning Fa 1,205.3 5.1 1,430.6 6.7
Others Hh 4,902.0 20.8 4,820.0 22.6
Total &5t 23,566.5 100.0 21,300.2 100.0

As the Beijing headquarters launched the debt and capital
preservation funds businesses, its business scale grew more
substantially and accounted for a greater proportion of business. As
at 31 December 2014, the outstanding business balance of Beijing
headquarters was RMB5.94 billion, increased by RMB3.59 billion
or 153.6% compared with the outstanding balance of last year.

Customer base
For the year ended 31 December 2014, we served approximately

5,000 guarantee customers, representing an increase as compared
with approximately 3,700 guarantee customers in 2013.
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MICRO AND SMALL LOANS BUSINESS
Micro and Small loans business products

The micro and small loans business product framework continued
to be optimized. The Group continuously optimized the product
framework according to macroeconomic conditions and features of
the financial industry, combined with future business development
requirements, providing more diversified product support for
business sales.

Depending on our loan size and customer group, we classify our
micro and small loan products into two categories, namely micro
loans and small loans: we principally made loans to microenterprises
and individuals which range from RMB50,000 to RMB500,000; and
we principally made loans to small enterprises which range from
RMBO0.5 million to RMB3.0 million.

We offer various micro and small loan products with different and
flexible terms that suit different customers. Our principal micro and
small loan products include the following:

Chuangfu loan: a type of unsecured micro loan product we offer to
individual entrepreneurs and microenterprises which have a stable
business income but need working capital to expand their business.
Typically, the principal amount of this loan product is between
RMB50,000 and RMB1.0 million with a maturity of between 3 and
12 months.

Zhanye loan: a type of unsecured small loan or credit line product
we offer to small enterprises which have a more established track
record and need working capital to expand their business. Typically,
the principal amount of this loan product is between RMBO0.5 million
and RMB3.0 million with a maturity of between 3 and 12 months.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Fangyi loan: a type of secured small loan product we offer to E2E: REERIBERER  REY
individuals, individual entrepreneurs, microenterprises and small REBRNBEEHEEASEF UG INEZ
enterprises which are able to pledge real property as collateral to BEESWMEA BBIHF - MACER
increase their working capital. Typically, the principal amount of this NRIDE e WEREREAE BN TAR
loan product is between RMB1.0 million and RMB3.0 million with a B1o0EE TRk ARKI.0E8E L BIHA

maturity of between 12 and 36 months. NF12E36fEA -
Gongxin loan: a type of micro loan product we offer to individuals IHE: RWAERER  WMBEMHREA
who have stable salary income but are in need of higher liquidity. EREHFSWAEBRZZLINERBDESHD

Typically, the principal amount of this loan product is between BA - WERERAE—BNTTARE
RMB50,000 and RMB300,000 with a maturity of between 3 and 50,0007t & A K #300,0007T - F B8 B /7
12 months. T3E12MER

At 31 December

R12H31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
Number of licensed loan subsidiaries

FEERFREIHAE 11 8
Network coverage Chongging, Chengdu, Chongging, Chengdu,
Tianjin, Shenyang, Tianjin, Shenyang,
Nanning, Changchun, Nanning, Changchun,
Xi’an, Kunming, Guiyang, Xi'an and Kunming

Nanjing and Harbin
EERMNEESE BE - R# - RE BB BE - KE - RE-
HE -RE AL -EH- &S BME - RE
B BERRREE [iifagSa=2
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The following table sets forth the capital base and outstanding
balances of the micro and small loan business as for the dates

TREFINFRBEH/NMIEREBHER
EBERERERIEN -

indicated:
At 31 December
12831H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013
(REATBAIN UARBEETTIIR) 2014% 20134
Paid-in capital of the micro and small INEEREBHEUWE AR

loan business 3,000.0 2,300.0
Outstanding balance of micro and NMAERREE

small loans 4,114.3 3,354.0
— Combined asset securitization —&HEEREHL 500.0 -
Leverage ratio TER & 1.4 1.5
Revised leverage ratio {EIEER L& 1.2 1.5

We invested in the micro and small loan business with capital raised
in the initial public offering in the Hong Kong market. In 2014, we
successfully applied for operating permits in Guiyang, Nanjing and
Harbin. As at 31 December 2014, the capital base of our micro
and small loan business was RMB3 billion, which grew by RMBO0.7
billion as compared with the capital base of RMB2.3 billion as at
31 December 2013, representing a growth of 30.4%.

On 31 December 2014, we gained capital directly from the capital
market by issuing asset securitization products worth RMBO0.5
billion on the Shanghai Stock Exchange through our micro and
small loan company in Chongging. For the financial statements of
micro and small loan company, as all risks and rewards have been
transferred, the corresponding loan assets have been derecognized.
As the Company and the subsidiary Chongging Micro-credit hold all
subordinated tranche notes, and one subsidiary of the Company —
Hanhua Guarantee provides guarantee for the principal and interest
of the senior tranche notes invested by investors, the Company
in fact controls the projects, and has retained almost the entire
remaining risk and returns relating to the project.

Therefore, the Company has consolidated the project into the
consolidated financial statements and included it in the calculation
of various indicators.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth the average interest and handling
fee rate of the micro and small loan business as for the periods
indicated:

BEERWED T

TR PIRERE/NIEREBHN T
MERFEEX:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2014 2013 Change
20145 20134 p=0)
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %
(BRE BRI - UARBEETIIR) 28 e %
Micro and small loans NEERK
Interest and handling fee income FERFEEWA 738.5 470.9 56.8
Average outstanding balance of
small loans NRE R B8R 3,551.5 2,115.6 67.9
Average interest and handling
fee rate FHMERFEEX 20.8% 22.3%

The interest and handling fee rates which we collect for micro
and small loans depend on various factors, including credit and
category of the borrower, whether the loan is secured, the quality
of the collateral and the maturity date of the loan. In response to
the call from the government to practically alleviate the problem of
financing being too expensive for SMEs, we lowered fee rates of
the micro and small loan business. Therefore, for the year ended 31
December 2014, the average interest and handling fee rate of our
micro and small loan business recorded a slight downward trend.

BPIF N HEFTWERAFE R FEE LR
ARZEAZRZ BEEBRANERARE
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The following table sets forth the distribution of micro and small
loans as for the date indicated:

TREIINPT BB NMIERDMHER :

At 31 December

12H31H
2014 2013
20145 2013%F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total

(BB AAREFETYIR) L 154855 % e 154855 %
Micro and small loans NEEFK 4,114.3 100.0 3,354.0 100.0
Micro loans HAVE K 1,349.0 32.8 1,217.9 36.3
Small loans IINRVERR 2,765.3 67.2 2,136.1 63.7

In 2014, both our micro loans and small loans business recorded
growth trends. The proportions remained relatively stable with no
significant changes.

The following table sets forth the distribution of guarantee methods
of the micro and small loan business as for the dates indicated:

2014%F - FAIOMBLE RN NDEE R E

HERRBY  RELRFHEESRE - X
EERE -

TREIRARARNEEREBRES
A HRER

At 31 December

12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BB BFRAIN - UARBEETLIITR) 2EF 1AEEE % 28 15485 %
Credit loans EREXR 1,051.5 25.6 1,193.7 35.6
Guaranteed loans REER 2,409.9 58.6 1,705.5 50.8
- Guaranteed by intra-group  — & EA R A]HE 1,507.0 36.7 483.9 14.4
guarantors B ERAFER
— Guaranteed by non-related — B IE=7 902.9 21.9 1,221.6 36.4
parties BERAER
Secured loans BEAPEK 652.9 15.8 454.8 13.6
Total &5t 4,114.3 100.0 3,354.0 100.0
Due to robust business policies, the micro and small loans ENRBRENEBIE  \HEREBE

business further optimized product structure, and the proportion
of guaranteed loans further increased to 58.6%, representing an
increase of 7.8% as compared with last year. The absolute balance
grew to RMB2.41 billion.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Structure of the micro and small loans business

The micro and small loans business developed moderately. In
terms of the development of the micro and small loans business,
the Group persisted with the principles of compliant operations
and “protection and suppression”, effectively integrating the
macroeconomic control policies of the government to develop
the micro and small loans business in a prudent, steady and
appropriate manner. As at 31 December 2014, balance of the
micro and small loans business reached RMB4,114.3 million, up
RMB760.3 million from last year, representing a growth of 22.7%.

The following table sets forth the industry distribution of the micro
and small loans business as for the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

PHREREBER

NNREREBEEE - T/ MEEBKER
WLl REBEBRBEESHLE  BRAE
BRRA BEREAERAEAZEER -
FE B BENERERER -HZE
2014F12 4318 - MAE R EF AR ES
ARBA1143BE T  RE—FEMAR

e —

¥760.3BE T HBKE22.7% °

THREY - RARBBNMIEREBITE
DIER

At 31 December

12A31H

2014 2013

20145 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRSBTS - UARBE&ETIITR) 28 1548 8E % -] 1 4B 58 %
Wholesale and retail LTS 1,752.7 42.6 1,805.1 53.8
Construction B 880.2 21.4 462.1 13.8
Manufacturing and processing $L¥ & il T 3 692.3 16.8 494.4 14.7
Household goods RE 20.6 0.5 98.4 2.9
Others A 768.5 18.7 494.0 14.8
Total &t 4,114.3 100.0 3,354.0 100.0

In terms of industry structure of the micro and small loans business,
the Group focused on the principle of catering to the livelihoods of
people and to provide concrete service to SMEs, providing active
support for the development of SMEs. The micro and small loans
business was mainly concentrated on the wholesale and retail,
construction, manufacturing and processing, household goods and
other industries, which account for 42.6%, 21.4%, 16.8%, 0.5%
and 18.7% respectively of the micro and small loans business of
the Group.

ENREREBNITEERB L A5EER
EEGMORE  BOEXE  RBTNH
B BRIPHIFPNEENER -
2014F MRIEREBNITROH IR
MHETE BEX BERNIE &4
REMITE  DREEENHEREBL
42.6% ~ 21.4% ~ 16.8% ~ 0.5%5218.7% °
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The following table sets forth the distribution of the business TEREINAFT BB NEREBO D
exposure of micro and small loans as for the dates indicated: (=P

At 31 December

12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BrBHEFEBEI - LARBEEELIITR) 2EF 154858 % Ea ] 148 58 %
Up to RMB100,000 0EARM108 T 164.8 4.0 218.1 6.5
Over RMB100,000 to ARB10ETLU L
RMBS500,000 EARB50ETT 964.1 23.4 856.8 255
Over RMB500,000 to ARBES0E LI £
RMB1 million EARBIEET 569.7 13.8 560.1 16.7
Over RMB1 million to ARB1EETTIA L
RMB3 million ZAREBIEET 1,082.0 26.3 982.9 29.3
Over RMB3 million ARBIEETLU L 1,333.7 32.5 736.1 22.0
Total &5t 4,114.3 100.0 3,354.0 100.0

The Group devoted its efforts to serving quality SME customers. As REBRIRBRBEEEFR/ N EERTFR - R

at 31 December 2014, the outstanding balance of micro and small 2014F12A31H  AEEEFBRBEEAR
loans of customers with loans under RMB3 million was RMB2,780.6 HI00BATH NHEREFPHREARYK
million, accounting for 67.5% of the outstanding balance. 2,780.6 &L * FRFAIELL67.5% °

In 2014, we stepped up our sales effort for a proportion of quality 20145 » T AP 5 4R 35 H0 ¥ &6 10 8 &

SME customers, and attracted quality customers by conducting NEIERPRITIEANE - BRE A

more thorough due diligence, raising the collateral ratio and MERBES  REELERYLLH - BEK

reducing fee rates. This led to a rise of the proportion of single loans EEXNAARSIBEER  FHEARK

above RMB3 million from 22.0% on 31 December 2013 to 32.5% 3008 LI L BB E G L 1£2013412

on 31 December 2014, representing a growth of 10.5%. F31H#)22.0% 7+ 2014512 31 H &)
32.5% * 15 3ER10.5% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The following table sets forth the distribution of the outstanding
balance of micro and small loans according to geographical region
as for the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

TREINR PR AR EE D0 N HE
RERRE D

At 31 December

12A31H
2014 2013
20145 2013%F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRE BRI - UARBE&ETIITR) 28 148 BE % 2 14858 %
Chongaing 5E 1,428.7 34.7 1,311.0 39.1
Chengdu D 1,270.7 30.9 740.3 221
Shenyang B 345.7 8.4 400.5 11.9
Nanning FE 254.7 6.2 219.2 6.5
Xi’an fiitk=3 245.3 6.0 358.2 10.7
Tianjin RE 234.2 5.7 153.9 4.6
Kunming EBR 100.4 2.4 30.3 0.9
Guiyang &F5 86.0 2.1 - -
Changchun & 90.3 2.2 140.6 4.2
Nanjing B 44.6 1.1 - -
Harbin BERE 13.7 0.3 - -
Total a5t 4,114.3 100.0 3,354.0 100.0

Our micro and small loan business grew rapidly, increasing by 22.7%
from RMB3,354.0 million on 31 December 2013 to RMB4,114.3
million on 31 December 2014, which was mainly attributable to our
increase in capital base.

Customer base

Due to the expansion of the micro and small loans network,
the number of loan customers served during the year ended 31
December 2014 grew constantly. In 2013 and 2014, we served
approximately 13,800 and 15,000 micro and small loan customers.

BMH N HEREBRRER - H2013
F12A318 A R #3,354.05 & Jt © & 41
22.7%Z=2014F12A318 AR #4,114.38
BT FERENKMERERAERX -

ERER

AR ER NI E KA BMFREHE
REPHENEZE2014F12A31HILEE
— E ¥ h1 o 720134 M2014F - H M9
A1 AR 75 4913,8004 }.15,000% NI E R E
}5 o
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Maturity of business

The following table indicates remaining maturity dates of the
outstanding balance of micro and small loans for the dates indicated:

ES EIL

TREIIR PR B BN R KRR ERR R T
HABR

At 31 December

12A31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total

(BRBEFEREIN  UARBEBEETIIR) Ex ] 1548 35 % TEE 1544 58 %
Due within three months 31E AR EIEA 1,458.6 35.4 1,069.9 31.9
Due between three months and

six months 3Z61# A 25 982.3 23.9 972.1 29.0
Due between six months and

one year 618 A =1F5IH 1,542.4 37.5 1,240.0 37.0
Due greater than a year 160 1% 2 HA 131.0 3.2 72.0 2.1
Total &t 4,114.3 100.0 3,354.0 100.0

We focus on providing short-term loans to minimize our risk
exposure and, as a result, substantially all of our loans have a
maturity of within one year.

Entrusted loans

We also provide entrusted loans to fulfill the demands of customers
of receiving short-term financing and relatively large amount loans
(mainly small-to-medium loans between RMB500,000 to RMB30
million) within a short period of time.

Although our entrusted loan business form a part of our SME
lending business, and is categorized as loan distribution of the
SME lending business, which includes capital business such as our
guarantee subsidiaries using its own capital and asset management
companies using its own capital to gain capital by selling the benefit
rights of loans under repurchase agreements, which will then be
reinvested in the entrusted loan business. Also, the entrusted loan
business is one of our liquidity management measures, where
we actively adjust the entrusted loans portfolio to manage its
accessible capital.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

We act as the principal in entrusted loan arrangements and deposit
capital in intermediary banks, which will lend the relevant amounts
to the ultimate borrowers. After receiving the principal and interest
of the loan, the intermediary bank will return the relevant amounts
to us.

The following table sets forth the main operating data of the
entrusted loan business of the Company as for the periods
indicated:

BEERWED T

BAHEREERLEPORTA - &M
APNERTFEAES - BRHENRITEAE
BRREE THREBRA - RIBIERA
ERMER  FNROTBHEHFEDRE
=R

TREINFARBRAARAEZRAERER

BE B EEAR

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

2014 2013 Change

20145 2013% 2

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount Amount %

(BREEFLHIN - MARBEETLIIT) k-] Ea ] %

Entrusted loans ZEEN

Interest and handling fee income MERFEEIA 470.6 256.3 83.6

Average balance of entrusted loans ~ ZiEE R FHI88%E 2,125.9 1,043.4 103.7
Average interest and handling FHFEMFEBX

fee rate 22.1% 24.6%
Outstanding balance KEEHT 2,171.7 1,423.4 52.6

In 2014, the interest and handling fee income generated by our
entrusted loan business was RMB470.6 million, which grew by
83.6% or RMB214.3 million as compared with that of 2013. This
was due to the substantial growth of the monthly average entrusted
loans balance from RMB1,043.4 million in 2013 to RMB2,125.9
million in 2014, representing a growth of 103.7%. The average
interest and handling fee rate of our entrusted loan business was
relatively stable with no substantial change.

As at 31 December 2014, our entrusted loans balance was
RMB2,171.7 million, up by RMB748.3 million compared with
the balance of RMB1,423.4 million as at 31 December 2013,
representing a growth of 52.6%. This was mainly attributable to
our cooperation with other financial institutions to sell the benefit
rights of loans under repurchase agreements through financial
asset exchanges at various locations and other asset management
planning channels to obtain capital and serve more small and
medium customers.

2014F - BMMETEREBEENF
BRFEEBRABARKIT0OEE T
Bo013F R AR #2143 8 T » iR
83.6% ' ERmNELERAFHBER
2013F AR®1,043 48 BT ARERS
2,125.9B & - E18103.7% - MK MZE
AEREBHFAT SR FEEXAMRE
REBEMEE - EBEAEL -

R2014F 128318 MM ETERGE
BARE2AT1.7TE BT 82013F12A4
S1HHBBEARE1, 42348 B THEEARE
748.3E BT ' 11852.6% + FEFENHE
MEHEMSREESE  BRASHOSR
BEXSMEMEEERTEIRE A
BREZKRZRELDBES  UBAZS
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EXEERBRED M

Distribution of the scale of entrusted loans

The following table sets forth the distribution of business exposure

TREHNN AR B HAREBH A D15

for the dates indicated: o
At 31 December
12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBHEFEBEIN - LARBEELIITR) 2 1548 % TR 15 AEBE %
Up to RMB100,000 0E10& 7T 0.2 0.0 - 0.0
Over RMB100,000 to 108 T EES0E T
RMB500,000 1.3 0.1 3.2 0.2
Over RMB500,000 to 508N EE1HEETL
RMB1 million 6.4 0.3 27.4 1.9
Over RMB1 million to 1TAESTUERE
RMB3 million SESTT 54.6 2.5 100.5 7.1
Over RMB3 million SE&ETTUE 2,109.2 97.1 1,292.3 90.8
Total &t 2,171.7 100.0 1,423.4 100.0

The following table sets forth the remaining maturity dates of
entrusted loans for the dates indicated:

TREFIR AR B BE T8 A R 62 5

BB :

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

2014 2013
20145 20134
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total

(BB BRI AAREEFEETYIR) TEF 154855 % e 154855 %
Due within three months 31E A WEIEA 986.8 45.4 459.9 32.3
Due between three months 3ZE=61E A B Hf

and six months 626.1 28.8 680.2 47.8
Due between six months and 618 B &1 4 %I &5

one year 458.8 21.1 183.3 12.9
Due after one year 1F 1% 5| 5 100.0 4.7 100.0 7.0
Total &5t 2,171.7 100.0 1,423.4 100.0

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

We focus on providing short-term entrusted loans to minimize our
risk exposure and, as a result, substantially all of our entrusted
loans have a maturity of less than one year.

Provisions for loan losses

For the SME lending business, we adopted a risk categorization
method for loans according to the Guideline for Loan Credit
Risk Classification promulgated by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission to monitor the risk of the loans and advances portfolio.
Loans and advances are classified into five categories: normal,
special mention, substandard, doubtful and loss according to risk,
of which the last three categories are deemed as impaired loans
and advances. When one or more event has occurred proving the
existence of objective impairment evidence, and that a loss may
be incurred, the loan and advance is classified as impaired loans
and advances. Provisions for impairment losses of impaired loans
and advances will be assessed as part of a portfolio or individually
according to circumstances.

The core definitions of each loan category are as follows:

Normal: The borrower can fulfill the terms of the loan, and there
is insufficient reason to doubt the principal and interest of the loan
cannot be repaid in full on time.

Special mention: Although the borrower is currently able to repay
the principal and interest of the loan, there exist some factors which
may have an adverse effect on the repayment.

Substandard: There is an apparent problem in the repayment
ability of the borrower, and is unable to repay the principal and
interest of the loan in full with its normal income. Some losses may
be incurred even if the guarantee is exercised.

Doubtful: The borrower is unable to repay the principal and interest
of the loan in full. Substantial losses will be incurred even if the
guarantee is exercised.

Loss: After taking all possible measures or all necessary legal
procedures, the interest and principal cannot be recovered or only
an extremely small amount can be recovered.
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We regularly review the quality of individually significant financial
assets. For assets for which an allowance for impairment loss is
provided individually, the amount is determined by assessing the
incurred loss at reporting date on a case-by-case basis. In making
such assessments, the Group considers the value of collateral held

and expected future cash flows from the asset.

The following table sets forth the major asset quality indicators of

the SME lending business for the dates indicated:

BMEEESHEANEREENEEM
HETEHRMN HWEBRARERENE
E G ZMEEERBERBZREFHEERX
BANETERENESRE - £ H8
Bh - mfasetREERMERLR
HIR B IRARI ©

TREIIRXFRBBMARBFRNEERER
EGNETEEEMEER

At 31 December

M12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013
(BRZEFREIN - MARBBEETLIIR) 20144 20134
Impaired loan ratio BEERLLE 3.6% 2.6%
— Micro and small loans — IMEERR 2.6% 2.5%
— Entrusted loans —ZFER 5.5% 2.8%
Outstanding balance of impaired loans FEE SRR 228.3 122.8
— Micro and small loans — MEER 107.9 83.5
— Entrusted loans — ZER 120.4 39.3
Outstanding balance of loans B 6,286.0 4,777.4
- Micro and small loans — MRE R 4,114.3 3,354.0
— Entrusted loans — ZER 2,171.7 1,423.4
Provision coverage rate BEBER 126.5% 160.8%
— Micro and small loans — INMERER 179.0% 166.0%
— Entrusted loans — ZER 79.6% 149.9%
Allowance for impairment losses B EERE 288.9 197.5
- Micro and small loans — /NMEE R 193.1 138.6
— Entrusted loans — ZER 95.8 58.9
Outstanding balance of impaired loans E B R EARER 228.3 122.8
- Micro and small loans — /NMEER 107.9 83.5
— Entrusted loans — ZER 120.4 39.3
Provision rate BE=R 4.6% 4.1%

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As downward pressure on the domestic economy intensified,
outstanding balance of impaired loans grew by RMB105.5 million
from RMB122.8 million as at 31 December 2013 to RMB228.3
million as at 31 December 2014, representing a growth of 85.9%.
Also, our impaired loans ratio grew from 2.6% as at 31 December
2013 to 3.6% as at 31 December 2014. The increase in impaired
loans and the impaired loans ratio was mainly due to increase in
impaired loans of the entrusted loan business. The asset quality of
our micro and small loans remained relatively stable.

In 2014, we continued to adopt conservative accounting estimates,
and combined with the changes in loan quality, we increased the
amount of provisions. Overall provision rate went up from 4.1% as
at 31 December 2013 to 4.6% as at 31 December 2014.

For the impaired entrusted loan, as excess collateral such as real
estate and shops have been received, it is combined with future
disposal methods and fees incurred to individually assess the
possibility and amount of loss it will incur, which will then be used
to calculate the provision. As the property rights of collaterals
were clearly defined and have been registered, the individually
assessed provision for a proportion of the entrusted loan business
was relatively low, which caused the provision coverage rate of the
entrusted loan business to fall from 149.9% as at 31 December
2013 to 79.6% as at 31 December 2014.

Hanhua Yun Asset Information Service

In 2014, the Company went full speed ahead in developing
internet financial services. Internet small loan service platforms
such as “Hanhua Tong” and “Miao Miao Jin Lang” were launched,
enhancing the convenience and effectiveness of customer service.
On 28 December 2014, “Hanhua Yun” (www.hanhuayun.com), an
open-end financial asset information services platform developed
and independently operated by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was officially launched.

BEERWED T
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Hanhua Yun provides open, transparent, safe and highly effective
financial asset information services for financial service institutions
with strong overall competitiveness. The problem of asymmetric
information and unbalanced capabilities exist between financial
institutions. Some institutions, such as small loan companies,
financing guarantee companies and factoring companies, are
in-sync with markets, and excel at gaining loan customers and
identifying credit risk, but fall short due to their smaller scale
and insufficient financing capabilities. Some institutions, such as
internet investment and financing wealth management platforms,
excel at utilizing the internet and mobile internet to develop market
sales and wealth management services and also possess strong
financing capabilities, but commonly lack offline outlets as well as
risk management capability and experience, making it very difficult
to utilize the funds raised on the prerequisite of ensuring credit risk
remains manageable. With the Hanhua Yun platform, institutions
which excel at developing assets can conveniently and continuously
issue various types of risk-assessed financial asset information,
while institutions which excel at raising capital can continuously
and steadily receive risk-assessed financial assets.

The bidding mechanism of Hanhua Yun also helps set a reasonable
price for capital, creating a win-win situation for all parties.
Borrowers can continuously and steadily receive capital at a
reasonable cost from various financing channels through institutions
which excel at asset development. Investors can obtain safer and
better investment opportunities through institutions which excel at
raising capital.

Hanhua Yun leverages on the Company’s brand, a nationwide offline
service network and credit technology and risk frameworks formed
in 10 years dedicated to developing inclusive finance. The platform
conducts professional assessment on the cooperating financial
service institutions and select institutions with competitive strength,
standardized operations and sound management capabilities.
By utilizing professional division of labor and the principle of
complimentary advantages, Hanhua Yun can increase information
sharing and information flow between financial institutions to
effectively lower the borrowing risk and financing cost, and enhance
the efficiency of internet investment and financing, ultimately
benefitting financers and investors and realizing the platform’s goal
of “reconstructing the value chain of inclusive finance transactions”.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hanhua Yun is an important measure adopted by the Company
to make innovative developments for internet finance services,
which aids the Company to extend and expand its offline service
advantages to online scenarios, allowing the Company to upgrade
and transform. There are a large number of credit service institutions
and investment wealth management institutions in China. Hanhua
Yun is aimed at a high growth and large scale blue ocean market.
Hanhua Yun is currently the only asset information platform in China
focused on serving the inclusive finance field. In 2014, the platform
has accumulated a transaction volume of RMB13.5 million within
three days of launching.

Information Technology

In 2014, the Company persisted with the principle of integrating
information technology with business strategies information
technology and formulated the informatization planning of the
Group, optimized the management structure of information
technology, established information technology infrastructure and
important information systems according to the business strategies
of the Company, ensuring the stable operations of information
systems and providing strong support for the control and business
innovation of the Group.

Information Technology Management

An informatization establishment leadership team is set up among
senior management to coordinate and monitor major decisions
and projects, creating a normalized decision making mechanism
for informatization establishment.

Informatization Planning

By focusing on the strategic objectives of the Company and
on the basis of existing informatization plans, a rolling work
plan is implemented. In 2014 to 2015, the focus is placed on
the establishment of platforms such as the group management
information platform, group capital finance, financing guarantee and
small credit business platform and the internet finance business
platform, which supported the strategic implementation of the
Group and reinforced its control and operating efficiency.

BEERWED T

MEZEANRAMERIBHED RS
W—EEZRE  BPHREERAANEKRT
RIGEL MR EEHEMIDERE - 5 BRAA
M EMER -  PEBEHERSNEER
BRENREEMEE  BESHENE
—EEKEE  REREANEBTS - B
EEEERNECS R —REERHGE
BERMNEERFELSFTA - N2014F (£&
BHA) FABAKRREBARKI3LHE
T o

BB

2014F - ARRMEBERFEMBREE
GEBEZERENED  BEAREHH
B BIEREESMRE - TEEMBE
R HEBAMREARRENER
EERMRER  BREEEARZERTEE
7> RINBRAKREER  REXRBKAIFRE
HENZE -

EERER

EEMEEBRILERERES A
BEEARR EZHEEHAMEBRE
A TERERE R E B BOR RS -

FEELRE

EHEARHKEE  ERERES(EREE
e HERBETHERIDRER 201455
015 EHHHEBEEEEFE &
BE2M%  MERRANEEEELT
& DBECRERFREFaER

BAEEEBEHNT  IREEETRES

ER

Annual Report 2014
—B-mEER

49



50

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Establishment of Information Systems

In 2014, the Company focused on promoting business innovation,
risk management and establishment of information systems in
the internet finance field according to the control and business
development of the Group and requirements of customer service.
The business platforms of two major business sectors of financing
guarantee and small loans continued to be optimized, the system
and product framework was upgraded, post-loan management
was reinforced, and major systems such as those for mobile sales
support and customer service management were established.

Also, the research for the small loan asset securitization system was
completed, and support was successfully provided for the issue and
operations of the first phase of ABS products of the Company. We
completed the development and launched “Hanhua Yun” (www.
hanhuayun.com), a financial asset information service platform,
which provided strong support for the expansion of the internet
financial service of the Company. The Peoplesoft software system
was introduced, and phase one of the fundamental establishment
of the Group’s human resource information management system
was completed. Phase one of the workflow center of the Group
was launched, which enhanced the internal working synergies and
internal control standards of the Group.

Establishment of Information Technology Infrastructure

Phase one of the nationwide institution network upgrade of the
Company was completed. A wide range of safety control tools at
network and information levels were introduced, reinforcing the
safety control standards of the nationwide network of the Company.
The new data room at Chongqging headquarters commenced
operation, which enhanced protection for the operations of the data
centers in Beijing and Chongging.

Information Technology Management Capabilities

In 2014, we maintained the safe and stable operations of information
systems. The research and development and operating service
capabilities of information technology were further enhanced. Focus
was placed on integrating business requirements, strengthening
control and management of technological risk, and raising the
internal control standards of information technology.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Basic information of employees

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of employees was
2,076.

According to their line of work: business line 1,191, accounting
for 57%; back office and administrative support 885, accounting
for 43%.

According to academic qualification: undergraduate and above 1,701,
accounting for 82%; college and below 375, accounting for 18%.

Overall management work of human resources

Employees are the most valuable assets of Hanhua Financial. As Hanhua
Financial continues to expand, and its business grows more diversified
and its influence in society and the industry is raised, upgrading the
human resources system of Hanhua has become a pressing issue.

As Hanhua Financial was successfully listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange in 2014, the Company gradually introduced a
series of rules and implementation guidelines in 2014 according to
the development strategies of the Company and human resource
strategies of Hanhua. The talent recruitment and development
framework continued to be optimized. Scientific and reasonable talent
recruitment standards were introduced to ensure talent recruitment has
standardized channels, reasonable structure and enhanced quality.

Meanwhile, the Company increased training and development
of mid-to-senior employees, optimized the management training
framework and courses, creating a benevolent culture and
atmosphere which respects knowledge and talent and attaches
importance to the growth and development of employees.

Also, by integrating the concept of promoting the mobile
internet, the Company launched the development of the human
resources informatization system. The phased implementation of
data electronization, process electronization and management
electronization was carried out. Data electronization was
completed in phase one, which combined mathematical models
with information management models to conduct optimization
and strategic analysis of human resource management, providing
effective support for corporate management and decision making.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7 B 8

Operation analysis of segments PEBREFRDN

The following table sets forth the breakdown of the income of TRETHFIR2014F 5 ZPUL A BRAR -

segments in 2014:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE

2014 2013
20144 2013

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBEFEFEI - LARBEELIIT) Eo ] 154855 % ZEE 154858 %
Credit Guarantee ERER
Guarantee and consulting EREFBRERA

fee income 958.3 47.9 913.1 57.9
Interest and handling FBRFEBWA

fee income 97.4 4.9 51.4 3.3
Income subtotal WA NEE 1,055.7 52.8 964.5 61.2
SME Lending RN EEER
Net interest and handling FMERFEBFIWA

fee income 945.1 47.2 612.2 38.8
Total Faok ) 2,000.8 100.0 1,676.7 100.0

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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The following table sets forth our profit and profit margin by TREFRFPIN2014F 125 225 80 FE
segments in 2014: MAEE

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change (%)
(REATBAIN UARBEETLIIR) 20145 20134 EE) (%)
Segment profit D EAE

Credit guarantee business Z BIERER 365.0 3171 15.1

SME lending business RN EERER 478.6 331.4 44.4
Profit margin of segment D EPFE =

Credit guarantee business ERERER 34.6% 32.9%

SME lending business RN ERRER 50.6% 54.1%

In 2014, our net total handling fee and interest income was R2014F - HMMFFEB LA ERA
RMB2,000.8 million, which increased by RMB424.1 million #RE A ARM2,00088 & T B2013F
compared with the total net fee and interest income of RMB1,576.7 FFEERMNERAREARK1,576.7
million in 2013, representing a growth of 26.9%. This was due BEL BRARKI41B5E T HIR
to the continued growth of our SME lending business and credit 26.9% @ EFHREMOP NEEERE
guarantee business. Of which: S RRREBFEISRAE - HA -

1. In 2014, net interest and handling fee income of our SME 1+ 2014%F » HMINOFPDEERERF

lending business was RMB945.1 million, increased by BRFEBFRARBAREIMSAES
RMB332.9 million from the net interest and handling fee T BR013F M B RFEEFWRAA
income of RMB612.2 million in 2013, representing a growth Ri#e122H 8L IR ARES32.9
of 54.4%. Also, in 2014, segment profit of our SME lending B & E1854.4% : A K- 2014
business was RMB478.6 million, increased by RMB147.2 F BwAPINEREREED BB
million compared with the segment profit of RMB331.4 million BANR®EAT8.6EH &L - B2013F &
in 2013, representing a growth of 44.4%. HFBEAREI1A4EET  BEAR

e —

¥147. 2B 8T © HEI844.4% °
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The substantial growth of the net interest and handling fee
income and segment profit of the SME lending business was
mainly due to our utilization of new capital raised through
initial public offering and capital gained through the transfer of
benefit rights of loan assets, as well as continuous investment
input which caused the SME lending business to expand
continuously. As at 31 December 2014, the capital base which
we invested into the micro and small loan business was RMB3
billion in aggregate, increasing by RMBO.7 billion compared to
the capital base of RMB2.3 billion as at 31 December 2013,
representing a growth of 30.4%. The scale of our SME lending
business grew from RMB4.78 billion as at 31 December 2013
to RMB6.29 billion as at 31 December 2014, representing
a growth of 31.6%. Also, the monthly average outstanding
balance of loans asset grew by 79.7% from RMB3.16 billion
in 2013 to RMB5.68 billion in 2014.

Due to continuous business expansion, especially establishing new
branches, increased number of business outlets, remuneration for
newly recruited personnel, property lease costs, advertising costs
for new institutions and brands, operation and promotion costs all
grew by varying extent, business and administration cost relating
to the SME lending business rose, which caused the segment profit
margin of the SME lending business to fall slightly from 54.1% in
2013 to 50.6% in 2014.

For details of our SME lending business, please refer to the pages
34 to 47 in this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2. In 2014, income from our credit guarantee business was
RMB1,055.7 million, up by RMB91.2 million from the income
of RMB964.5 million in 2013, representing a 9.5% growth.
Also, profit from our credit guarantee business was RMB365.0
million, which increased by RMB47.9 million from the profit in
2013, representing a 15.1% growth.

In 2014, our guarantee business continued to expand. Due
to increased downward pressure on China’s economy, the
credit condition of a proportion of our guarantee customers
deteriorated, causing our default repayments to rise. In 2014,
our aggregate payment made for default customers was
RMB478.7 million, which was an increase of RMB219.9
million compared to the accumulated default payment amount
of RMB258.8 million in 2013. The default rate of our credit
guarantee business grew from 1.6% in 2013 to 1.9% in 2014.

Although adverse changes to external conditions increased
our operating risk, we actively adjusted our operating strategy,
optimized our guarantee portfolio structure, continued to
reinforce the measures and frequency of risk management
measures aimed towards guarantee customers, strengthened
management of guarantors before, during and after granting
guarantees, and stepped up the management of counter
guarantees and collaterals and the collection of default
payments. In 2014, the accumulated cash collected from
default customers was RMB59.5 million.

Due to our sound risk management measures and optimization
of operating strategy portfolios, the profit margin of our credit
guarantee business rose from 32.9% in 2013 to 34.6% in 2014.

For details of our credit guarantee business, please refer to the
pages 20 to 33 in this annual report.

BEERWED T

2 20145 - B EREREBBAR
AR ¥1,055.78 8B 7T ' B2013F ¢
AANRKIBASHEE L HEARE
9O12BE B L #1E9.5% HE &
MERERESEEANFBAARKE
365.08 &7t ' &2013F FHIE R A
K47 98 8T - HEI815.1% °

R2014F  BPMWEREBFERE
® BAREANEEET NTEAM
R FEEBOHEREFPERMKLE
b LBRMHEORESELF -
2014%F B R ABHEF ZFR
EEATAARE487THEETL &
2013F REt KB £58258.8B8 & T
BRARM21998& T : HMERE
REBHREERBI2013F/1.6% L
FZE2014FK91.9% ©

BEINBIRFHO R Z (LN T A
REZRER  BERMEBFHABLLER
B BERAGER  FEMAEST
HEREFPHWEREREHEMIAE
RRAT ~ R - RIEZBEIREHER
AMEER - WhHERERY - 8
Y E IR AME LN A B T E:
20145 - M RFHENT PR B
REARB958ETT -

AR BRI R TR RS S IR 5 A4S & R
HEENL  BMEREREBHAERY
2013%F H932.9% _E A E2014FH34.6% °

EARMNERERELESEE  BF2HA
FIRFE20EE33H °

Annual Report 2014
—B-mEER

95



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

SELECTED ITEMS FROM THE CONSOLIDATED

INCOME STATEMENT

Guarantee and consulting fee income

The following table sets forth our guarantee and consulting fee

income by products for 2014:

ERSHAIERER

BREFABRA

TREFIHFIN2014F IR EmE D OER
NeEABRA

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(REATHEIN UARBEETIIR) 20145 20134 EE) (%)
Guarantee and consulting REUTEENER

fee income from REBHBWA
Bank financing guarantee RITREER 799.7 842.5 (5.1)
Capital market guarantee business &AM i5ERER 20.5 6.6 210.6
Other financing guarantee E AR 137.5 58.9 133.4
Financing guarantee AMEER 957.7 908.0 55
Non-financing guarantee FEFE R 2.3 6.3 (63.5)
Guarantee and consulting ERRZABERA

fee income 960.0 914.3 5.0
Less: Re-guarantee expenses B BERER (1.7) (1.2) 41.7
Net guarantee and consulting EREERAEFEA

fee income 958.3 913.1 5.0
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In 2014, our net guarantee and consulting fee income was
RMB958.3 million, which increased by RMB45.2 million as
compared with the net guarantee and consulting fee income of
RMB913.1 million in 2013, representing a growth of 5.0%, of which:

1. In 2014, the guarantee and consulting fee income generated
from our bank financing guarantee business was RMB799.7
million, which was RMB42.8 million lower than 2013,
representing a decline of 5.1%. This was mainly attributable
to the proactive adjustment of operating strategies and
cooperating financing institutions by us to reduce our reliance
on traditional financial institutions, which causing business to
fall;

2. In 2014, the guarantee and consulting fee income generated
from our capital market guarantee business was RMB20.5
million, up by RMB13.9 million compared with 2013,
representing a 210.6% growth. This was mainly attributable
to the utilization of our growing brand reputation to expand
our guarantee business, such as guarantees for capital market
bond issuances, guarantees for capital preservation funds and
repurchase agreement transactions;

3. In 2014, the income generated from our other financing
guarantee businesses was RMB137.5 million, up by RMB78.6
million compared with 2013, representing a 133.4% growth.
This was mainly attributable to our adjustment of operating
strategies, active strengthening of cooperation with new
financial institutions such as micro and small loan companies
to provide guarantee services to a wider range of customers.
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Net interest and handling fee income FERFEEFKRA

The following table sets forth the details of the interest and handling TREYHMR2014FIREMD BN E
fee income by products in 2014: RFEEBEWARA

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31ALEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(RZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 201445 20134 EH)(%)
Interest and handling fee REATIZENFE

income from SES§-L'ON
Loans and advances to customers ~ ERER MR FIE 1,209.1 727.2 66.3

- Micro and small loans —/MEER 738.5 470.9 56.8

- Entrusted loans —EFER 470.6 256.3 83.6
Cash at banks RITFR 36.8 22.3 65.0
Restricted bank deposits FHERRES 38.6 31.9 21.0
Total interest and handling MERFEBEWALLE

fee income 1,284.5 781.4 64.4
Interest and commission REATIZENFE

expenses from RFEEXH
Borrowings from banks and R1TRIERITEIE R

non-bank institutions (65.2) (58.9) 10.7
Financial assets sold under ELOECRERE

repurchase agreements (157.5) (28.2) 458.5
Commission paid to agents FEERA2IN (19.3) (30.7) (37.1)
Total interest and commission FERFEEL HAE

fee expenses (242.0) (117.8) 105.4
Net interest and handling FMERFEEEFRA

fee income 1,042.5 663.6 571
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In 2014, our net interest and handling fee income was RMB1,042.5
million, up by RMB378.9 million from the net interest and handling
fee income of RMB663.6 million of 2013, representing a growth
of 57.1%. The growth was mainly attributable to the substantial
increase of interest and handling fee income of micro and small
loans and entrusted loans. Also, interest and commission expenses
in 2014 grew by 105.4% compared with 2013, which partially offset
the growth in interest and handling fee income. Of which:

1. In 2014, interest and handling fee income of our micro and
small loan business was RMB738.5 million, up by RMB267.6
million from 2013, representing a growth of 56.8%. This was
due to the monthly average outstanding balance of micro
and small loans growing by 67.9% from RMB2,115.6 million
in 2013 to RMB3,551.5 million in 2014, which was mainly
attributable to our utilization of 70% of the capital raised in
initial public offering to invest in the micro and small loan
business, causing the capital base as at 31 December 2014 to
increase to RMB3.0 billion, which is RMBO.7 billion more than
the capital base of RMB2.3 billion as at 31 December 2013,
representing a growth of 30.4%. Also, we continued to sell
the benefit rights of micro and small loans through the asset
exchanges centre in the region where the micro and small loan
originates to raise capital at a lower cost, allowing us to serve
new customers once more. The average return of micro and
small loans remained relatively stable;

2. In 2014, interest and handling fee income of our entrusted
loan business was RMB470.6 million, up by RMB214.3 million
compared with 2013, representing a growth of 83.6%. This
was due to the monthly average outstanding balance of
entrusted loans growing by 103.7% from RMB1,043.4 million
in 2013 to RMB2,125.9 million in 2014, which was mainly
attributable to our cooperation with other institutions and
continuous sale of the benefit rights of loans to raise capital
at a lower cost, allowing us to serve new customers once
more. The average return of entrusted loans remained relatively
stable;
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3. In 2014, interest income relating to our cash in banks and
restricted bank deposits was RMB75.4 million, which increased
by RMB21.2 million as compared with 2013, representing
a growth of 39.1%. This was mainly attributable to our
adoption of more flexible cash management strategies and
investment in fixed deposit and guaranteed principal return
wealth management products with relatively high returns on
the prerequisite of maintaining sufficient liquidity;

4. In 2014, our interest and commission expense was RMB242.0
million, which increased by RMB124.2 million as compared
with 2013, representing a growth of 105.4%. This was mainly
attributable to our cooperation with other financial institutions
to start selling benefit rights of loans to raise capital and
expand financing channels, as well as using idle assets to
receive more capital to develop the loan business, which
increased interest and commission expenses.

Other revenue

The following table sets forth the details of our income from other
businesses in 2014:

3 FR2014F - EMBORITEFEREFD
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TR B FAPIR20145F #) H 75 A BF
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For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(REATHEIN UARBEETLIIR) 20145 20134 EE) (%)
Government subsidies T4 Bh 28.9 42.7 (32.3)
Others HAith 0.6 1.3 (53.8)
Total a5t 29.5 44.0 (33.0)

In 2014, income from other businesses was RMB29.5 million, which
fell by RMB14.5 million as compared with 2013 and was mainly
attributable to the receiving of less subsidies from government
institutions at various levels.
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Impairment losses

The following table sets forth the details of impairment losses in
2014:

BEERWED T

BEERERX

TREHIBHAIN2014F 8 & EREE KA
A

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(BRZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20144 20134 EH)(%)
Impairment losses for receivables ~ EWREFKHEE

for default payments ERIERISES 250.3 173.7 44.1
Impairment losses for BHERRBERE

loans and advances to customers  BEREE %k 181.4 120.7 50.3
Total a% 431.7 294.4 46.6

In 2014, our impairment losses were RMB431.7 million, which
increased by RMB137.3 million compared to the impairment losses
of RMB294.4 million in 2013, representing a growth of 46.6%, of
which:

1. Impairment losses for receivables for default payments grew
from RMB173.7 million in 2013 to RMB250.3 million in 2014,
which was due to the increase in default payment amounts
of the guarantee business in 2014, leading us to provide
provisions. In 2014, default payments made on behalf of
defaulting guarantee customers to cooperating financial
institutions were approximately RMB478.7 million, which
increased by RMB219.9 million compared to RMB258.8 million
in 2013, representing a 85.0% growth;

R2014F - BRFIMEEREBEBIAARE
431.7E &I R2013F B ERMEEBKRA
R¥E2044E5 8T MMARKI373EE
gL HIE46.6% ¢ HAp

1 FHEERKREFOEERBEBIK
2013F M ARBA7T37TEE L NE
2014F M AR #2503 8B IL £ 2
HER2014FEREBRERSEIL
N BP9 L BT IR B A AT B 2014
F RMURERBEFENMAEIES
B R T OHIBARK478.7
BB BR013FE X NRBEARE
258.8E &L EMARK21998 8
JT 0 3E1E85.0% :
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Impairment losses relating to micro and small loans and
entrusted loans grew from RMB120.7 million in 2013 to
RMB181.4 million in 2014, which was mainly attributable
to the scale of the two loan businesses growing by 31.6%
from RMB4.78 billion in 2013 to RMB6.29 billion at 31
December 2014, which caused us to increase provisions
for new loans according to portfolio standards. Also, as the
domestic economy faced greater downward pressure, the
default rate of our loans business rose slightly. Affected by
this, we adopted prudent accounting estimates, which caused
overall impairment provisions of the loan business to grow from
4.13% as at 31 December 2013 to 4.60% as at 31 December
2014. The increase in the overall provision rate caused the
impairment losses in 2014 to increase.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED T

BENHERNEZXERNEERE
BRIE2013F M ARKA20.7E ELIE
IZE2014F M ARBKI814B8E T £
ZEAAMIBEREFREN2013F
M)A RBA7 8IEILIB N ZE2014F12 A
1AM ARKE2.91E7T  1E1831.6% °
BMIRRAES B EST HHIIEERGTR
EFESPTE B RE - ARERLE
BT NTEAMA » RO ERE
RENERBNEEF - JFE - B
MERATEEN S G EHEEXK
BRI EERESEH20135F128
318 #94.13% k£ 7+ £2014F12 8311
H14.60% @ BEEBEHESEH EAFS
2014 & FEHRARVEIB R B FTIg N ©

For details regarding the asset quality of the guarantee business
and the loan business, please refer to the section headed “Business
Overview” in this annual report.

Administrative expenses

The following table sets forth our administrative expenses in 2014:

BREREBNEREBNEERE &

SREARFR [ R & -

ERREES

TREFRFIR014FNEBELESIEE ¢

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2014 20183
201445 2013%F
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRZBEFAIN MARBBEETTIIR) 28 1k % 2B 1L %
Staff costs 8 T 405.4 47.2 375.5 53.3
- Non-cash share-based — AR EED
payment P tn sz A+F 120.9 14.1 144.2 20.5
Business taxes and BB S KM
surcharges 97.0 11.3 75.9 10.8
Operating lease charges in FERELHEER
respect of buildings 75.8 8.8 50.5 7.2
Depreciation and amortization 72 M 2§45 %
expenses 41.8 4.9 21.7 3.1
Others Hh 238.6 27.8 180.3 25.6
Total a&t 858.6 100 703.9 100

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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In 2014, administrative expenses was RMB858.6 million, which
grew by RMB154.7 million compared with RMB703.9 million in
2013, representing a 22.0% growth. This was mainly attributable
to business expansion which led to an increase in staff costs
and related operating expenses. In 2014, we continued to adopt
management measures which optimized cost, and strictly controlled
costs and expenses, which caused it to grow at a much slower
rate than the business expansion rate. Also, the project cost to
administrative cost ratio remained relatively stable and did not
experience large degrees of fluctuation. Of which:

1. In 2014, total staff cost was RMB405.4 million, up by RMB29.9
million compared with 2013, representing a growth of 8.0%.
This was mainly attributable to the number of staff members
increasing from 1,662 on 31 December 2013 to 2,076 on 31
December 2014, which caused salaries, bonuses, subsidies,
other benefits and related social insurance fees to increase;

2. In 2014, business taxes and surcharges was RMB97.0 million,
up by RMB21.1 million from 2013, representing a growth rate
of 27.8%, this was consistent with the increase in taxable
income of the credit guarantee and SME lending businesses;

3. In 2014, total operating lease charges in respect of buildings
and depreciation and amortization expenses was RMB117.6
million, increased by RMB45.4 million or 62.9% compared
with 2013. This was closely related to the increase of business
outlets and new institutions due to business expansion;

4. In 2014, total administrative expense of other businesses
was RMB238.6 million, up by RMB58.3 million compared
with 2013, representing a growth of 32.3%, which was
mainly attributable to the increase in travel, selling, IT system
development and operating maintenance expenses due to the
rapid expansion of business, as well as professional service
expenses growing by RMB17.0 million related to the initial
public offering in 2014.

BEERWED T

R20145F - ZPIWEBREBERAAR
#858.6 8 & JL ' #2013F A K #703.9
BEL ENMARKIS4TEE T &
22.0% FTEREBHREBEBEREBSEINX
AR EZ BRIZM - R2014F - F
MFERDNEANECERER - RIESE
BRHAY  FREERRERENESRE
BRAE o N SEBRERGEBR
ERBBEMLARFAEBERE I
EBIZURE) - HAp

1 RR20145F BB ITHMAsER
AR 40548 BT © 82013512 0
ARM20908 BT - £ 188.0% ' E
ZHMNE T AZEB2013F12H31H
#91,662% # N £2014F12 431 H &Y
2,076% @ RIGHELBABRMHITE - 2
® RN - E AR N DA K B b AR B A
e RBEEREN

2 R2014% - BT EET & RMMNA
AREEI7.0EE T - R2013F LI A
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EREREBMP NS EEREBKE
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REREMEITHEEN: UREHA
2014 F HRAAEREENEERE
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BEERWED T

Selected items for the consolidated cash flow statement

The following table sets forth the summary extracted from our

consolidated cash flow statement in 2014:

HRESHEERERER

TREHNHFIN2014FNEHRATRER
MREME

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(RZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20144 20134 HE) (%)
Net cash used in operating activities A2 &8 AT MR ©F5E (626.3) (2,192.8) (71.4)
Net cash used in investing activities & & /EENFTRMIR G IF5E (276.6) (134.8) 105.2
Net cash generated from EFFHMEEN

financing activities He 8 2,500.9 3,013.7 (17.0)
Net increase in cash and BB INFE

cash equivalents 1,598.0 686.1 132.9
Cash and cash equivalents FYEEESHEE

at the beginning of the year 940.5 254.4 269.7
Change in exchange rate R EH) (7.4) - -
Cash and cash equivalents FREKESHT

at the end of the year 2,531.1 940.5 169.1

Net cash used in operating activities

In 2014, net cash used in operating activities was RMB626.3

million, of which:

1.  Guarantee and consulting fee received from the guarantee

business was RMB936.6 million;

2. Interest and handling fee income received from the SME

lending business was RMB1,127.6 million;

3. Loans and advances to customers granted by the SME lending

business was RMB1,602.9 million;

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

4. Staff costs and related insurance and benefit expenses paid
were RMB285.2 million;

5. Income tax, business tax and surcharges paid were RMB326.7
million.

Net cash used in investing activities

In 2014, net cash used in investing activities was RMB276.6 million,
of which:

1. Used in the purchase of fixed assets and intangible assets of
RMB129.2 million in total;

2. We adopted flexible cash management strategies and
invested surplus capital in wealth management products
with guaranteed return on principal and yield that have a
relatively high yield rate, which resulted in a net cash outflow
of RMB148.1 million;

Net cash generated from financing activities

In 2014, net cash raised in financing activities was RMB2,500.9
million, of which:

1. Net cash raised in the initial public offering in 2014 was
RMB1,438.6 million;

2. Net increase in capital raised by selling benefit rights of
assets under repurchase agreements with banking financial
institutions and other financial institutions was RMB1,233.4
million;

BEERWED T

4 BARBEIXMNMFHE MAEBRE -

B ARE285.2BE T

5 BMXMMEEMENR 2R LS
BB AREI26.7TEET °

REFEHFANBEEFE

R2014%F - RPANKREZSHAANRES
FREAARK2T66BETT  TEBRE

1 ARNBEETEE BYEEFHER
B EERARKI12092B8TT

2 BMERBBEZEFNRNSE LR -
BRBESRERREXRAEES -
IRB RS MUL 50 IR B & T P A 80S%
RentEAARKI14818E T

BETHELENRSFE

R20145F - HMREEEZHFMEENIR
S HREAARB250008EL TES
&

1 R204FRBHRXAAERAAES
BEa FRLT AR 4386HB T

2 MRRTHESEME  ARMEEME
AERMEEREEEREEEZEL D
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Selected items of the consolidated statement of

financial position

The following table sets forth a summary of our assets and liabilities

as of the dates indicated:

BB S Ht I BRI RIEE

TREINBMRFARAMNEERAER

=

At 31 December

M12A31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(REATHEIN UARBEETTIIR) 20145 20134 EE) (%)
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents EEES 2,531.1 940.5 169.1
Restricted bank deposits FHERRES 2,124.5 2,293.2 (7.4)
Trade and other receivables JE LS % E b E Uk FR 08 404.3 241.9 67.1
Loans and advances to customers  EBRER LB 5,997.1 4,579.9 30.9
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESRERE 157.8 9.6 1,543.8
Fixed assets EE&E 386.7 300.2 28.8
Intangible assets mEEE 4.8 4.5 4.4
Repossessed assets BEEE 16.2 12.6 28.6
Deferred tax assets BEFSHEE 315.8 245.6 28.6
Total assets HEE 11,938.3 8,628.0 38.4
Liabilities aE
Interest-bearing borrowings sHEEm 815.6 966.7 (15.6)
Financial assets sold under BEHEECREE

repurchase agreement 2,182.4 798.0 173.5
Liabilities from guarantees EREAE 912.2 853.0 6.9
Customer pledged deposits GFARFES 27.1 78.2 (65.3)
Accruals and other payables JEET K E b FE S 3R 276.4 332.8 (16.9)
Current tax liabilities EHMREHAR 148.2 140.9 5.2
Total liabilities FG=R 4,361.9 3,169.6 37.6
Net assets BEEFE 7,576.4 5,458.4 38.8

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Cash and cash equivalents

The following table sets forth our cash and cash equivalents as of
the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

TREJBPRARERNERES ¢

At 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(REAFBEIN UARBEETIIR) 20144 20134 HE) (%)
Cash in hand EFRE 0.1 0.3 (66.7)
Cash in banks RITHER 2,531.0 940.2 169.2
Total a% 2,531.1 940.5 169.1

Cash and cash equivalents include our cash in hand and cash
in banks. As at 31 December 2014, the balance of our cash and
cash equivalents was RMB2,531.1 million, up by RMB1,590.6
million compared with the outstanding balance of RMB940.5
million on 31 December 2013, representing a growth of 169.1%.
In 2014, we raised capital through the global public offering,
cooperated with other financial institutions to sell the benefit rights
of loan assets under repurchase agreements, and issued asset
securitization products on stock exchanges. We also adopted
flexible cash management strategies to fulfill the requirements of
liquidity management. Both of these factors caused the balance of
cash and cash equivalents to rise.

ENESTFEZRERMNEFR € RIRIT
T o P2014F12A31H » HFIHEEKE
THEAARE25311E BT © £20134F
12A31A BB ARKEM0SEE L B E
AR ®1,500.68 &7t #18169.1% ° B
2014%F » HRFPBGBERBEENMENR - ©
HhemBESIFRREREERZEE
HEEEXLR EISFRSABETEESR
HMtERESEES  AIRRMHENELSS
BN EERE U ADUEEES
o —EARTEFEELESMRE LA -
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Restricted bank deposits

The following table sets forth the details of restricted bank deposits
as at the dates indicated:

FHERRES

TR FAFIRFAR BT L ERERE
THRAAR :

At 31 December

R12H31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(RZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20144 20134 EH)(%)
Security deposits REBE® 1,429.9 1,338.2 6.9
Cash deposits or certificates of BEEANIRITRE ER

deposit for fully secured bank HIIR & 17 AT R

financing guarantees 694.6 955.0 (27.3)
Total a5 2,124.5 2,293.2 (7.4)

We strived to maintain positive relationships with cooperating
financial institutions, and make security deposits according to a
certain ratio of the actual guarantee amount (between 0 to 20%) as
the basis of carrying out our obligation. Although the bank financing
guarantee balance of RMB14.56 billion as at 31 December 2014
fell slightly by 8.4% compared to the balance of RMB15.89 billion
as at 31 December 2013, our restricted bank deposits grew slightly
by 6.9%, which was mainly attributable to increased downward
pressure on the domestic economy in 2014; and cooperating
financial institutions required us to increase security deposits
according to their own risk management requirements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Loans and advances to customers

The following table sets forth our loans and advances to customer
by product as of the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

BRERKBR

TR PR B BIRE @S 5 # 3
MER KRB

At 31 December

R12H31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(BRZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20144 20134 EH)(%)
Micro and small loans INIE R 4,114.3 3,354.0 22.7
Entrusted loans ZEEX 2,171.7 1,423.4 52.6
Gross loans and advances BHRERRBRMAEE

to customers 6,286.0 4,777.4 31.6
Allowances for impairment losses B FUR (E £ (288.9) (197.5) 46.3
Net loans and advances BHRERRBIFEE

to customers 5,997.1 4,579.9 30.9

Our loans and advances to customers reflect the total balance of
our loan portfolio (including micro and small loans and entrusted
loans). As at 31 December 2014, loans and advances granted
to customers was RMB6,286.0 million, which increased by
RMB1,508.6 million as compared with the balance of RMB4,777.4
million as at 31 December 2013, representing a growth of 31.6%.
This was attributable to our continuous investment of capital
raised from the initial public offering into the micro and small loan
business, as well as increase of the capital base and expansion of
the operation network, allowing the micro and small loan business
to grow rapidly. We also sold the benefit rights of loans under
repurchase agreements with other financial institutions to gain more
capital and serve more small-to-mid sized customers.

B RER RSB R REE M0 ERE
E(BRERIMERRZRENR) N&EHE
B o A2014F12A31H RN BERE
KRB BERARG,286.08 & T
B2013F 12831 H 5 A R ¥4,777.48
B BEAREK1,508.65 8T HiE
31.6% ' EF=REMAAERAARER
HEEeREBEREAN IV HERE BB
EMERERMERT L EHR - E5MK
EREBRERER - BHILRER - RMEE
HhEREBEERBRERNERE L EE
% UBmABSWRAFNEINREZAFR
INEF o
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We focus on providing short-term loans to minimize our risk

exposure and, as a result, a majority of our loans and advances to

customers have a maturity of less than one year. The following table

sets forth the remaining maturity date of our loans and advances

to customers as of the dates indicated:

AP FOT R G A2 BB SR UA R A 3 P9 T B
VB - R TR APTR AR 0 # EE PE R K B R
MEIBMAE DR —F - TREHEFIRAT
B B RE SR R B RO RSB AR

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
20145 2013%F

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) Amount % of total Amount % of total
(BRBEFEFEI - LARBEELIIT) 28 1 % e 1L %
Due immediately Bl EE 105.6 1.8 26.1 0.6
Due within three months R=18 A R EIE 2,187.6 36.5 1,364.5 29.8
Due between three months R=EAZE—FK

and one year 2| Hf 3,565.3 59.4 3,055.4 66.7
Due between one year and R—FERFR

five years FIHR 138.6 2.3 133.9 2.9
Total a&t 5,997.1 100.0 4,579.9 100.0
For details on loans, please refer to the page of 34 to 47 in section EHEEFTRABFE - B2HAF® %75
headed “Business Overview” in this annual report. ARl | BEISEBAEE4TH -
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Trade and other receivables

Our trade and other receivables mainly consist of default payment
receivables of our credit guarantee business, various forms of
prepayments and interest receivable. The following table sets forth
our trade and other receivables as of the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

Wit e HL At FE W SRR IR

T APT B0 Mo B B At B R IR B B FE H
MEREREBOEBYCRONR - 2B
A FEN IR R ERAE » TREINEK
PIA P 7 B E B0 R Wi K L ftb R L R T ) B
A

At 31 December

R12H31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(BRZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20144 20134 EE)(%)
Default payment receivables JEUSE 4915 3R 734.5 405.1 81.3
Trade receivables JE U BR R 2.8 3.1 (9.7)
Less: provisions for default S FEYUE A FEE

payment receivables (449.2) (288.5) 55.7
Subtotal 2 288.1 119.7 140.7
Interest receivables JE MR B 59.8 44.7 33.8
Other prepayments, deposits and ~ HFBNFUE - #4 K&

other receivables HAth FEUGRIE 56.4 77.4 (27.1)
Subtotal Mt 116.2 122.1 (4.8)
Total F 404.3 241.8 67.2

In 2014, our guarantee business continued to expand. As
downward pressure on the domestic economy increased and
the credit condition of a proportion of our guarantee customers
deteriorated, our default payments increased. In 2014, we paid
RMB478.7 million on behalf of defaulting customers, which was
up by RMB219.9 million compared with the accumulated default
payments of RMB258.8 million in 2013.

20145 - BRI EREBFERER - &
B A A BT N 1T IR R a5 &R
BEEERAMKREL  FE8ERMNEHRE
SRLEF - 2014F - HMHATABENETF
ZHRESEEFTAARB478.7TEE T
R2013F RN E£EARMK2588E &
L EBRARB210.98E T
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In 2014, we continued to reinforce the measures and frequency
of risk management measures targetting guarantee customers,
strengthened management of guarantors before, during and after
granting guarantees, and stepped up the management of counter
guarantees and collaterals and the collection of default payments.
In 2014, the accumulated cash collected from default customers
was RMB59.5 million.

As at 31 December 2014, the outstanding balance of default
payment receivables was RMB734.5 million, and the corresponding
provisions was RMB449.2 million, overall provision rate was 61.2%,
which fell slightly by 10% compared with the overall provision rate
as at 31 December 2013. This was mainly attributable to the receipt
of sufficient collateral from defaulting customers, which raised the
collateral rate and expedited the disposal process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

The following table sets forth our available-for-sale financial assets
as of the dates indicated:

20145 - MBE MBI HEREPH
B BRI EASAE - ERAT - R~ (R
BEREIRETEERANBERE - WHNRR
Ry  BEHEYEENREZNE KT
B 20145 - RMRFHENTPEEIK
REARKE95EHET

M2014F12A31H » BUCENN R HEH
BAARKETAEETT - HEMNERSH
BAARKE4I49 288  BEEEBESXA
61.2% * B2013F12 A1 H R EBHEH S X
NETE10%  FERKRMRENRFPRE
WE MR - HEHRIES - Wi
REBHEZATE -

AHHEESREE

TREFHFRARBEHOAIHEESH
BE

At 31 December

M12831H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(REBEEAN KAREBETIIR) 20144 20134 (%)
Non-listed equity investments JEETIRHERE 11.8 9.6 22.9
Wealth management product B EMRESE
portfolio 146.0 - _
Total &5t 157.8 9.6 1,5643.8

The non-listed equity investments were made by us on non-listed
entities (Non-related companies).

In 2014, we continued to enhance capital management, and
invested a small amount of short-term idle capital in wealth
management products with a guaranteed return on principal
of commercial banks on the prerequisite of fulfilling liquidity
requirements to raise the utilization efficiency of capital.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Liabilities from guarantees

Liabilities from guarantees include deferred income and provisions
for guarantee losses of our credit guarantee business. The following
table sets forth the details of our liabilities from guarantees as of
the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

ERUEEE
ERUEABBEERAMOEREREBHE

FERARKREFAEELEES - TREIRK
IR PR B R ML B AR AA

At 31 December

R12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(REAFBEIN UARBEETIIR) 20145 20134 HE) (%)
Deferred income EEWA 410.9 423.8 (3.0)
Provisions for guarantee losses REHETEHES 501.3 429.2 16.8
Total a% 912.2 853.0 6.9

In 2014, our provisions for guarantee losses for the guarantee
business was RMB72.1 million, down by RMB76.9 million compared
with 2013, representing a decline of 51.6%. Of which:

1. On 31 December 2014, the scale of the guarantee business
was RMB23.56 billion, up by RMB2.26 billion compared with
the scale of the guarantee business of RMB21.30 billion on
31 December 2013, representing a growth of only 10.6%. As
downward pressure on the domestic economy increased, in
2014 we actively adjusted our operating strategies, cutting
down the traditional bank financing guarantee business
with relatively higher risk, at the same time adding capital
market guarantee businesses with relatively lower risk such as
providing guarantee for bonds issuance, providing guarantee
for capital preservation funds, which lowered the overall risk
portfolio.

On 31 December 2014, the business scale of our capital
market guarantee was RMB5.97 billion, which grew
substantially by RMB4.43 billion compared to the business
scale of RMB1.54 billion on 31 December 2013, representing
a growth of 286.2%.

2014F - MM EHBEREBTIROR
FETEECEAARE2ARE L
R201BF TR ARKICOBE T FIE
51.6% ° EH :

1+ H2014F12831H » BREKHER
AR #235.618 7T+ 82013F12H31
B RESREARE213.0/E 0180
AR®E22.6F T+ EIEE R10.6% °
RABALEET NTEBAOMA - &
782014 F E B A B AC & SR BE - Rl >
ERASReNERRTREERE
% A0[RI 00 R B A E EE Y B AR
MBS EREBONEFHTER  RA
ESERE  tMESEERARAS
FEAR o

M2014F12A31H - HZMIME AN
GREREBRERARES7ET
#2013F12A31H ¥ % 18 B15.418
JL 0 KIRIE AR #4438 © iR
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2. Due to increased downward pressure on the domestic
economy, the accumulated default payment amount and
default rate in 2014 increased. Affected by this, we continued
to adopt prudent accounting estimates, causing the overall
provisions for guarantee losses of the guarantee business to
go up from 2.01% on 31 December 2013 to 2.12% on 31
December 2014.

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

The following table sets forth the financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements as of the dates indicated:

2 ARERELEETTITELNK  F
BREMR2014FEREBRRE
SEMREELA - ZRTE KM
TAEAFENSEEET - FEER
EBBEERIPETEFESEN2013
F12A31HK2.01% L FAE20145F12
A31H/I2.12% °

BEHOBEsRHEE

TEREINBFPRAREMNELEBESR
BE -

At 31 December

R12H31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(RZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20145 20134 EE) (%)
Benefit rights of loans and BERK
advances to customers ARG ZE 2,182.4 798.0 173.5
Total &t 2,182.4 798.0 173.5

In 2014, we issued asset securitization products in the amount of
RMBO.5 billion on the Shanghai Stock Exchange through our micro
and small loan company located in Chongging, directly raising
capital from the capital market.

As we provide guarantee obligations on the principal and interest
for the investments made by investors through our credit guarantee
subsidiary and we directly purchase inferior products, we account
the raised capital as “financial assets sold under repurchase
agreement” in the consolidated financial statements.

Also, we cooperated with other financial institutions to commence
the sale of benefit rights of loans under repurchase agreements on
various financial asset exchanges and other financial management
planning channels to increase capital and serve more small-to-
medium customers.

Both the aforementioned factors had an effect on the increase of
our balance of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Interest-bearing borrowings

On 31 December 2014, total interest-bearing borrowings was
RMB815.6 million. The following table sets forth the details of
interest-bearing borrowings as of the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

HEER

20145128318 » MM B G asE
BARMESI56EBETT o NREAIFRFIFNFT
~HERET BfEFRRRAE

At 31 December

MW12H318
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(B BBFRAIN - UARBEETLIITR) 201445 20134 BE)(%)
Bank borrowings RITEK
- Guaranteed by non-related —BUE=FER
party guarantors 115.0 440.0 (73.9)
— Secured by properties of the — AREE Y 1EEK R
Group 91.0 97.0 (6.2)
Unsecured K 207.9 167.2 24.3
Subtotal Mt 413.9 704.2 (41.2)
Borrowings from related parties RE BT ER - 20.0 (100.0)
Other borrowings HAth &% 401.7 2425 65.6
Total &t 815.6 966.7 (15.6)

The following table sets forth the maturities of the Group’s interest-
bearing borrowings as of the dates indicated:

TREINAEER AR B BE B ERNE
HAe :

At 31 December

R12H31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(REATBAIN UARBEETIIR) 20145 20134 EE) (%)
Within 1 year or on demand EREESIIFEAAN 735.6 724.5 1.5
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FZEZ2F AR 80.0 116.0 (31.0)
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FBES5F AR - 126.2 (100.0)
After 5 years 5F A F - — _

815.6 966.7 (15.6)
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BEERWED T

As at 31 December 2014, bank borrowings in the amount of
RMB91.0 million were secured by the Group’s buildings held for
own use. The aggregate carrying value of the secured properties
amounted to RMB205.0 million (2013: RMB211.9 million) as at 31
December 2014.

As financing channel sources were gradually expanded, our bank
interest-bearing borrowings balance gradually decreased. In 2014,
all our interest-bearing borrowings have been repaid before the
actual due dates, and there are no records of default. On 31
December 2014, the annual interest rate of our outstanding interest
— bearing borrowings ranged between 5.3% and 12.0%.

For more detailed discussion on the interest rate risk of the Group,
please refer to note 30 to the financial statements.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, our gearing ratio
(representing the total balance of interest-bearing borrowings and
financial assets sold under repurchase agreement, less cash and
cash equivalents, divided by total equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company) was 6.8% and 17.1% respectively.

Capital expenditures

The following table sets forth our capital expenditures for the dates
indicated:

MR2014F12831H » @A ARKI1.08
BILMRITERUANEBEFEE BWEE
B - 2014128310 @ MW EN
REAEAARE205.08 87T (20134%F ¢
ARB211.9BET) -

HARRERBRREELHAE  KAIORIT
FTEBREREEE 2 TE o BA20145F - B M
FTBERG EEFERERIRAEERR
AIEE - WREFEAGE - K20145F12
A318 - BB REZET BB FER
NNE.3%E12.0% 2 M °

BRAEENXREREARNNHR B8
B SRR M RE30 o

EEEER

20149128318 K2013%F12H318 * &
EaEX (AR ERAkELRDNESREE
EHRPBREBES  BRIAKRQAIIRERE
IhHEERAEEE) DR A6.8%X17.1% °
BEAREX
TREFIAFTR B BERFINERFS

For the year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLEE

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(BRBEFREN  UARBEBEETIIR) 20144 20134 FHH)(%)
Capital expenditure BEARY 108.0 158.1 (31.7)

Our capital expenditures mainly consist of actual long-term rent
paid in the process of business expansion and setting up new
business outlets, and expenses incurred for the purchase of
information technology equipment and systems and vehicles.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTRACTUAL
OBLIGATIONS

Capital commitments
The following table sets forth our capital commitments for

acquisition of fixed assets, mainly property, equipment and vehicles,
as of the dates indicated:

BEERWED T

BEXRERENEE
BAENR
TRBIINFR B BRI R E T A E

(EERME - REIITE) MERFE

At 31 December

M12A31H
(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(REATHEIN UARBEETIIR) 2014% 20134 EE) (%)
Commitments in respect of W B [E T & EFTER Y
purchase of fixed assets EIE - BETR
— contracted for 9.7 5.1 90.2

Our capital commitments on 31 December 2014 were mainly
related to new information technology systems purchased during
business expansion. After considering our future business growth
and expansion of business outlets, we may incur additional capital
commitments in order to support business expansion.

Operating Lease Commitments

We lease a proportion of our office properties from third party
guarantors under non-cancellable operating leases. The following
table sets forth our future minimum lease payments payable under
non-cancellable operating leases as of the dates indicated:

HFIR2014F12AIE M B AEET E
AEBRERAETHEESERNTESRS
o KEBHRMARNEBERREEH
BREVIETE - R AT REE LI E AR IE
LA 35 E ISR -

ReHERE
HPRBIAAREECEEHERE =7 R
AREMOIWMAIEYE - TREIINFHR
BHEITR PR IBE T AT B E 2 HE R #O R
KREARTHE R

At 31 December

M12A31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(REBEFAIN AARBBEETIIR) 20144 20134 5)(%)
Due within one year —FLRN (BE—F)

(including one year) 82.9 47.9 73.1
Due after one year but within three ~—4{&{8 = ELAR

years (including three years) (BIE=F) 130.6 29.3 345.7
Due after three years =FHE 54.9 113.4 (51.6)
Total = 268.4 190.6 40.8
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On 31 December 2014, our operating lease commitments were
mainly related to our new established business outlets in the
process of business expansion. Its substantial growth was mainly
attributable to our newly established small loan companies and
guarantee business branches.

Intra-group liabilities

As of 31 December 2014, we guaranteed the following liabilities of
certain members of our Group:

1. an aggregate of RMB473.7 million of borrowings by our micro
and small loan subsidiaries;

2. an aggregate of RMB152.2 million of borrowings by our asset
management subsidiaries;

3. an aggregate of RMB2,036.2 million of repurchase transactions
originated by our micro and small loan and asset management
subsidiaries.

In 2014, we issued asset securitization products in the amount of
RMBO.5 billion on the Shanghai Stock Exchange through our micro
and small loan company located in Chongqing, including senior
tranche notes of RMB475.0 million, and subordinated tranche
notes of RMB25.0 million, of which, 5% of the subordinated tranche
notes are held by our micro and small loan company (the original
issuer), and 95% is held directly by the Company. Also, our credit
guarantee subsidiary provides guarantee for the holder of the senior
tranche notes.

As at 31 December 2014, none of the liabilities of our credit
guarantee subsidiaries were guaranteed by other entities within
our Group.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As the credit guarantee subsidiaries did not raise any capital from
other legal entities within the Group and since each of these credit
guarantee subsidiaries is a limited liability company under the PRC
Law, the Company is only liable for a credit guarantee subsidiary’s
debts to the extent of our equity contribution. Accordingly, our
obligations under outstanding guarantees will not adversely affect
the business and operations of other entities within our Group
should any of our credit guarantee subsidiaries fail to meet their
contingent liabilities under outstanding guarantees.

As at 31 December 2014, our credit guarantee subsidiaries
provided outstanding guarantee liabilities of RMB1,507.0 million
(31 December 2013: RMB483.9 million) for the micro and small
loans granted by our micro and small loan subsidiaries. In our
consolidated financial statements, we accounted such loans
granted by micro and small loan subsidiaries as loans and advances
to customers in order to avoid double counting and exaggerating
the overall amount of credit risk beared by the Group, and then
did not include the above amounts into the calculation of the credit
guarantee balance of the Group. As the amount for each case
guaranteed by our credit guarantee subsidiaries is relatively small
and dispersed, we believe that it would not materially affect the
business and operations of our other subsidiaries should any of
these micro and small loans no longer be guaranteed by our credit
guarantee subsidiaries.

BEERWED T
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MR2014F 128318 HAMERERTA
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Off-balance sheet arrangements

The following table sets forth the outstanding guarantee liabilities
of our credit guarantee subsidiaries:

BEEREBRIZH

TRIVREAUE BER T AR AFERNER
BESRBERER

At 31 December

R12H31H

(Expressed in RMB million, unless otherwise stated) 2014 2013 Change
(RZEFHEIN  MARBBEETIIR) 20144 20134 EH)(%)
Bank financing guarantees BITREER 14,561.4 15,898.5 (8.4)
Capital market guarantees BARTIGER 5,966.4 1,544.7 286.2
Other non-bank financing EMIERITREE IR

guarantees 2,176.2 2,715.9 (19.9)
Performance guarantees BAHER 862.5 1,146.1 (24.7)
Total = 23,566.5 21,300.2 10.6

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2014, we completed our initial
public offering of 1,170,000,000 H shares. As at 31 December
2014, our share capital was RMB4,600,000,000 comprising
3,430,000,000 domestic shares and 1,170,000,000 H shares,
both with a par value of RMB1.00 per share.

For details of the Group’s capital management policy, please refer
to note 27 to the financial statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRLE

BEARE  RBESRUMBER

BERRER

RE E2014F12A31B EFE > H %=
X 71,170,000,000/xHA% &) & X 2 f &
f% o 32014F12831H » & 1 & & &
A A B #4,600,000,0007C © & B8 &
3,430,000,0008% A & A% }1,170,000,000
fgHR - EEHAERARK1.007T

BRASENEAEERR  HF2HMB
WRMIFE27



Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and capital resources

We have funded our working capital and other capital requirements
primarily by equity contribution from shareholders, bank borrowings,
cash flows generated from operations and net proceeds from initial
public offering. Our liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate
to granting micro and small loans and entrusted loans, making
default payments, maintaining security deposits at banks and other
working capital requirements.

We have raised approximately RMB1,438.6 million of proceeds
from initial public offering along with the partial exercise of the
over-allotment options, of which 70% of the funds were used by the
Company to increase the capital base of our micro and small loan
business, 20% were used to increase the capital base of our credit
guarantee business and 10% were used for product development
and working capital.

As at 31 December 2014, our cash and cash equivalents were
RMB2,531.1 million. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The Group conducts its business transactions principally in RMB
and is therefore not exposed to material foreign exchange risks.

BEERWED T

RBESRUBEIR
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PROSPECTS

Hanhua Financial is one of the largest privately owned inclusive
finance investment institutions in China. Since its establishment ten
years ago, it has accumulated over 50,000 customers with business
scale reaching RMB100 billion.

As a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanhua Financial, Hanhua
Guarantee Corporation Limited (“Hanhua Guarantee”) has
accumulated over 10,000 customers. Among small and micro
sized customers, approximately 70% are guaranteed by only
credit, while 30% utilize a combination of credit and collateral.
From providing credit guarantee loans and designing personalized
repayment proposals, to providing value-added services such as
resource integration and financial support to companies, a stable
and growing financing channel is established, which promotes the
upgrade and future development of the Company. Our operating
principle of relying on credit rather than collateral not only match the
features and actual demands of small and microeconomic entities,
but is also a beneficial attempt at establishing a credit framework
for society. After ten years of exploration, Hanhua Guarantee
has already formed an independent and complete credit rating
framework.

Hanhua Micro-credit, a holding subsidiary of Hanhua Financial,
has adopted the innovative method of using only credit and no
collateral to break free from the traditional “pawn mode” of small
loans. At the same time, it solved the problem of encountering
financing bottlenecks which often occurs in the course of business
development by asset securitization, allowing traditional financing
methods such as bank loan financing, commercial and bank
subsidies to effectively complement each other. Also, by using the
financial informatization credit business platform independently
developed by Hanhua Financial and already in use, support will
be provided to financial market business and financial cooperation
channel management through a nationwide central account, allowing
the management of the entire workflow of different business lines of
the SME and micro loans business, including centralized customer
information management, integrated business reports, assessment
and approvals, fee collection, granting of loans, post-loan tracking
services, auditing and accounting. An internet credit business will
be launched based on the centralized management of the financial
informatization service platform, and on the basis of managing
existing customers, the customer base will be rapidly expanded to
new customers from 50,000 to 80,000, providing comprehensive
investment and financing and asset management professional
services for more SME and microenterprises.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2014, Hanhua Financial acquired 90% of the equity interest of
Chongqing Changjiang Financial Factoring Co., Ltd. Internet finance
development strategies were also fully launched, and a series of
internet finance platforms and products such as the “Hanhua Yun”
were developed. All these will expedite the transfer and expansion
of the unique advantages of the offline services of Hanhua Financial
online, providing more convenient, efficient, and safer integrated
financial services to SME and microenterprises.

Use the surpluses of the world to supplement its insufficiencies.
The diversified business sectors of Hanhua Financial have formed
a linked mechanism and have combined with the long term
development strategy of the Company to provide diversified
financing and comprehensive financial services for SME and
microenterprises. In the next three years, Hanhua Financial has set
the goal of entering the RMB100 billion club of inclusive finance
in China, and will promote business development to build the best
inclusive finance group in modern China.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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DIRECTORS =

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and as at the date of this REZ2014F12A31B L FEREBEAF
annual report, the members of the Board are set out below: WA EEKEHIET

84

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman)

(Appointed on 13 March 2013) (R2013F3 138 &)
Mr. Lin Feng RS

(Appointed on 13 March 2013, (20133 A13B & -
resigned on 17 March 2015) M2015F3 517 HEHT)
Non-executive Directors EHITES

Mr. Tu Jianhua REELE

(Appointed on 13 March 2013) (BH2013F3 138 &)
Mr. Duan Xiaohua ERmEE A

(Appointed on 17 June 2013) (72013F6 A17HZET)
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2Bt

(Appointed on 13 March 2013) (R2013F3 138 &)
Ms. Liu Tingrong Bpx s+

(Appointed on 13 March 2013) (BH2013F3F13H &)
Ms. Wang Fangfei FrEFEZT

(Appointed on 13 March 2013) (FA2013F3 A13HZE )
Mr. Feng Yongxiang RS KFE S A

(Appointed on 13 March 2013) (FA2013F3 A13HZ 1)
Mr. Zhou Xinyu B TR A

(Appointed on 17 June 2013) (R2013F6A17HEE)
Mr. Liu Bolin RIERE A

(Appointed on 17 June 2013) (FA2013F6 A17HZ )
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Bai Qinxian HRE R E

(Appointed on 13 March 2013) (20133 A13B &)
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu B RARS S A4

(Appointed on 13 March 2013) (FA2013F3 A13HZ )
Mr. Qian Shizheng S E

(Appointed on 17 June 2013) (R2013F6A17HE )
Mr. Ng Leung Sing REERAE

(Appointed on 17 June 2013) (R2013F6 A17HE )
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin RMWEE

(Appointed on 17 June 2013) (R2013F6 A17HET)
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang, aged 50, has been the chairman of our
Board, the executive Director and president of our Company since
March 2013. He joined our Group in August 2004. He has been
the chairman of the board of directors and the president of Hanhua
Guarantee since August 2009. He served as the president of
Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd. from August 2004 to to August 2009.

Mr. Zhang has been working in our Group since our establishment
in 2004. Mr. Zhang plays a pivotal role in our senior management
team. He is highly devoted to the establishment and management
of our business operations, commercial decisions and strategic
plan of the development of our Group. We believe it is in the best
interest of our Group to have him act as the chairman of our Board
and the president of our Company at the same time.

Mr. Zhang has been the chairman of the board of supervisors of
Loncin Motor Co. Ltd. since October 2010. He also held various
positions in China Merchants Bank, a company whose shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600036)
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 03968), from
November 1999 to August 2004, including the deputy governor of
Yubei sub-branch of Chongging Branch and the deputy general
manager of the risk management department of Chongqging Branch.
He served in various positions in Liaoning Branch of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, a company whose shares are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601398) and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01398), from August 1988 to
September 1998.

Mr. Zhang obtained his college diploma in finance from Shenyang
Television University (&5 M EEEHRAE) in July 1992 and his
EMBA degree from the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business
in September 2011. He was accredited as a PRC lawyer by Ministry
of Justice of the PRC in July 1996 and obtained the intermediate
level of financial qualification from Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the People’s Republic of China in October 1997.
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Mr. Zhang has been the vice president of Chongqging SME Credit
Guarantee Association (BB /NP FAERHE) since 2005,
the vice president of Chongging New Class Professional Union (EE
T ) since 2008, the expert in auditing and consulting of China
Association of Small and Medium Enterprises (FF B/ E &)
since 2008, the vice chairman of the first council of China Micro-
Credit Institution Association (1 B/ \58 {5 E# 88 fE €) since 2011
and a member of the executive committee of Chongqging Industrial
and Commercial Union (2 1 TR H#) since 2012. He was elected
as one of the “Top Ten Economic Figures in Chongaging” (EE ™
+ KFEELLEAY) in 2008 and 2011. He acted as a member of
the third committee of CPPCC of Chongging from December 2007
to January 2013. He was selected as the Leader for the SME
Credit Guarantee Companies in China (FF BIrR /M 2= FIE (R
1) in 2009. He was honored as “New Class-first Top Professional
Talent of Chongqing” (FTfEEBeEE & fE +1E2A) in 2010. He was
also elected as the tenth session member of Economy Committee
of China Federation of Industry & Commerce (2B T BB EZ
B2) in November 2010 and honored in Chongging at the Third
Commendation Meeting of Excellent Constructors to Socialism with
Chinese Characteristics (EEMHE = EEFTREOHL TR RERZE
&%) in 2011. He was named as the “Person of the Year in Micro-
credit Industry” (FEI/NEEEEFEAY) in 2011, Mr. Zhang has
been the vice chairman of China Financial Guarantee Association
(P B A& HE R 7€) since January 2013. He has been a member of
fourth committee of CPPCC of Chongging since 2013.

Mr. Zhang is one of our controlling shareholders.
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Mr. Lin Feng, aged 42, has been the vice president and the
executive Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined
our Group in September 2004 and served in various positions,
including the chief operating officer, director, vice president and
executive president.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lin worked for Chongging Branch
of China Merchants Bank from November 1998 to September
2004 and served as the deputy manager of the fund planning
department from February 2004. He worked in the Yubei sub-
branch of Chongging Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China from July 19983 to November 1998. He is currently the legal
representative of Chongging Association of Micro-credit companies
(EERTNEERRAHE).

Mr. Lin obtained his bachelor’s degree in statistics from Chongqging
Business College (EEME7) (currently known as Chongging
Technology and Business University (EE T AE)) in July 1993
and MBA degree from Chongqging University in June 2006. He
was accredited as an intermediate statistician by National Bureau
of Statistics of China in October 2002. He was also qualified as a
security professional by the Securities Association of China (¥
BHEWE) in February 2004.

Mr. Lin resigned as an executive Director of the Company on 17
March 2015.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua, aged 51, joined our Group in February 2013
and has been as the non-executive Director of the Company since
March 2013. He served as the chairman of the board of directors
of Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd. from February to March 20183.

Mr. Tu has been the chairman of the board of directors of Loncin
Holdings previously, in the period from December 2002 to June
2010 and since February 2013. He has been the director of Loncin
Motor Co., Ltd. (BZBAE HKMHER A F]) since October 2010,
a company whose shares have been listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 603766) since August 2012.

Mr. Tu served as the non-executive director of Chongging Rural
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 3618), from June
2008 to December 2011. He served as the chairman of the board
of directors of Locin Group since February 1996. He served as the
general manager of Chongging Loncin Gasoline Engine Company
(Sino-American Joint Venture) (FEABEERZ/THIEAT), a
company used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from
1995 to 1996, and served as the chairman of Chongging Loncin
Transportation and Machinery Factory (EEEZIBEMK), a
company used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence,
from 1993 to 1995. He served as the chairman of Chongging
Jiulong District Loncin Metal Factory (EE T AR REZ S ER),
a company used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence,
from 1991 to 1993.

Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to the 11th and the 12th
National People’s Congress, the deputy to the Second and Third
Chongaing Municipal People’s Congress and the vice president
of Chongging West China Education Promotion Association (&
TS B R #2). He currently serves as the deputy to the Fourth
Chongaing Municipal People’s Congress.

Mr. Tu is the cousin of Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (one of our non-executive
Directors). Mr. Tu is one of our Controlling Shareholders.
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Mr. Duan Xiaohua, aged 40, joined the Group in June 2013 as
the non-executive Director of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Duan served as the chief financial
officer of Loncin Holdings from February 2012 to October 2012,
the chief financial officer and director of Shanghai Fenghwa Group
Co., (L/BE2%E (£@) IRHBRAF]), a company whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600615)
since October 2012.

He worked for Chengdu Fudi Property Co., Ltd. (X &MEME £ AR
7~ a]) from March 2008 to March 2012 and held various positions,
including financial manager, vice financial president and financial
president. From June 2007 to February 2008, he worked for
Hutchison Whampoa Property (Xi'an) Co., Ltd. (Mzd & #EiE (7
%) BBRAF]). He also worked for Chongging Taiji Industry (Group)
Co., Ltd (BEEAGEEAR A A]) from July 1998 to May 2007, a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600129).

Mr. Duan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in 1998 and
obtained his master’s degree in business administration from
Chongaing University in 2006. Mr. Duan was accredited as an
accountant and a certified internal auditor.

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, aged 35, has been the non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in August
2009 and has been a director of Hanhua Guarantee since then with
an non-executive role.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Liu served as the general manager
of Chongging Maohua Technology Co., Ltd. (EEXERFARA
A]) from October 2003 to August 2009.

Ms. Liu obtained her bachelor’s degree in economics from Saint
Petersburg State Polytechnical University in Russia in December
2003. Ms. Liu Jiaoyang is the cousin of Mr. Tu (one of our non-
executive Directors).
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Ms. Liu Tingrong, aged 40, has been the non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in March
2011 and served as a director of Hanhua Guarantee with an non-
executive role.

Ms. Liu has been working for Chongging Taizheng Mining Resources
Development Co., Ltd. (EEZIEEEZIRFEFRAA) since
September 1996 and become the assistant to the chairman of
board of directors since November 2007.

Ms. Wang Fangfei, aged 28, has been the non-executive Director
of the Company since March 2013. She joined the Group in
November 2010 and held various position, including the project
manager and chief reviewing managers of business management
section and general management section of Hanhua Guarantee.

Ms. Wang holds 55% of the equity interests of Chongging Jiulong
Investment Co., Ltd. (EENEEREBR AT, one of the minority
shareholders of our Company, and has also been the legal
representative of Chongqging Jiulong Investment Co., Ltd. since
April 2011,

Ms. Wang obtained her master’'s degree from Sheffield Hallam
University in October 2009, majoring in international business and
management. She obtained her junior college degree in business
administration from Chongging University in July 2006.

Mr. Feng Yongxiang, aged 44, has been the non-executive
Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined the Group
in August 2009 and has been the director of Hanhua Guarantee
since then with an non-executive role.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Feng has been the general manager
of Chongaing Puzhao Hengyi Investment Co., Ltd. (EE ZJKEZ
A& BRAR]), one of the minority shareholders of our Company,
since February 2010. He worked for Chongaging Yayu Business
and Commerce Development Co., Ltd. (EE i EZEEE Q) as
a deputy general manager from May 2005 to January 2010. He
worked as the senior relationship manager of the Chongging branch
of China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., a company whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600016)
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01988), from
July 2003 to May 2005.
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He served as the senior relationship manager of the Chongging
branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd., a
company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600000), from March 2000 to July 20083.

He worked for Yangjiaping Sub-branch of China Construction Bank
Corporation, a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601939) and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 0939), from July 1991 to February 2000.

Mr. Zhou Xinyu, aged 43, joined the Group in June 2013 as the
non-executive Director of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has been the assistant to
general manager of Hua Rong Securities Company Limited (3£ gl 55
AW n A R A 7)) since January 2013. From June 2008 to November
2012, he worked at Guosen Securities Co., Ltd. (B{ZEH D AR
72 7)), From January 2008 to May 2008, he served as the deputy
general manager of the capital market department of Hua Rong
Securities Company Limited (GEFFEHFARMNDERAF). He also
previously served as the senior deputy manager of the investment
department of China Huarong Asset Management Corporation
(T EERVE EE IR A).

Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering mechanics
from Xi’an Jiaotong University in July 1993 and obtained his
master’s degree in economics (majoring in finance) from Central
University of Finance and Economics in March 2001. He obtained
his doctorate degree in economics (majoring in domestic economy)
from Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in July 2006. Mr. Zhou
obtained the qualification of senior economist from the senior
assessment committee of China Huarong Asset Management
Corporation in December 2006.
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Mr. Liu Bolin, aged 29, joined the Group in June 2013 as the
non-executive Director of the Company. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Liu has been the general manager of Sichuan Hongrun Trading
Co., Ltd. (79)I13534F 7 & A& R A R]), one of the minority shareholders
of our Company, since March 2013.

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from Shenzhen University in June 2006 and obtained his master’s
degree in accounting from the State University of New York at
Binghamton in December 2008.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Bai Qinxian, aged 74, has been the independent non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined the
Group in August 2009 and has been the independent non-executive
director of Hanhua Guarantee since then.

Mr. Bai has served in various domestic committees and societies,
including the member of the applied economics discipline appraisal
group of the Fourth and Fifth Session of Academic Degree
Commission of the State Council, the permanent member of
China Society for Finance and Banking (FEI & g2 S), and the
permanent member of China International Finance Society (&
Bl & BhE ). Mr. Bai is currently the professor and the doctoral
supervisor in finance and policy finance of Liaoning University and
the director of the International Finance Institute of the University
(REXEEE SR

Mr. Bai was accredited as an academic leader of applied economics
at the first level and an expert who is eligible to enjoy the special
allowance of the State Council.
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Mr. Deng Zhaoyu, aged 68, has been the independent non-
executive Director of the Company since March 2013. He joined the
Group in August 2009 and has been the independent non-executive
director of Hanhua Guarantee since then.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Deng held various positions at China
People’s Insurance Holding Company (FF B A &2 A% A &) (currently
known as the People’s Insurance (Group) of China Limited), a
company whose shares are listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 01339), including the deputy general manager during
the period from December 2001 to August 2006. Mr. Deng also
served as the chairman of the board of supervisors of PICC
Property and Casualty Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 02328), from July
2003 to October 2006.

Mr. Qian Shizheng, aged 62, joined the Group in June 2013 as
the independent non-executive Director of our Company. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Qian had served as the deputy director
of the Accounting Department of Fudan University. He worked
at Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 363), from
January 1998 to April 2012 and held various positions, including
deputy chief executive officer and executive director. He also served
as the vice-chairman of Haitong Securities Co., Ltd. from July
2007 to July 2010 and from May 2011 to March 2013, the shares
of which are listed on both the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600837) and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code:
6837), and the director of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank and
Shanghai Industrial Urban Development Group Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 0563).
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He was appointed as the professor of the School of Management
of Fudan University and the associate director of the Shanghai-
Hong Kong Development Institute of Fudan University. He is
also the independent non-executive director of Lonking Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3339), Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science
& Technology Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000157) and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1157), and Shanghai Yaohua
Pilkington Glass Group Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600819). He has been
an independent non-executive director of Jingrui Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1862) since October 2013.

Mr. Qian obtained his bachelor’s degree in accountancy from
Shanghai Institute of Finance and Economics (currently known as
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics) in July 1983 and
doctor’s degree in management science and engineering from
Fudan University in July 2001.

Mr. Ng Leung Sing, aged 65, joined the Group in June 2013 as
the independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Ng is currently the director of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Trustees
Limited, the vice chairman of the Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
and the director of the BOCHK Charitable Foundation. He is also
an independent non-executive director of MTR Corporation Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0066) and traded over the counter on NASDAQ in the
US (stock code: MTRJY), the independent non-executive director
of Smartone Telecommunications Holdings Limited whose shares
are listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 00315) and
Nine Dragons Paper (Holdings) Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 2689). He
has been a member of the board of management of the Chinese
Permanent Cemeteries since February 2010.
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Mr. Ng had been the member to various boards and committees,
including the Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th, 11th and 12th National
People’s Congress of the PRC, the member of the Legislative
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the
chairperson of the Banking Industry Training Advisory Committee of
the Education Bureau, the honorary president of Chinese Bankers
Club, Hong Kong, the honorary advisor of the Hong Kong Chi Tung
Association Ltd. and the specialist of the Hong Kong Council for
Accreditation of Academic & Vocational Qualifications (Banking).

Mr. Yuan Xiaobin, aged 45, joined the Group in June 2013 as the
independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Yuan has been the member of the standing committee of
Chongaing People’s Congress since January 2013. He has also
been the vice president of Chongging Friendship Association for
Non-Party Intellectuals since September 2012, the vice chairman
of the Revolutionary Committee of Chongging Municipal since July
2012, and the arbitrator of the China International Economic and
Trade Arbitration Commission since May 2011.

He had been the independent director of Jinke Property Group
Co., Ltd., the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 000656), and has become the special
supervisor of Chongaging People’s Government since May 2008.
He also has been a part-time professor at Southwest University
of Politics and Law since December 2006 and the director of
Zhonghao Law Firm since 1997.

Mr. Yuan had also been a Legislative Assessment Expert from
June 2008 to January 2013, a consultant of the Decision Advisory
Committee of Chongqging People’s Government from December
2008 to December 2010.
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Mr. Yuan holds the honorary title of the “Outstanding Specialists
with Remarkable Contributions to Chongging City” awarded
by the Chongging Municipal Party Committee and Chongqging
People’s Government in September 2009, “Top Ten Outstanding
Professionals” awarded by the United Work Front Department in
February 2010, “National Outstanding Lawyer” awarded by the
Chinese Lawyer’s Association in December 2011 and “Chongqging
Top Ten Innovative Person of Year 2011” in February 2012.

Mr. Yuan obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from Southwest
College of Politics and Law (currently known as Southwest
University of Politics and Law) in June 1991, and his EMBA degree
from Chongging University in June 2013. Mr. Yuan was accredited
as a Class A lawyer by Chonggqing Judicial Bureau in January 2010.

SUPERVISORS

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and as at the date of this
annual report, the members of the board of supervisors (the “Board
of Supervisors”) are as follows:

Mr. Li Ruping (Chairman of the Board of Supervisors)
(appointed on 13 March 2013)

Mr. Zhou Daoxue

(appointed on 13 March 2013)

Mr. Chen Zhonghua

(appointed on 13 March 2013)

Mr. Li Ruping, aged 58, has been the chairman of Board of
Supervisors of the Company since March 2013. He joined the
Group in August 2004 and served in various positions, including
vice president, president and director. He has been the chairman of
the board of supervisors of Hanhua Guarantee since August 2009.

Prior to that, he had been holding various positions in Loncin Group
and its subsidiaries from October 1998 to August 2004, including
the chief accountant of Loncin Holdings and the director of finance
department of Chongging Loncin Industry (Group) Co., Ltd (EE
BET%¥ (£8) AR2AR) and Chongging Construction Loncin
Motorcycle Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (EERREEEHLELER
R A]).

Mr. Li obtained his junior college diploma in industrial accountancy
from Sichuan Radio and TV University (P0)I| EEEEAZ) in July
1986. Mr. Li is accredited as a senior accountant by Chongging
Municipal People’s Government.
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Mr. Zhou Daoxue, aged 49, has been the Supervisor of our
Company since March 2013. He joined the Group in August 2009
as the supervisor of Hanhua Guarantee.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has been the chairman of the
board of directors of Chongaging Yujiang Die-casting Co., Ltd (&
BRI BRERRAR]) since December 1999. Mr. Zhou was the
president of Chongging Yujiang Die-casting Plant (£ & 811 JER$5 )
from December 1991 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Zhonghua, aged 40, has been the Supervisor
of our Company since March 2013. The appointment of Mr.
Chen as Supervisor was approved by the meeting of employee
representatives of the Company on 13 March 2013. He joined the
Group in January 2005 and held various positions, including the
deputy general manager of the strategy development department
and general manager of the information and technology department.
In addition, he has been the supervisor of Hanhua Guarantee since
August 2009, and the standing deputy general manager of Sichuan
Micro-credit and deputy general manager of Sichuan Hanhua since
January 2013. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Chen worked for the
Chongging Wanzhou branch of Bank of China as a risk assessment
officer of risk management department.

Mr. Chen obtained his junior college degree in finance from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (7858 4%
KE&) in June 1995. He graduated from Chongqging Technology
and Business University (EE T#AZ) in June 2005, majoring in
accounting.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SREEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and as at the date of this REE2014F12A318 L FERBEARF
annual report the members of senior management are set out WAH SREREKEHINWT

98

below:

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
(appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Yan Dong

(appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Wang Dayong

(appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Cui Weilan

(appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan
(appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Luo Xiaobo

(appointed on 13 March 2013)
Ms. Li Jing

(appointed on 27 August 2014)
Mr. Ren Weidong

(appointed on 13 March 2013)
Mr. Liu Ruifeng

(appointed on 1 July 2013)
Mr. Cheng Xiaogin

(appointed on 1 July 2013)
Mr. Yuan Guoli

(appointed on 1 July 2013)
Ms. Wang Qi

(appointed on 1 July 2013)
Mr. Li Xuan

(appointed on 1 July 2013)
Mr. Xu Wei

(appointed on 1 July 2013)
Mr. Lin Ting

(appointed on 1 July 2013)
Mr. Jiang Jintang

(appointed on 1 July 2013)
Mr. Wang Dong

(appointed on 27 August 2014)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Zhang Guoxiang, aged 50, details about Mr. Zhang’s
biography are set out in page 85 of this Annual Report.

Mr. Yan Dong, aged 45, has been the vice president of the
Company since March 2013. He is in charge of the business
operations of our subsidiaries in Guangdong Province and Guangxi
Province. Mr. Yan joined the Group in May 2006 and held various
positions, including deputy general manager of risk management
department and vice president.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yan served in various positions in
Chongging Branch of China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. from October
2000 to April 2006, including the deputy general manager of the
corporate banking department. He worked at Chongging Branch of
China Construction Bank Corporation from July 1991 to September
2000.

Mr. Yan obtained his bachelor's degree in engineering from
Sichuan Industrial College (PUJI| T £%) (currently known as
Xihua University (FAZ£ X2)) in July 1991. He obtained his EMBA
degree from Guanghua School of Management of Peking University
in January 20183.

Mr. Wang Dayong, aged 48, has been the vice president of
the Company since March 2013. He is in charge of the financial
marketing headquarter of the Company and the business operations
of our subsidiaries in Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei Province and Shandong
Province. Mr. Wang joined the Group in October 2006 and held
various positions, including chief credit marketing officer and vice
president.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang held various positions in
China Securities Co., Ltd. from September 1998, including the
general manager of innovation business department of investment
banking headquarters. Prior to that, he had worked at the Planning
Department of Liaoning Branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited from July 1988 to September 1998.
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Mr. Wang obtained his master’s degree in international finance from
the department of international economics of Liaoning University
in July 1998. He is currently attending an EMBA program jointly
held by National Taiwan University and Fudan University. He
is also accredited as a senior economist by the Appraisal and
Approval Committee for Professional & Technical Competence of
the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China.

Mr. Cui Weilan, aged 43, has been the vice president of the
Company since March 2013. He is in charge of the risk management
headquarters, human resources headquarters and administrative
management headquarters of our Company. Mr. Cui joined the
Group in June 2006 and served in various positions, including vice
president, chief legal officer and secretary of the board of directors.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cui had been a practicing solicitor
of Hebei Jimin Law Firm (3t 7 R 2 AN E A7) from 1999 to 2006
and had worked for Hebei Management Cadre College of Political
Science and Law (A1t BUEE B # &2 Ft) (currently known as Hebei
Professional College of Political Science and Law (] 1t BUZ B % £
B)) from July 1995 to March 2007.

Mr. Cui obtained his bachelor’s degree in law from the department
of political of Southwest Normal University (currently known as
Southwest University (FAEI A E2)) in June 1995. He is also accredited
as a practicing solicitor by the Ministry of Justice of the PRC and
as an associate professor in law by Hebei Title Reform Leadership
Committee Bureau (AbERTE M E EE /). He completed the
postgraduate program in economic law from Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences in September 2003 and obtained his MBA degree
from China Europe International Business School (71 Bl BRI 5 £
B) in September 2012.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Zhou Xiaochuan, aged 40, has been the vice president of
our Company since March 2013. He is in charge of the business
operations of our subsidiaries in Shanghai, Jiangsu Province and
Anhui Province. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in 2008 and held various
positions, including chief financial officer. He has also been the vice
president of Hanhua Guarantee since January 2013.

From March 1999 to December 2004 and May 2007 to February
2008, he served in various positions in Loncin Group and its
subsidiaries, including the deputy general manager of strategy
improvement department and the assistant manager of domestic
business operation department of Chongging Loncin Industry
(Group) Co., Ltd. (EEREZTX (£8) BRA
general manager of Hunan Jinlong Guangyang Motorcycle Co., Ltd.
(HEI SR Y5 EEFE B A R A B]) and the vice president of Chongaing
Jinlong Technology Group Co., Ltd. (EEERIEEEER A ).
He worked for Tibet New Zhufeng Motorcycle Co., Ltd. (FRiE T Ik
% FEFEE A BR A 7)) as the deputy general manager from September
2005 to April 2007.

7)), the assistant to

Mr. Zhou obtained his junior college degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in June 1995.

Mr. Luo Xiaobo, aged 35, has been the vice president of the
Company since March 2013. He is in charge of the business
operations of our subsidiaries in Chongqging, Guizhou Province,
Hubei Province and Hunan Province. Mr. Luo joined the Group
in November 2004 and held various positions, including chief
operating officer. He has also been the vice president of Hanhua
Guarantee since January 2013.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo worked for Chongqging Huifeng
Property Assets Evaluation Co., Ltd (& EJE 2 5 ih & + 0 & & 7T h
BREMERTR]) from June 2004 to October 2004 and Chongging
Boma Property Assets Evaluation Co., Ltd. (BEESATERE = LT
i BBR AR from July 2002 to June 2004.

Mr. Luo obtained his bachelor’s degree in mechanical design
and manufacturing and business administration from Southwest
Agricultural University (757 2 % A 28) (currently known as Southwest
University (FAFSAE) in July 2002.
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Ms. Li Jing, aged 44, has been the vice president of the Company
since August 2014. Before joining the Group, Ms. Li was the
translator and secretary to the director general of ZRAE AR
‘A A], the sales manager of Hitachi Electric(H 37 % £8)Beijing office,
the assistant to the representative of Sumitomo Mitsui Banking
Corporation ({¥&#277)Shenyang representative office, the human
resources director of Genpact (Dalian) Co., Ltd. (F{A% (K3&)

BBRA7F]) and the senior vice president of the human resources

department of BMW Brilliance Automotive Ltd.

Ms. Li graduated from the foreign language department of Liaoning
University majored in Japanese in 1992. She is currently studying a
master’s degree in human resources at Renmin University of China.

Mr. Ren Weidong, aged 37, has been the financial director and
general manager of capital finance department of our Company
since March 2013. He is in charge of capital finance headquarters
and administrative office of our Company. Mr. Ren joined the Group
in February 2009 and had served as the general manager of the
finance headquarters of Hanhua Guarantee.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ren served as the manager of
financing department of Duke Seals (Chongging) Ltd. (EEHt=
SBEZEHHREAT) from October 2005 to January 2009. He
served in various positions in Loncin Group and its subsidiaries
from July 2000 to May 2005, including the head of the financial
section of Hunan Jinlong Guangyang Motorcycle Co., Ltd (47
2K ISEFEE B R A F]), the chief financial officer of Chongging
Jinlong Technology Group Co., Ltd. (EE YRR EBERE A F)
and the chief financial officer and accountant of Chongging Jinlong
Motorcycle Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (EESEEILHERIEFRAF).

Mr. Ren obtained his bachelor’s degree in auditing from Hangzhou
Institute of Electronics and Engineering (fi/N&EF T #2f7)
(currently known as Hangzhou Dianzi University (f1)N&E F&HE K
E)) in July 1999. He was also accredited as a junior accountant in
May 2000 by Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.
He was admitted as an affiliated member of The Association of
International Accountants in April 2008.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Liu Ruifeng, aged 49, has been the risk director of the
Company since July 2013. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 2012.
He had served as the chief risk officer of Hanhua Guarantee and the
general manager of risk management department of our Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked for Washington Mutual,
Inc., (later acquired by JPMorgan Chase & Co.) from August 2004
to July 2012. During that period, he joined the Chinese investment
project of JPMorgan Chase & Co. in July 2009 and was seconded
in China. During the period from August 1996 to August 2004,
Mr. Liu worked for Household Credit Services, Inc. (later acquired
by HSBC (U.S.)) as assistant risk manager, the Fruit of the Loom
Company as the senior forecast analyst in U.S. and the Providian
Company as the senior statistic analyst in U.S.

Mr. Liu obtained his doctorate degree in mathematics from Michigan
State University in U.S. in August 1996. Prior to that, he obtained
his master’s degree in Science and bachelor’s degree in Science
(majoring in computational mathematics) from Nankai University in
June 1990 and July 1987, respectively.

Mr. Cheng Xiaoqin, aged 37, has been the marketing director
of the Company since July 2013. He is in charge of the business
operations of our subsidiaries in Sichuan Province, Shanxi Province,
Gansu Province and Yunnan Province. Mr. Cheng joined the Group
in December 2004 and had served as the general manager of
risk management department. He had served as the marketing
director of Hanhua Guarantee and has been the general manager of
Sichuan Micro-credit since January 2013 and the general manager
of Sichuan Hanhua since 2012.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng worked successively for
Chongaging Wanzhou sub-branch and the business department of
Chongging branch of Bank of China from July 2000 to March 2005.

Mr. Cheng obtained his bachelor’s degree in currency banking from
the Economics and Trade Faculty of Nanjing Agriculture University.
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Mr. Yuan Guoli, aged 45, has been the marketing director
of the Company since January 2013. He is in charge of the
business operations of our subsidiaries in Liaoning Province,
Heilongjiang Province and Jilin Province. Mr. Yuan joined the Group
in October 2006 and had served as the marketing director of
Hanhua Guarantee and the deputy general manager and general
manager of Liaoning Hanhua successively.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yuan worked for the Liaoning office of
China Huarong Asset Management Corporation from March 2000 to
September 2006. From August 1991 to February 2000, he worked
for the industrial credit department and asset risk management
department of Liaoning branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank
of China Limited.

Mr. Yuan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in industrial economics
from the Department of Industrial Management of Liaoning
University in July 1991.

Ms. Wang Qi, aged 43, joined the Group in July 2010 as the
marketing director of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Ms.
Wang served as the senior deputy general manager of Fullerton
Investment & Credit Guarantee Co. Ltd. (B& & & ZRERAR A
a]) from July 2009 and the deputy general manager of Chengdu
Small-enterprise Credit Guarantee Co., Ltd. (B &B/ N> 215 FAIER
AR A F]) from July 2005 to July 2008.

Ms. Wang obtained her junior college degree in accounting from
Sichuan University in July 1992 and obtained her bachelor’s
degree in accounting from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics in June 1999. In June 2006, she obtained her master’s
degree in business administration from Sichuan University. She was
accredited as a certified public accountant in 1996 and obtained
the advanced level of speciality in accounting in 2006. She was
honored as “Sichuan First Top Ten Experts in Guarantee Industry”
in October 2007.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Li Xuan, aged 41, has been the sales director of our Company
since July 2013. He is in charge of the business management
headquarters. Mr. Li joined our Group in July 2011 and served as
the general manager of Sichuan Micro-credit and general manager
of the credit market department of Hanhua Guarantee.

Prior to joining the Group, from April 2001 to June 2011, Mr. Li
worked for the Chongqging branch of China Pacific Life Insurance
Co., Ltd. whose shares are listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 02601) and Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
601601) and served as the manager of information and technology
department, chief operating officer, manager of the relationship
department, the general manager of the management department
of group insurance business and the president of the group
insurance business.

From January 1999 to April 2001, Mr. Li worked for the subsidiary
of China Life Insurance Company whose shares are listed on on
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2628) and Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 601628) in Chongging. Prior to that,
Mr. Li worked for Shapingba sub-branch of Chongqging branch of
People’s Insurance Company of China (renamed as Shapingba sub-
branch of Chongqging branch of Zhongbao Life Insurance Company
Limited) from September 1997.

Mr. Li graduated from Southwest Normal University (75 =2 A &5 A 22)
(currently known as Southwest University (785 A Z2) with a junior
college degree in computer application in July 1993. He served
as expert, system engineer and database engineer of Microsoft
Corporate in the U.S., database engineer of InFormix company and
server system expert of IBM company in U.S..

Mr. Xu Wei, aged 38, has been the information and technology
director of the Company since July 2013. He is in charge of the
information management headquarter and serves as the general
manager of the information management headquarter. Mr. Xu joined
the Group in July 2012 as the general manager of the information
management department of Hanhua Guarantee.

ZEELE 0 M5E 0 B2013F7 ARBEER
NEIHEIEBE - B B EKEEAT -
EHAR0I1FETAMALREER  EEIH
BRI/ EEREgE  MEE
REBEHDEEMSBRLE -

FEMAREE 2R - ZHEAR2001F4 A
E2011F6 AHIM - R B AT+ ASRK
BRMDBRA A (ZR AN E B
BT (B9 : 02601) M EBESR S
Fr b (B AR5 : 601601)) EED A
A TIE - B BRI EaIE - i8R
B EPRISHEE  EREKEERE
IR ERERBRESSIERS -

= A 19994 1 A 200194 A iRk -
FHRREASRBEROERAR (ZAFRK
MREBE AT L™ (BRHRE - 2628)
REBEFRZRSGH LW (BRMHAR:
601628)) EEM F A G TR Tt 2
A ZEHABI1997FOAR  EREAR
REBAREED RAPFHER AR (1
ERABPRASRBBRAREEMDIT
e /NP

FHREMIBFTAEENTAEAIE K
Z(RABARASE) VRS EHREREE
ERIEA - B EEMBAFER - &
SGTRREN - Bk E TARAD - ZEBInFormix
Company#IiEEER & EBIBMA 7 AR
REAGERERMEL -

BB E > 388 0 H2013F7 AREMEA
AEIMEERITAE - hEEEEEEA
B WERTEEEEATNALIE - Bl
ER2012F7 AMAREE - EEHEZE
RIS B E IR IPABACIE o

Annual Report 2014
—B-mEER

105



106

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES EEkaEEE

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu worked for China International
Capital Corporation Limited from December 2008 to July 2012, IBM
Global Services (China) Co. Limited from May 2006 to November
2008, and the People’s Insurance Company (Group) of China
Limited (F B ARSZBR AR A7), currently renamed as PICC Life
Insurance Company Limited from July 2005 to May 2006.

Mr. Xu obtained his bachelor’s degree in computer science and
technology from Shandong University of Technology in July 1999
and obtained his master’s degree in computer software and theory
from Shandong University in December 2001. In July 2005, he
obtained his doctorate degree in computer software and theory
from Institute of Software, Chinese Academy of Sciences (4 B%}

S ST IT).

Mr. Lin Ting, aged 42, has been the operating director and general
manager of the operating management department of the Company
since July 2013. Mr. Lin joined the Group in July 2012 and served
as the deputy general manager of credit market department and
general manager of operating department of Hanhua Guarantee..

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lin worked for JP Morgan Chase &
Co. from June 2007 to July 2012 and served as the risk manager
in the customer account management department of JPM. During
that period, he joined the China Investment Program of JPMorgan
Chase & Co. in November 2008 for two years in China. Mr. Lin
worked for Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) from September 2005
to July 2007 and held various management functions in risk
management department. He worked for Giant Eagle Inc. from June
1998 to September 2005 and held various analysis positions and
management positions.

Mr. Lin obtained his master’s degree in MSIA business administration
(majoring in operations research) from Carnegie Mellon University
in May 1998 and obtained his bachelor’s degree in operations
research from Statistics Operations department of Fudan University
in July 1995.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Jiang Jintang, aged 44, has been the commercial director of
the Company since June 2013. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in June
2012 and served in various positions, including the general manager
of the overseas business department and the general manager of
financial cooperation headquarters of Hanhua Guarantee.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Jiang served as the operating officer
of World Bank Group International Finance Corporation (IFC) since
April 2007 for approximately five years and served as the business
associate of AIG from October 2004 to April 2007. From July 1993
to October 2001, he served in various positions in Chongging
Branch of China Construction Bank Corporation whose shares are
listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 939), including
the chief of credit management committee of operation department.

Mr. Jiang obtained his bachelor’s degree in management engineering
from Tianjin University in July 1993 and obtained his master’s
degree in economics (majoring in finance) from Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics in January 2000. He obtained
his MPA degree from Harvard University in June 2004.

Mr. Wang Dong, aged 48, has been the market director of
the Company since August 2014. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang served as an engineer at the Electric Supply and
Autonomous Control Research Facility at the Logistical Engineering
University of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army, deputy general
manager of the retail banking department, general manager of
the interbank department, director of the credit card center of
headquarters of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited, deputy
general manager of the market department, general manager of the
industry cooperation department, general manager of the innovative
business department of China UnionPay Merchant Services Co.,
Ltd., vice president of the market acceptance department, vice
president of the innovative business center, general manager of the
commercial cooperation department of Tonglian Internet Services
Holding Co., Ltd., executive officer and chief risk officer of Shanghai
Tonghua Commercial Factoring Company.

Mr. Wang graduated from the faculty of Automation from the
Logistical Engineering University of the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army in 1986 and holds a bachelor’s degree from the Logistical
Engineering University of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. The Board currently comprises one Executive Director,
eight non-executive Directors and five independent non-executive
Directors. The Board has adopted the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2014, the Company has complied
with the Code Provisions except for deviation from Code Provision
A.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
overseeing the Group’s strategic decisions and monitoring our
business and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has established four
Board committees, including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the nomination and remuneration committee (the
“Nomination and Remuneration Committee”), the strategic
investment committee (the “Strategic Investment Committee”) and
the executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) (together,
the “Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of
one executive Director, eight non-executive Directors and five
independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Lin Feng, an Executive Director, resigned as an Executive
Director of the Company on 17 March 2015.

Details of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

From the Listing Date up to the period ended 31 December 2014,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Each
of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are
invited to serve on the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial,
business family or other material/relevant relationship among the
members of the Board, except that Mr. Tu Jianhua is a cousin of
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang, both are Non-executive Director of the Company.
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e Fﬁ:séxiﬁﬂ:

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

A summary of training received by the Directors in 2014 is as

follows:

Name of Directors

ExpS

ABEBEERRE

FIBEEFEN2014FERZFIIBRMT

Attending Training Contents
EZREIRE

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang
Mr. Lin Feng
(resigned on 17 March 2015)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Duan Xiaohua

Ms. Liu Jiaoyang

Ms. Liu Tingrong

Ms. Wang Fangfei

Mr. Feng Yongxiang

Mr. Zhou Xinyu

Mr. Liu Bolin

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Bai Qinxian
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu
Mr. Qian Shizheng
Mr. Ng Leung Sing
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin

Notes:

A:  Trainings on corporate governance of listed companies, directors’

duties and the relevant matters organized by the Stock Exchange or

securities regulatory authorities;

BITEE
RBIEESTAE B:C
RS &
(20156317 B EHT) C
HPITESE :
REBESLE B:C
ERRREE S A B-C
2EH T C
Bl iz 4 C
FrEFELL C
RS FESE C
BRFEE C
2iER e A4 C
BUIBITESE :
HRE LA B Speakerx i - C
BRI E C
S A A Speakerxis B C
REBRE B:C
=MW EAE B:C
A: Hﬂiﬁfrié FEEE RIS AR E S
NAIMBEES  EZHERA@EE
Du :
B &E UK CEEREEFITEMNEES

B: Special training, seminars and conferences on topics such as

economics, finance and corporate management;

C: Reading materials related to requirements on corporate governance,
directors’ duties and internal risk management; and attending

seminars, forums and conferences, etc.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (“Mr. Zhang”) is
currently performing both the roles of chairman and president of
the Group. Taking into account that Mr. Zhang has been serving
in the Group since its establishment in 2004 and the key roles of
Mr. Zhang in the senior management team, as well as his high
commitment to the setting up and management of the business
operation and business decision of the Company and the strategic
development plans of the Group, the Board considered that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer being performed by
Mr. Zhang enables more effective and efficient overall business
planning, decision making and implementation thereof by the
Group. The Board is of the opinion that it is in the best interests
of the Group for Mr. Zhang to assume the dual roles of chairman
and chief executive officer. In order to maintain good corporate
governance and fully comply with the Code Provision, the Board will
regularly review the need to appoint different individuals to perform
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer separately.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), the Directors shall be elected at
the general meetings for a term of no more than three years,
and may be re-elected and re-appointed upon the expiry of such
term. The Company has implemented an effective mechanism
regarding the appointment of new Directors. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will first discuss the matters in relation to
the appointment of new Directors, and then present to the Board
their proposals, which will be subject to the approval at the general
meeting.

The Company has entered into a service contract or a letter of
appointment with each of the Directors (including Non-executive
Directors). The service contracts are for a term of three years.

Regular Board Meetings

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Board should
hold no less than four regular meetings annually, to be convened by
the chairman of the Board. Notices of not less than fourteen days
will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors
with the opportunities to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other committee meetings, the meeting notice, the agenda and
accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the Directors or
committee members within reasonable time frame to ensure that
they have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings.

Meetings of the Board shall be held only if more than half of the
Directors are present, except for when the Board is considering
the matters of connected transaction as provided for under the
Articles of Association.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings will be
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time frame after the date on which
the meeting is held.

From the Listing Date up to the period ended 31 December 2014,

18 Board meetings were held and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors

e &\Aﬁﬂ:

SERLARERRRANR ARG R
BRGEEEREBENEENE TR
BHIORE  BEEFRNNETHE
EEFHERREANEROEHRET
ﬁ$A/H S ELSGTEES 1o
RESEE  UREDESE -

B ™ HBEE Z=2014F12H318 1t 8
Ml Z2FegfgigiEseex LER
EEHREZEeaNBRENTE

Attendance/Number of
Board meetings held

EEgE HEBETZEEEEERH
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang REIFESTAE 18/18
Mr. Lin Feng MER A 15/18
(resigned on 17 March 2015) (FA2015F3 A17HEHT)
Mr. Tu Jianhua BREBESE 14/18
Mr. Duan Xiaohua REEES A 16/18
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang BIEH 2+ 15/18
Ms. Liu Tingrong ElF53-Regun 17/18
Ms. Wang Fangfei FHFERL 17/18
Mr. Feng Yongxiang KT ST E 15/18
Mr. Zhou Xinyu JEFrF R 14/18
Mr. Liu Bolin ZIEREE 13/18
Mr. Bai Qinxian Bk EE 13/18
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu B S A 13/18
Mr. Qian Shizheng S B A 12/18
Mr. Ng Leung Sing REEhAE 11/18
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin R ERE 12/18
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Since the Listing Date and up to the period ended 31 December
2014, 3 general meetings of the Company were held and the
attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is set out
in the table below:

Name of Director

B -™HEEEE2014F12A318 1L
Mo ARAREETINWRAS - ERIES
HERREREHERENTE

Attendance/Number of
general meetings held

EEng HEBETZBRRAGRE
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang SR B SE A 3/3
Mr. Lin Feng eI E

(resigned on 17 March 2015) (72015F3 A17HEHT) 3/3
Mr. Tu Jianhua RIS E 3/3
Mr. Duan Xiaohua ERREES A 3/3
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang BIEES L+ 3/3
Ms. Liu Tingrong Rzt 3/3
Ms. Wang Fangfei FHFELT 3/3
Mr. Feng Yongxiang FSKEE S 3/3
Mr. Zhou Xinyu B FrLE 3/3
Mr. Liu Bolin R e E 3/3
Mr. Bai Qinxian BRERE 3/3
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BRBRLEE 3/3
Mr. Qian Shizheng BB A 3/3
Mr. Ng Leung Sing REE%LE 2/3
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin R RE 3/3

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of practice
for carrying out securities transactions by the Company’s Directors
and Supervisors. Having made specific enquiry with all members of
the Board and Supervisors, they have confirmed their compliance
with the relevant standards stipulated in the Model Code during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Duties performed by the Board and management

The Board shall report to the general meeting and exercise the
following powers, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), appointment of Directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s senior
management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i)  To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(i)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iliy  To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(iv) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
Directors; and

(v) To review the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
for formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
note 7 to the financial statements.

The details of the senior management are disclosed in the section
headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in this

annual report.

Remuneration paid to the senior management (including one
Director) for the year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Remuneration Range (RMB)

BEENEREEENT M
AAFERHCAEMEERSRERE

FMOBRERTEA R EBPHENER -
ﬁizomimﬂm HIEFE  SEENH
[EIE N e e

EREEBENFAERBEBERAFTR(E
= EEkegEERE] -

HZE2014F12A31BLEFE BN FaHk
EIEE (RE—RES) WEMOT :

Number of People

FEEE (ARY) AB
Over 2,000,000 2,000,0007T 2 LA E 3
1,000,000 to 1,999,999 1,000,0007T 21,999,999t 10
Below 1,000,000 1,000,0007TEA ™ 4
DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE EEEERE

On 19 June 2014, the Company has arranged appropriate insurance KATER2014F6 A10R et EE S
in respect of legal action against its Directors. REAERFABE B S ORE -

BOARD COMMITTEES EELETY

AUDIT COMMITTEE EitEEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Directors, namely Mr. Qian
Shizheng (independent non-executive Director), Ms. Liu Jiaoyang
(non-executive Director) and Mr. Yuan Xiaobin (independent

non-executive Director). Currently, Mr. Qian Shizheng is the

chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The main responsibility of the Audit Committee is to facilitate
the communication, supervision and verification in respect of
the Company’s internal and external auditing. Its main functions
and powers are, including but not limited to, proposing the
appointment or replacement of the external auditors, considering
and making suggestions on their remunerations, resignation
or dismissal; overseeing the Company’s internal audit system
and its implementation, and reviewing the group’s financial and
accounting policies and practices; auditing the financial information
of the Company and its disclosure; reviewing the Company’s
financial monitoring, internal monitoring and risk management
systems, auditing material connected transactions, ensuring that
the management has fulfilled its duties to establish an effective
internal control system; examining the Letter of Audit Description
provided by the external auditors to the management, any material
queries raised by the auditors to the management in respect of
the accounting records, financial accounts or monitoring systems
and the management’s response; and formulating whistle-blowing
policies and systems, etc.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Since the Listing Date and up to the period ended 31 December
2014, 2 meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The matters
under discussion and examination included:

1. The interim report and the combined financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2014;

2.  The interim report (draft) and the announcement of interim
results (draft) of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
2014;

3. The proposal in relation to reviewing the “Assessment Report
on the Internal Control of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*
for 1-3 Quarters of 2014”.
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The attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set out
in the table below:

EBHEBEMKE HEEHEOERAR
T

Attendance/Number of

Name Audit Committee meetings held

i
mE BETZENEESERRE
Mr. Qian Shizheng S BT A 2/2
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang 2SS+ 2/2
Mr. Yuan Xiaobin =W E 1/2
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION REEZEyMEES

COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises three
Directors, namely Mr. Deng Zhaoyu (independent non-executive
Director), Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman and executive Director)
and Mr. Bai Qinxian (independent non-executive Director).
Currently, Mr. Deng Zhaoyu is the chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee.

The main responsibility of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is to assist the Board to formulate the recruitment
procedures and assessment standards for Directors and senior
management of the Company and conduct preliminary assessment
on the qualifications and conditions of candidates to be appointed
within its area of competence; study and formulate the remuneration
plans, performance appraisal systems and incentive schemes of
Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the Company,
make suggestions to the Board and supervise the implementation
of plans and systems.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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Since the Listing Date and up to the period ended 31 December
2014, 2 meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
were held. The matters under discussion and examination included:

1. To nominate Ms. Li Jing (¥&) as a candidate for the
Vice-president (Deputy General Manager) of the Company;

2. To nominate Mr. Wang Dong () as a candidate for the Chief
Marketing Officer of the Company;

3. To examine the structure, number of members and composition
of the Board of the Company.

The attendance record of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee members is set out in the table below:

e &\Aﬁﬂ:
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1 BRRERFEZXIR/ARAEAH
(BlAREIR) REA ¢
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R

Attendance/Number of
Nomination and Remuneration

Name Committee meetings held

HE
A EETREEFHEESERARE
Mr. Deng Zhaoyu BRERLE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang SR BT ST 2/2
Mr. Bai Qinxian =kt 2/2
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the diversification of the Board
is beneficial for enhancing the performance of the Company.
Therefore, the Company has established the Policy on
Diversification of Members of the Board to ensure that when
determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider the diversification of members of the Board from various
aspects, including but not limited to age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
appointments to the Board shall follow the principle of meritocracy,
taking into account objectively the benefits of diversification
of members of the Board when considering the candidates.
The candidates of the Board are selected based on a range of
diversified perspectives, including but not limited to age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will disclose the
composition of the Board annually in the Corporate Governance
Report and monitor the implementation of the policy. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee will review the policy
when appropriate to ensure the effectiveness of the policy.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will discuss any
amendment that may need to make and make recommendations
to the Board for approval.
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STRATEGIC INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Strategic Investment Committee comprises three Directors,
namely Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman and executive Director),
Mr. Tu Jianhua (non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhou Xinyu
(non-executive Director). Currently, Mr. Zhang Guoxiang is the
chairman of the Strategic Investment Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Strategic Investment Committee
are to examine and advise the Board on our long-term development
strategies and major investment decisions.

The written terms of reference of the Strategic Investment
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

Since the Listing Date and up to the period ended 31 December
2014, 1 meeting of the Strategic Investment Committee was held.

The matters under discussion and examination included:

1. The proposed public offer of corporate bonds of the Company.
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members is set out in the table below: Tk -
Attendance/Number of
Strategic Investment
Name Committee meetings held
b
HHE ERTERREZEFTERNREY
Mr. Zhang Guoxiang SREIRE L 1/1
Mr. Tu Jianhua RIS E 1/1
Mr. Zhou Xinyu BT Fh4E 1/1
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Executive Committee, which
comprises eight Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Guoxiang (Chairman
and executive Director), Mr. Lin Feng (executive Director, resigned
on 17 March 2015), Mr. Tu Jianhua (Non-executive Director), Ms.
Liu Tingrong (Non-executive Director), Ms. Wang Fangfei (Non-
executive Director), Mr. Feng Yongxiang (Non-executive Director),
Ms. Liu Jiaoyang (Non-executive Director), Mr. Duan Xiaohua (Non-
executive Director). Currently, Mr. Zhang Guoxiang is the chairman
of the Executive Committee.

According to the Rules of Procedures of the Executive Committee
of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd., the primary responsibilities
of the Executive Committee are to vote on issues relating to the
daily operations of the Company and specific matters authorized by
the Board within its terms of reference, and to monitor and provide
feedback for the implementation of matters which have already
been approved by voting.

No meeting of Executive Committee was held during the year ended
31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows.

The senior management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 153 to 154 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
for maintaining an adequate internal control system to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Company’s assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has conducted
a comprehensive assessment on the Company’s internal control
system and reviewed its efficiency. The assessment covered the
major areas of the Group’s operation and management, including
internal environment, risk management and assessment, control
activities, information and communication and internal supervision.
No significant flaws were found and no material faults occurred. The
Board is of the opinion that the Group has maintained an effective
internal control in all material aspects and that the qualification and
experience of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting staff
and the Group’s budget for such purposes are adequate.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total remuneration paid
or payable to the Company’s auditors, KPMG and other accounting
firms, for audit and audit related services amounted to a total of
RMB11.0 million.

In addition, KPMG was engaged by the Company as the reporting
accountants for our initial public offering, for which the total
remuneration paid or payable to KPMG amounted to a total of
RMB4.98 million for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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An analysis on the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG and
remuneration paid or payable to other accounting firms for the
provision of annual auditing services to subsidiaries is as follows:

Services by the Auditors

ENRENTESRGHAMELALRAT
S FRARIRRHFERITRBOE MG 6D
SIS DI

Amount (RMB)

BREEMREER S (ARK)
Auditing services: ZERT -
Annual auditing services FEZERTE 5,200,000.00
Non-auditing services: HZERTE
Services in relation to the BB TR ERE TR 4,980,000.00
reporting accountant
for listing
Other audit related services HiZEAHEN R 778,000.00
Total et 10,958,000.00

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Cui Weilan, one of our joint company secretaries of the
Company, was responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters and ensuring that the Board policies and
procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and regulations were
followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engaged Ms. Lai Siu Kuen, a senior manager of
KCS Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial service provider),
as another joint company secretary to assist Mr. Cui to discharge
his duties as company secretary of the Company. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Lin Ting, the
investor relations supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Cui and Ms. Lai have undertaken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training respectively in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of timely and
nonselective disclosure of the Company’s information, which will
enable shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides opportunity
for shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairman of the Company and the chairman of the Board
Committee of the Company will attend the annual general meeting
to answer shareholders’ questions. The external auditors of the
Company will also attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
contents of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and the
independence of auditors.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.hanhua.com, where up-to-date information on
the Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at the general meetings
of the Company, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.
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CONVENING AND PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

According to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, when
an extraordinary general meeting is requested in writing by a
shareholder individually or shareholders collectively holding at least
10% (inclusive of 10%) of the outstanding shares with voting rights
of the Company, the Board shall convene an extraordinary general
meeting within two months.

According to Article 67 of the Articles of Association, when the
Company is to hold an annual general meeting, shareholder(s)
holding at least 3% (inclusive of 3%) of the shares of the Company
with voting rights shall have the right to put forward temporary
proposals in writing to the Company, and the Company shall list
the issues in the temporary proposal that fall within the scope of
responsibility of the general meeting in the meeting agenda. The
temporary proposal submitted by the shareholder shall be subject
to the following conditions:

1. the contents shall not contravene any requirements of laws
and regulations, and shall fall with the business scope of the
Company and the scope of responsibilities of the general
meeting;

2. the proposal shall cover a clear subject with specific issues to
be resolved; and

3. the proposal shall be in writing and submitted or delivered to
the Board 10 days before the general meeting takes place.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
candidate nomination procedures for Directors are available on the
website of the Company.
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ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries
about the Company to the Board could email their enquiries
to linting@hanhua.com or mail their enquiries in writing to the
Company’s principal places of business in the PRC at 13/F, East
Tower, World Financial Center, No. 1 East Third Ring Middle Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has made
certain amendments to the Articles of Association. The amendments
to the Articles of Association were proposed at the Board meeting
held on 24 August 2014 and were considered and approved at the
Third Extraordinary General Meeting convened on 13 October 2014.
The details of the amendments were disclosed in the circular dated
27 August 2014, the supplemental notice of the Third Extraordinary
General Meeting in 2014 dated 24 September 2014 and the
announcement dated 13 October 2014.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board are pleased to present the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 (the “Financial Statement”).

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the PRC on 13 March 2013 as a
company with limited liability. The Company’s shares (the “Shares”)
were listed on the Stock Exchange on 19 June 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a credit-based guarantee and SME financing
solutions provider in China with an exclusive focus on SMEs and
microenterprises across China. The Group offers a variety of
credit-based financial solutions to serve the financing and business
needs of SMEs and microenterprises under two business lines:
credit guarantee and SME lending. The scope of business of the
Company as reflected on the business license includes: investment
business, investment management and investment advisory.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the Consolidated Income Statement on page 155 of
this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has made resolution on the dividend payment plan
of RMB10 cents (including tax) per Share for the period ended
28 February 2015 (2013: nil) to the Shareholders. The final
dividend plan is still subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).
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TAX RELIEF (H SHAREHOLDERS)
Non-resident enterprise shareholders

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, effective
on 1 January 2008, and other related provision of implementation,
the Company shall withhold the enterprise income tax at the rate of
10% for non-resident enterprise Shareholders whose name appear
on the register of H Shareholders.

Non-resident individual shareholders

Pursuant to the Circular (Guo Shui Han No. [2011] 348) issued
by the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC, the Company
shall withhold and pay the non-resident personal income tax for the
non-resident H shareholders. Non-resident individual shareholders
are entitled to enjoy relevant preferential tax treatment provided
that the countries in which they reside in have entered into double
taxation treaties with the PRC and there are relevant provisions of
taxation arrangement between China and Hong Kong and Macau.

Where the countries in which non-resident individual H Shareholders
reside have entered into taxation treaties with the PRC and the
tax rates stipulated therein are lower than 10%, the Company will
apply on behalf of these individual shareholders to seek entitlement
of relevant treatment under the taxation treaties according to
the requirements of the Circular of the State Administration of
Taxation on Printing and Distributing the Administrative Measures
for Non-Residential Enjoyment of the Treatment in the Taxation
Agreement (Trial) (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No. 124).

For Hong Kong residents, Macau residents and non-resident
individual H Shareholders who are residents of the countries or
regions that have entered into taxation treaties with the PRC with
the tax rate stipulated at 10%, the Company shall withhold the
personal income tax at the rate of 10%.
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For those non-residential individual H Shareholders who are
residents of the countries or regions that have entered into taxation
treaties with the PRC stipulating tax rates higher than 10% but
lower than 20%, the Company shall withhold the personal income
tax at the applicable tax rates stipulated in the relevant taxation
treaties.

For those non-residential H shareholders who are residents of the
countries or regions that have entered into taxation treaties with
the PRC stipulating the tax rate at 20%, who are residents of the
countries or regions that have not entered into any taxation treaties,
or otherwise, the Company shall withhold the personal income tax
at the rate of 20%.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the last
four financial years are set out on page 7 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The estimated net proceeds from initial public offering along with
the partial exercise of the over-allotment options amounted to
approximately RMB1,438.6 million, which shall be applied in the
manners set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 3 June
2014, of which approximately 70% of the funds were used to
increase the capital base of our micro and small loan business,
20% were used to increase the capital base of our credit guarantee
business and 10% were used for product development and working
capital.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, 70% of the funds were
used by the Company to increase the capital base of our micro and
small loan business, 20% were used to increase the capital base
of our credit guarantee business and 10% were used for product
development and working capital.
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MAJOR BANKING PARTNERS

The five major banking partners of the Group each provided 54.9%
of the bank financing we guaranteed. The largest banking partners
accounted for 16.5% of the total financing the Group guaranteed.

Due to the Group’s business nature, the Group does not have
major suppliers.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Our customers primarily include SMEs, microenterprises and
individuals. For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue derived
from our five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of our
total net fee and interest income.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any Shareholders
(who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interests in the
Group’s five largest customers.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in note 19 of the notes to financial statements in this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in pages 159 to
160 of the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” in the
financial statements in this annual report.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on pages 159 to 160 in the
“Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” of this annual report
and in note 27 of the notes to financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As a holding company, the Company’s actual profit is generated
from the dividend of its subsidiaries. Due to the time needed for the
preparation of financial statements by the subsidiaries, the actual
distributable profit for 2014 was unable to be distributed to the
Company before 31 December 2014, and therefore the balance of
the actual distributable profit of the Company as at 31 December
2014 was negative.

As the subsidiaries have distributed their profit for 2014 and
undistributed profit for the previous years in January to February
2015, respectively, the Board determined the distribution to the
shareholders of the Company will be made based on the actual
distributable profit as at 28 February 2015.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note 21 of the
notes to financial statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the Directors and Supervisors during the year ended
31 December 2014 and up to the date of this annual report are
set out in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received the annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of their independence, and
considered all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company on 17 February
2014 for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date,
subject to termination in accordance with their respective terms.
The service agreements may be renewed in accordance with our
articles of association and the applicable laws, rules or regulations.

Each independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment on 17 February 2014 for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date.

None of the Directors or the Supervisors has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EEEWE

AEEES EENSAEEBNFAE
HERAFREF EEREREEE]

— i -

BUFHTESNE L MER

R EMRAEIABK - KRR EKEE
BFIUFATESREBIUEMELNF
EHREK  TRAEEBBUIFNTESRY
RIBIANL ©

ESREERBEN

BERTEENIFATESTDN2014F2A
17TEBEARRRIRE AR - B L E B
At AH=F  HAIREE D A RAER
FTUKLE - REBZEARERRERRE
FUER - SRAVSOEIR T IAERT o

BB IERITEEHENR2014F2H17H
RITZTH THA LT HERT A=

_m

BRESREBRAR AT AR TR
R—E AT CRRBERSD) ML
BORTS &40 -

Annual Report 2014
—B-mEER

133



134

Report of the Board of Directors

EEEWRE

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors or the Supervisors has any material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
Group’s business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Except as disclosed in this annual report, during the year, none
of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the Company and
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an
interest in a business which causes or may cause any significant
competition with the business of the Group and any other conflicts
of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2014.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Under the remuneration policy of the Group, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, tenure, commitment, responsibilities and
performance (as the case may be) of our Directors, Supervisors and
the senior management, in assessing the amount of remuneration
payable to our Directors, Supervisors and the senior management.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group is required to participate in pension schemes organised
by the respective municipal governments of the PRC whereby
the Group is required to pay annual contributions for PRC based
employees at certain rate of the standard wages determined by the
relevant authorities in the PRC during the year. The Group has no
other material obligation for payment of retirement benefits to the
PRC based employees beyond the annual contributions described
above. The details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are
set out to note 5 to the financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, Supervisors and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in note 7 and note 8 of the
notes to financial statements in this annual report.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management” in this annual report, there was no change
to any of the information required to be disclosed in relation to any
Director pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and supervisors of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) which were required, (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(i) Interests in the Company

(i) RAEQTWER

Approximate  Approximate
percentage  percentage
in relevant in total
class of share share capital
Class of Nature of No. of EEERA ERE
Name of Shareholder Position share interests shares held Bz Y
RRE®E Bz R 5l EHtE EERGEE BAEIE  HMOEI
(Shares) (%) (%)° (%)?
Tu Jianhua™ Director Domestic Interests of controlled 1,472,458,628 42.93 32.01
REEN S Share corporation/others (Long position)
NER RErERER (#2)
Hith
Wang Fangfei® Director Domestic Interests of controlled 231,532,653 6.75 5.03
TEE S Share corporation (Long position)
NE R EERER (H8)
Zhang Guoxiang® Director Domestic Beneficial owner/ 273,038,709 7.96 5.94
REIFO EZ Share Interests of (Long position)
NER controlled (t8)
corporation
ERBEAAN/
AR
Liu Jiaoyang Director Domestic Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
2815 EZ Share EREEA (Long position)
NE R (48)
Liu Bolin® Director Domestic Interests of controlled 120,000,000 3.50 2.61
ZIERY EZ Share corporation (Long position)
NE R XA R (48)
Lin Feng Director Domestic Beneficial owner 2,068,742 0.06 0.04
Mg Bz Share ERBEEA (Long position)
(resigned on 17 March 2015) NER (178)
(201563 R17AET)
Zhou Daoxue Supervisor Domestic Beneficial owner 80,145,918 2.34 1.74
[FiEg Ez Share EREEAA (Long position)
NE R (H8)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Approximate  Approximate

percentage percentage

in relevant in total

class of share share capital

Class of Nature of No. of EEBRA ERE

Name of Shareholder Position share interests shares held Bl By

RRAE® B R A3 &R BHEME EERAYE R AR

(Shares) (%) (%) (%)°

Li Ruping Supervisor Domestic Beneficial owner 2,205,795 0.06 0.05
=mnE BEx Share BREEA (Long position)
NER (48)

Chen Zhonghua Supervisor Domestic Beneficial owner 441,159 0.01 0.01
Bz X Share EREEA (Long position)
NER (H8)

Notes: Mt -

Mr. Tu Jianhua directly holds 98% of the equity interest of
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”), which directly holds
98% of the equity interest of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin
Holdings”). Mr. Tu Jianhua also directly holds 2% of the remaining
equity interest of Loncin Holdings.

Accordingly, Mr. Tu Jianhua is deemed to be interested in the
1,202,188,780 domestic shares of the Company held by Loncin
Holdings. Based on the voting arrangement with Chongqing
Huitai Investment Co., Ltd. (“Huitai”), Mr. Tu Jianhua is deemed
to be able to exercise the voting rights of the 270,269,848
Domestic shares held by Huitai.

Ms. Wang Fangfei directly holds 55% of the equity interest of
Chongging Jiulong Investment Co., Ltd. (“Chongging Jiulong”),
which directly holds 231,532,653 Domestic shares. Accordingly,
Ms. Wang Fangfei is deemed to be interested in the 231,532,653
Domestic shares held by Chongging Jiulong.

Mr. Zhang Guoxiang directly holds approximately 62.1% of
the equity interest of Huitai, which directly holds 270,269,848
Domestic shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhang
Guoxiang is deemed to be interested in the 270,269,848
Domestic shares held by Huitai. Mr. Zhang Guoxiang also directly
holds 2,768,861 Domestic shares of the Company.
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(i)

4. Mr. Liu Bolin directly holds 75% equity interest of Sichuan
Hongrun Trading Co., Ltd., which directly holds 120,000,000
Domestic shares of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Liu Bolin is
deemed to be interested in 120,000,000 Domestic shares held
by Sichuan Hongrun Trading Co., Ltd.

5. As at 31 December 2014, the issued Domestic shares and
the H shares of the Company were 3,430,000,000 shares and
1,170,000,000 shares, respectively.

6. As at 31 December 2014, there were 4,600,000,000 shares of
the Company in issue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors or the chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) which
are required (i) to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Interests in associated corporations

None of the Directors or the chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of SFO) of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Except as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors

or Supervisors or any of their respective associates was granted
by the Company or its subsidiaries any right to acquire shares or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, or had

exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the persons (not being a Director, chief
executive or Supervisor of the Company) or corporations having
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO and who were directly and/or indirectly deem to
be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of the Company are listed as follows:
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FERRRBROREBERD 2 EERAR

MR2014F 128318 » RAR A Z K7 k48
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Approximate  Approximate
percentage in percentage in

relevant class total share

of share capital

Name of Class of Nature of No. of EEBRD &S

shareholder share interests shares held Rl ok

REEE 40 &5 EatE BERMEE BABEA BABA

(Shares) (/%) (%) (%)@

Loncin Holdings Domestic Share Beneficial owner/others 1,472,458,628 42.93 32.01
B impRne NER EmBEBA/ Ett (Long position)
(178)

Loncin Group Domestic Share Interests of controlled 1,472,458,628 42.93 32.01
EEEEAD WE K Corporation/others (Long position)
EEBER Hi (178)

Huitai Domestic Share Beneficial owner 270,269,848 7.88 5.88
EX NE K ERABA (Long position)
(178)

Chongging Jiulong Domestic Share Beneficial owner 231,532,653 6.75 5.03
BEENE NE K ERBEAAN (Long position)
(178)

Wang Mingyue Domestic Share Beneficial owner 269,824,593 7.87 5.87
EHA WE K ERABA (Long position)
(178)
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Notes:

1. Loncin Holdings directly holds 1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares of
the Company. Based on the voting arrangement with Huitai, Loncin
Holdings is deemed to be able to exercise the voting rights of the
270,269,848 Domestic Shares held by Huitai.

2. Loncin Group directly holds 98% of the equity interest of Loncin
Holdings, which directly holds 1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares of the
Company. Accordingly, under the SFO, Loncin Group is deemed to
be interested in the 1,202,188,780 Domestic Shares held by Loncin
Holdings. Based on the voting arrangement with Huitai, Loncin Group
is deemed to be able to exercise the voting rights of the 270,269,848
Domestic Shares held by Huitai.

3.  The 1,472,458,628 Shares held by Loncin Group and Loncin Holdings
are of the same interest and duplicated each other.

4. As at 31 December 2014, the issued Domestic Shares and the
H Shares were 3,430,000,000 shares and 1,170,000,000 shares,
respectively.

5. As at 31 December 2014, there were 4,600,000,000 shares of the
Company in issue.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014, there
was no purchase, sale or redemption of any listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the relevant laws of the PRC that would oblige
the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBRLE

wt -

1 BEEEREEFEANAAFN,202,188,780/%
RER - RIEFRZFNRELE BEE
MM AR VERE M1 T{F 2 FR_IFH #9270,269,848
AR & IR SRR o

2 BESEBEEEHER ST R MBS
B MESZRIEEFEAQA
1,202,188,780 MW E % - At » RIFFESH
FEEKD  BEEEWREERSIER
# A 891,202,188,7800% A & % 7 7 B #
e BEHERNRELTH  BEEER
RIEREMTTR 2 HRIFE #1270,269,8488 A
BRI R -

3 BEESENEEERZ1,472,458,628% %
R E— s - WERES -

4~ EZE2014%12A3181F  ARFEEITH
& 1%3,430,000,000%% H%1,170,000,000
Hﬁ °

5. & Z2014%12A318 It X A & &
4,600,000,0008¢ 2 BT o

BA - HEFEEARQXFT LEHES

Bt HEEE2014512 A31HEIM - &
NAHEEAHBATTEEE  HEXR
EOTRARNR EMES -

BErABER
REFEAMEENARNERETRES

RELEERNGEX  BARFABARR
BRRRIZL IR 2B ERMAL



Report of the Board of Directors

COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Our controlling shareholders (including Mr. Tu Jianhua, Loncin
Group, Loncin Holdings, Huitai, and Mr. Zhang Guoxiang) issued
a non-competition undertaking on 17 February 2014 in favor of
our Group (the “Non-Competition Undertaking”). Pursuant to the
Non-competition Undertaking, each of the controlling shareholders
has irrevocably undertaken that it would not and will procure that its
associates (except any members of our Group) would not, directly
or indirectly, or as principal or agent either on their own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company,
among other things, carry on, engage, participate or hold any right
or interest in or render any services to or otherwise be involved
in any business which is in competition with the business of any
member of our Group from time to time (the “Restricted Business”)

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the controlling shareholders in respect of the compliance by
them and their associates with the Non-Competition Undertaking.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Non-Competition Undertaking and assessed whether the controlling
shareholders have abided by the Non-Competition Undertaking. The
independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the controlling
shareholders have not been in breach of the Non-Competition
Undertaking during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A number of non-fully exempted one-off connected transactions
conducted by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are as follows:

(A) The Acquisition of a Financial Factoring Company

On 1 August 2014, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Chongging City Yu Shang Investment
Holding Group Co., Limited* (EE T A RREEREBRHD
AR A7R]) (“Yu Shang Group”) and Chongging Chang Jiang
Financial Holding Group Co., Limited (‘EE R I &£ B AR
A A" (“Chang Jiang Financial Holding”) (the “S&P Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire, and Yu Shang Group has conditionally agreed to sell
90% of the sale interests in Chongging Changjiang Financial
Factoring Co., Ltd. (“Chongqging Changjiang Financial”), at an
aggregate consideration of RMB270.0 million (approximately
HK$337.5 million). Following the completion of the transaction
on 1 August 2014, the Chongging Changjiang Financial
became a 90% non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
whilst the remaining 10% will continue to be held by Chang
Jiang Financial Holding.

The details of the S&P Agreement are as follows:

Date: 1 August 2014

The relationships between the parties:

(@) The Company (as purchaser)

(b) Yu Shang Group (as vendor)

(c) Chang Jiang Financial Holding (as original minority
shareholder of Chongging Changjiang Financial (and

remaining minority shareholder after completion))

Chang Jiang Financial Holding was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Yu Shang Group.
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Report of the Board of Directors

As Yu Shang Group was held as to 38.7% by Loncin Holdings,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, and accordingly
was a 30%-controlled company of Loncin Holdings and a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Seller Interests:

90% of the equity interests in Chongqging Changjiang Financial

Consideration: RMB270.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$337.5 million), which was satisfied in full by payment in
cash within three working days following the fulfillment of the
conditions precedent of the S&P Agreement (that is, the S&P
Agreement becoming effective).

The consideration was arrived at based on arm’s length
negotiation between the Company and Yu Shang Group with
reference to the original capital contribution of Yu Shang Group in
respect of the sale interests, and is equivalent to the proportion
of the approved total registered capital of Chongqging Changjiang
Financial represented by the sale interests.

The consideration was funded in full by the Company’s internal
resources.

Purpose:

1. Factoring business has been one of the capital-based
financing solutions businesses that the Group intended
to introduce as part of the Group’s strategies to further
achieve its goal of becoming a premier diversified
and integrated financial services company with a
comprehensive product and service offering;

2. The target company had already obtained the requisite
approval to conduct financial factoring business, therefore
the transaction would facilitate a more expedient
commencement and development of the Group’s factoring
business in Chongging area; and
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(8)

3. Given that factoring business is an area that the Group
intends to develop going forward, such transaction would
resolve any potential competition that might otherwise
arise between the Company and Chongaging Changjiang
Financial in the future.

Please see the Company’s announcement dated 1 August
2014 for other details.

Acquisition of Further Equity Interests in a
Subsidiary Company

On 1 August 2014, the Company entered into vendor
agreements with each of Chongging Yuanda Yinwu Co., Ltd.*
(BEEMRKNEHBKEAER AT, South China Materials Group Co.,
Ltd.* (ZERYEEEBR AR and Shanghai Baohe Industrial
Co., Ltd.* (LBEEEXRKRMDBR AR (collectively, the
“Vendors”), which as at 1 August 2014, held as to 10%, 10%
and 10% of the equity interests in Chongging Yuzhong Hanhua
Micro-credit Co., Ltd.* (EE AT @ BE DEERBRETA
A]) (“Chongaging Micro-credit”) respectively, pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire and the
Vendors have each conditionally agreed to sell, in aggregate,
their entire 30% equity interests in Chongging Microcredit for
an aggregate consideration of RMB190.7 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$238.3 million) (“Vendor Acquisition”).

The details of the Vendor Agreements are as follows:
Date: 1 August 2014

The relationships between the parties:

(@) The Company (as purchaser)

(b) Chongging Yuanda Yinwu Co., Ltd.* (EETREAHKE
FRAR]), South China Materials Group Co., Ltd.* (¥
Y& LB AR AR and Shanghai Baohe Industrial Co.,
Ltd.* (LB E S EERHBMR A 5), which held as to 10%,
10% and 10% of the equity interests held in Chongging
Micro-credit respectively as at 1 August 2014 (collectively
the Vendors).
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Report of the Board of Directors

As the Vendors each held 10% of the equity interests in
Chongging Micro-credit, the Vendors were deemed as
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Vendor Interests:

The entire 30% equity interests of Chongqging Micro-credit held
by the Vendors in aggregate.

Consideration: RMB190.65 million (approximately HK$238.3
million), paid to each of the Vendors in equal share (that
is, RMB63.55 million (equivalent to approximately HK$79.4
million) each) in proportion to their respective equity interests
held in Chongqging Micro-credit.

The consideration was arrived at based on arm’s length
negotiations between the Company and the Vendors with
reference to the net asset value of Chongging Micro-credit
based on its unaudited management accounts as at 30 June
2014.

The Consideration was funded principally by the net proceeds
from the initial global offering of the Company in June 2014.

Purpose:

1. SME lending has been one of the key business segments
of the Group. Chongging Micro-credit was the Group’s
first investment venture into the micro and small loans
industry in China and the initial foundation upon which
the Group will expand its micro and small loan business
for the years to come. Chongging Micro-credit had been
an important member of the Group and a significant
contributor of financial results to the Group’s micro and
small loan business segment.
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2. The Vendor Acquisition, when completed, would increase
the Group’s equity interests in Chongging Micro-credit
from 56% to 86%. After taking into account the historical
financial performance of Chongqging Micro-credit, its
strategic significance to the Group’s micro and small
loan business and the future prospects of China’s small
loan industry, the Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) believed that the Vendor
Acquisition represented a good opportunity for the Group
to further consolidate its equity interests in Chongging
Micro-credit.

Others:

In order to streamline the shareholding structure of the Group,
on 1 August 2014, the Company also entered into two
shares transfer agreements with each of Hanhua Guarantee
Corporation Limited* (BEERFRRKRMDERAT]) (“Hanhua
Guarantee”) and Sichuan Small & Medium-sized Assets
Management Co., Ltd.* (F9)I|FF 8 EE AR A 7)) (“Sichuan
Assets Management”), both wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company, to transfer the entire 56% equity interests in
Chongaing Micro-credit (held as to 50% by Hanhua Guarantee
and 6% by Sichuan Assets Management as at 1 August 2014)
back to the Company.

Please see the Company’s announcement dated 1 August
2014 for other details.

The Company has reviewed all the connected transactions and
confirmed that it has been in compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The definition of connected persons under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules is different from the definition of related parties
under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 24, “Related Party
Disclosures”.
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Report of the Board of Directors

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group made
charitable and other donations in a total amount of RMB1.9 million.

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Based on the actual distributable profit as at 28 February 2015, the
Board resolved to make a distribution of RMB10 cents per share to
the shareholders of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed together with the management
and external auditors the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its Shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. The Board currently comprises one executive Director,
eight non-executive Directors and five independent non-executive
Directors. The Board has adopted the Code Provisions as its
corporate governance code.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, from the Listing Date to 27
March 2015 (being the latest practicable date before the publication
of this annual report), the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 have been audited by KPMG.

KPMG shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board of

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.*
Zhang Guoxiang

Chairman of the Board

27 March 2015
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2014, pursuant to the requirements set out in the Company
Law and the Articles of Association, the board of supervisors
(the “Board of Supervisors”) has attentively performed its duties
and proactively carried out supervision on the financial activities,
internal control, risk management, lawful operation as well as the
duty performance of the Board and the senior management of
the Company, thus effectively contributing to the optimization of
the Company’s governance and to the healthy and sustainable
development of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF THE MAJOR WORKS OF THE
BAORD OF SUPERVISORS

1. The Board of Supervisors convened meetings of the Board
of Supervisors pursuant to laws and regulations. In 2014, the
Board of Supervisors convened 2 regular meetings, in which
the Board of Supervisors summarized its work throughout the
year and reviewed the interim report. The Board of Supervisors
also participated in 6 special meetings including meeting
concerning internal control and compliance, and attended
5 general meetings and 32 Board meetings. The Board of
Supervisors has supervised the general meetings and Board
meetings with regard to the legality, compliance and the
procedure of voting thereof. The Board of Supervisors has also
supervised the performance of duties by the Board and senior
management.

2.  The Board of Supervisors endeavored in conducting proper
finance supervision. By focusing on the compilation, verification
and disclosure of periodic reports, the Board of Supervisors
communicated with external auditors and auditors on a regular
basis, strengthened the analysis of major issues that may
affect the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the
financial reports, timely followed up and got knowledge of the
changes of regulatory requirements, and presented opinions
and suggestions. In accordance with relevant requirements,
the Board of Supervisors conducted supervision on the
selection and appointment of external auditors and auditors,
capital management of the Company, and the management of
insiders of insider information.
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3. The Board of Supervisors substantially participated in internal
control supervision. The Board of Supervisors regularly
debriefed special reports on the work of internal control and
compliance, key findings and rectification in internal audit
and prevention and control over non-compliance cases, and
strengthened supervision on the internal control formulation
and assessment work.

4. The Board of Supervisors strengthened risk management
supervision. It paid attention to the major risks faced by the
industry and debriefed special reports with regard to the
work of risk management and liquidity risk management and
provided timely suggestions.

INDEPENDENT OPINIONS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON RELEVANT MATTERS OF
THE COMPANY

Lawful operation

During the reporting period, the business activities of the Company
complied with the Company Law and the Articles of Association,
the internal control system was improved, and the decision making
procedures were lawful and valid. None of the Directors or senior
management of the Company was found to have violated the
relevant laws, regulations or the Articles of Association or harmed
the interests of the Company and shareholders.

Authenticity of financial report

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014 were prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and were audited by
KPMG in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing. The
auditor issued standard unqualified audit report.
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Report of the Board of Supervisors

Use of Proceeds

During the reporting period, the application of proceeds for specific
projects was consistent with the committed uses as stated in the
Prospectus.

Purchase and sale of assets by the Company

During the reporting period, the Company undertook two
acquisitions. For the acquisition of Chongaging Changjiang
Financial Factoring Co., Ltd.* (EERIE&/RIEER A7), upon
the completion of acquisition, the Company holds 90% of the
equity interests in the acquiree. With respect to the acquisition of
Chongging Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. (EE M ¥ NEERER
FH1EA 7)), upon the completion of acquisition, the Company holds
86% of the equity interests in the acquiree. The two acquisitions did
not result in any actions that might damage Shareholders’ interests
or cause loss of assets.

Related party transactions

During the reporting period, the Company repaid amounts due to
related parties of RMB20 million which was borrowed in 2013 and
no additional borrowings were raised from related parties in 2014;
guarantees of RMB20 million were provided by the Company to
related parties and guarantees of RMB33 million were released.
The said related party transactions accounted for a small portion
and ratio of the overall transaction amount.

Internal control

During the reporting period, the Company continued to strengthen
and optimize its internal control, and the Board of Supervisors
lodged no objections to the “Report on Assessment of Internal
Control for 2014”.
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Implementation of resolutions passed at the general
meeting(s)

The Board of Supervisors lodged no objections to the reports and
proposals submitted by the Board to the general meetings in 2014,
and having inspected the execution of the resolutions of general
meetings, concluded that the Board had duly implemented the
relevant resolutions passed at the general meeting(s).

Opinions on performance assessment of Directors,
Supervisors and senior management of the Company

During the reporting period, all Directors, Supervisors and senior
management were diligent in duly carrying out their duties and were
evaluated as qualified in the performance assessment.

By order of the Board of Supervisors
Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
Mr. Li Ruping

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors

24 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

N

Independent auditor’s report to the Shareholders of

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hanhua
Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 155 to 296, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ 3 A% B A =R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s consolidated results and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2015
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Consolidated Income Statement

BOFRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB”)) (A A REFIR)

2014 2013
20144 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥Fr AREFr
Guarantee and consulting EREBAERA
fee income 960,031 914,277
Re-guarantee expenses BERER (1,754) (1,213)
Net guarantee and consulting EREEREFRA
fee income 958,277 913,064
Interest and handling fee income FERFEEWA 1,284,492 781,403
Interest and commission expenses R ENFEETH (242,011) (117,735)
Net interest and handling B RFEEFIKA
fee income 1,042,481 663,668
Net fee and interest income FFEERFEWA 2 2,000,758 1,576,732
Other revenue H A 3 29,535 43,961
Provisions for guarantee losses REBEFEES 23 (72,055) (148,984)
Impairment losses BEREERX 4 (431,728) (294,367)
Administrative expenses EBENEBRE (858,587) (703,896)
Other net losses HibE5sE 55 5(c) (3,403) (1,174)
Profit before taxation BHATRIE 5 664,520 472,272
Income tax FT1S 30 6 (157,096) (115,524)
Profit for the year A FE 507,424 356,748
Attributable to: FERN
Shareholders of the Company ViN/NET) 323 432,002 279,736
Non-controlling interests JEFE Il 14 2 75,422 77,012
Profit for the year 2R 507,424 356,748
Earnings per share FRkKE
Basic and diluted (RMB) AR ke
(ERBELA/ARET) 11 0.11 0.10

The notes on pages 163 to 296 form part of these financial #1638 £296 8 FTE M i B A 2 Z 9 15 3

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BOtERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (A AREFIR)

2014 2013
20144 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥Fr AREFr
Profit for the year A 507,424 356,748
Other comprehensive income Hiir & s
for the year (after tax and (RBERELESH
reclassification adjustments) DHERAEE)
Item that may be reclassified AERERHBRDEE
subsequently to profit or loss BRWIER
Available-for-sale financial assets: AHHNESHEE 10 111 (305)
net movement in the fair R fEE
value reserve BE)FE
Total comprehensive income FaWEAs 507,535 356,443
for the year
Attributable to: BER:
Shareholders of the Company ZiN/NET 432,113 279,431
Non-controlling interests FEHE R 75,422 77,012
Total comprehensive income mEWRESS 507,535 356,443

for the year

The notes on pages 163 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B OB AR R

At 31 December 2014 o 722014512 H31H
(Expressed in RMB) (JA A R#%I7R)

At 31 December

M12A831H
2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Jok=3 AR#FT AREFr
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents E¥Ee 12 2,531,112 940,545
Restricted bank deposits FHERRES 13 2,124,465 2,293,183
Trade and other receivables JE AT % L th i W SR TE 14 404,309 241,870
Loans and advances to customers R E KM B 16 5,997,175 4,579,902
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESmEE 17 157,841 9,593
Fixed assets BEE&E 19 386,740 300,154
Intangible assets | EE 20 4,709 4,530
Repossessed assets KEEE 16,204 12,565
Deferred tax assets BEFEHEE 26(b) 315,797 245,620
Total assets BEMAG 11,938,352 8,627,962
Liabilities =N
Interest-bearing borrowings R 21 815,607 966,740
Financial assets sold under EXOESREE
repurchase agreement 22 2,182,446 797,959
Liabilities from guarantees ERUESE 23 912,160 852,993
Customer pledged deposits FAREZ 24(a) 27,105 78,182
Accruals and other payables FERT R EL A FE S 5RIE 24(b) 276,400 332,868
Current tax liabilities EHMENAE 26(a) 148,213 140,861
Total liabilities BEE5 4,361,931 3,169,603
NET ASSETS BEE 7,576,421 5,458,359
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAR#EE 27
Share capital A% A 4,600,000 3,430,000
Reserves {1 2,265,914 1,402,258
Total equity attributable to D RIRRAEN
shareholders of the Company MR A48 58 6,865,914 4,832,258
Non-controlling interests FEFE IS 710,507 626,101
TOTAL EQUITY ERA 7,576,421 5,458,359

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
March 2015.

KESSHERBEENR201543H278 T
% o

Name: Zhang Guoxiang Name: Ren Weidong

Position: Chairman of the Board

REH ERR
EFETE BEEMEE

The notes on pages 163 to 296 form part of these financial
statements.

(Company stamp)

Position: Chief Financial Officer

AFAE
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Statement of Financial Position

B EEIR 2R

At 31 December 2014 ¢ 2014512 431H

(Expressed in RMB) (JA AR¥7%I7R)

At 31 December

MA12H31H
2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥Fr ARETT
Assets BE
Cash and cash equivalents EEEs 12 80,689 452
Trade and other receivables JE U R H Ath B U FRIR 14 84,470 6,377
Investments in subsidiaries HFRARIMEKE 18 6,198,749 4,327,989
Fixed assets EFEEE 19 1,372 326
Intangible assets | EE 20 2,067 2,611
Total assets EEHAS 6,367,347 4,337,755
Liabilities =R
Liabilities from guarantees ERUEEE 23 122 171
Customer pledged deposits BEARZER 24(a) 130 130
Accruals and other payables FEET K H fih FE 1~ FR I8 24(b) 694,595 109,249
Total liabilities aE&EE8st 694,847 109,550
NET ASSETS BEE 5,672,500 4,228,205
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARRF#E 27
Share capital R 2R 4,600,000 3,430,000
Reserves [ 1,072,500 798,205
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 5,672,500 4,228,205

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

March 2015.

Name: Zhang Guoxiang
Position: Chairman of the Board
R B 1

EEERTE

The notes on pages 163 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE

% -

Name: Ren Weidong
Position: Chief Financial Officer
EHRK

BEEHE

KESSHERBEENR201543H278 T

(Company stamp)

RAHE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EREEREE K

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (JAARZIIIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARERAARR
Paid-in/ Capital/ Non-
share share Capital Surplus General Retained controling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
gl Bt/ —REk AR Pl RE
EX/BE BhEE  BADE BHDE b il NGt B Emed

BUBOOD  RMBOOO  RVBOOD  AMBOO0  RMBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOO0O  RMBOOO  AMBUD
NEETT  AREfT  AREFT ARETr AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETR
Note 27(c) ~ Note 27(d)f) ~ Note 27(d)fi) ~ Note 27(a)i) ~ Note 27(d)v)
WiEone  WEaap  KEam o K KEa

Balance at 1 January 2013 01351 A 1BHERE 300,000 = = 50,122 121,052 317,425 789499 1718540 2,508,039

Changes inequity for 2013 20135 B ERRY

Proft o the year 8 - - - - - 279,73 279,736 77012 356,748
Other comprehensive income~~ £t Al E - - (305) - - - (305) = (305)
Total comprehensive income A MEAH - - (308) = - 27973 279431 77012 356,443
Capital injection FRARAENER 1,276,128 909973 = - = (670 2,185,231 [20191) 2165040
Fouity-settled share-based WEREENRNZH

payment - - 144,202 - - - 144,202 - 144,202
Purchase equity interest from ~ A3EFER| iR EE e

non-controling interests - - - - - 16,233 15,233 (89,781) (74,548)
Business combinationunder  EEEAERHA-HTL

common control and SRV REE D ERRE

purchase equity interests from
non-controling interests

through restructuring 935,480 478,291 - - - 29,497 1443268 (1,443,269) -
Captal injection in subsidiaries ~ FAFFEREEERTE

from non-controling interests - (24,606) - - - - (24,606) 526,597 501,991
Share capital increased by RARMEEERA

retained eamings transfer 125,549 - - - - (125,549) - - -
Conversion into joint stock RiamE

company M (39698 -1 B2 e - - -
Appropriation to general reserve  fRE—HERER - - - = 108,179 (108,179 - = =
Cash dividends paid to MR RN

non-controling interests Refke - - - - - - - (142,808 (142,808
Balance at 31 December 2013 201312331 BAIHE 3,430,000 964,676 143,897 - 180,009 113676 4,832,258 626,101 5,468,359

The notes on pages 163 to 296 form part of these financial 1638 £296 B AT #( M s B Ak 3% & B 15 3R
statements. FKH)—EB1D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EORRERESER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB) (MAAREZIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ROAREREARE
Non-
General Retained controlling Total
Share Share Capital Surplus reserve earnings Total interests equity
capital  premium reserve reserve -fRAER i) 3513 e
ke RHEE  EA0R EBOE b e It Bi  EaeH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABRTE  ARETR  AREFR  AREFr  ARETL  ARETE  ARETR  AREFR  AREFx
Note 27(c)  Note 27(d)(i) Note 27(a)(ii) Note 27(d)(iii) Note 27(d)(iv)
Hit2re)  MEeT  WEndl)  KE) - KEend)
Balance at 1 January 2014 2014515 1A fEsE 3,430,000 964,676 143,807 - 180,009 113,676 4,832,258 626,101 5458359
Changes in equity for 2014: 2014 BEEREE !
Profit for the year B - - - - - 432,002 432,002 75,422 507,424
Other comprehensive income  ZHEAKE - - 111 - - - 11 - 11
Total comprehensive income &7 AEAR - - 11 - - 402 43 5422 507,53
Issuance of new shares £ 1,170,000 268,503 - - - - 1,438,593 - 143859
Equity-settled share-based IWEREENRNZN
payment - - 120,871 - - - 120,871 - 120,871
Purchase equity inferest flom B3R 8l iR IRIERE
non-controling interests - (13,163) - - - - (13,163) (177,481) (190,650)
Business combination under ~ FER-EF TAEAMK
non-common control - - - - - - - 30,000 30,000
Capital injection in subsiciaries ~ FA RS/ ERTE
from non-controling interests - 55,242 - - - - 55,242 198,408 253,650
Aopropriation to general reserve e —RERE = - - - 35,501 (35,501) - - -
Cash dividends paid to RERH RGN
non-controling interests fi bl - - - - - - - (41,937) (41,937)
Balance at 31 December 2014 2014412831 A% 4600000 1215348 264879 - 550 SI047TT 6865014 TIOS0T 7576421

The notes on pages 163 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (JAARZIIIR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR¥Fr AREFT
Operating activities RETE
Cash used in operations K EBFTANE S 12(b) (406,375) (2,001,093)
PRC income tax paid iﬂﬁﬂwﬁ SRR (219,958) (191,661)
Net cash used in RETBFTAESTFE
operating activities (626,333) (2,192,754)
Investing activities REEE
Proceeds from sale of fixed BEREEERHA
assets and other non-current IEmEE EWE MR
assets 738 569
Payments for the purchase of BEETEEN
fixed assets and intangible B EESNNRE
assets (129,222) (135,362)
Payments on acquisition of RES MRS
investments (148,100) =
Net cash used in investing REZEHFTARESFHE
activities (276,584) (134,793)
Financing activities E -]
Proceeds from issuance of BT D BTS 208
new shares 1,502,452 =
Proceeds from capital injection IR Ui & W EIAVIR &
Proceeds from shareholders R FE = 1,899,671
Proceeds from non-controlling FEE S SR EE
interests 283,650 500,910
Proceeds from new borrowings BERRRHIR & 805,367 1,013,612
Proceeds from financial assets &= ﬁ EEeREE
sold under repurchase IR e
agreement 2,004,487 829,121
Purchase of equity interests 5] 3H Bl MR s B
of subsidiaries from NAERES MR ®
non-controlling interests (190,650) (74,548)
Repayment of borrowings EBEERAEZNNRS (956,500) (660,972)
Interest paid BEEFMNEZNHES (222,110) (91,999)
Dividends paid to non- DD EA R
controlling interests X eR & (41,937) (142,808)
Repurchase of assets with I E OB EE
repurchase agreement Y HERE (620,000) (253,466)
Cash paid for other financing YN HEMEEEEE)
activities ERMNRE (63,859) (5,784)
Net cash generated from EETHELENE S FE
financing activities 2,500,900 3,013,737

The notes on pages 163 to 296 form part of these financial

statements.

RE)—ERD ©
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB) (A AREFIR)

2014 2013
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 AR#FT AREFT
Net increase in cash and ERESIEINFEHE
cash equivalents 1,597,983 686,190
Cash and cash equivalents 1B1BE¥ES
at 1 January 940,545 254,355
Effect of foreign exchange NEERSBHTE
rate changes (7,416) =
Cash and cash equivalents 12A31H
at 31 December BE®BES 12(a) 2,531,112 940,545

The notes on pages 163 to 296 form part of these financial 1638 £296 B AT #( M s B Ak 3% & B 15 3R
statements. = —H& -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“"HKASs”) and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year
and the comparative period continue to be those of
the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, in
accordance with transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
“Accounts and Audit”, which are set out in sections 76
to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs. For the purpose of preparing these financial
statements, the Group has adopted all applicable new
and revised HKFRSs to the year ended 31 December
2014, except for any new standards or interpretations that
are not yet effective for the accounting period beginning 1
January 2015. The revised and new accounting standards
and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
accounting period beginning 1 January 2015 are set out
in Note 34.

BUAARETITIIR)

1 EREFTEHE

(a)

aBREH

ZEVBHRRECREMBERE
B BREER (B BHRE
R R HIERBREES
it Ag ((BEGFMAE])
78 e B0 P B B R A 18 Bl &8 B
HER - FEEHER ([FE
SFER)) RRBNEEARE
FHRAI e AMIBHMERIATE D H
K& BB R AHERBIFT 811 5
T6EBT{F B 1 /B E9BD - [k B
MBS EHRIE T & B AR
BRBMRTE  AYBHFERA
Lt B 4 48 0 R A B 1R ) 0 3 BB
M - AP BHRETT BB
ABRSGAABRRAFIES EHHRL
(TEMARRN) #98 A E B
AEEFRANENSTBRD
BEEER T

BEAGHMAGER/MRERTT
ZIEBRUBMEER - RER
APBMEMS - AEBERR
BEGETE A G B RAEFTHFT
EEAAAVBREER (ER
201551 A1 HREM ZET BB B
#5188 R A S A AT 3T 5T 2E Rl K
ZERIN) RE T EE20145F12
AB1BIEMFE S - 2015
F1ATREN ST HEEEME
B R ST RFTET & 5T 4
Bl R 2R AT 5234 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The financial statements are presented in RMB, rounded
to the nearest thousand. It is prepared on the historical
cost basis except for available-for-sale financial assets
(see Note 1(i)) that are stated at their fair value and
liabilities from guarantees (see Note 1(p)(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 33.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBERAF

1

EXRSETEE (#)

(b)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EREFHEK ()
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) BEtBEEE

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company:

e  Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27, Investment entities

e Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities

o Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the new
or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
27, Investment entities

EREGHMASERM FIIRNA
KERARRHNAGTHEERX
ERMBEBUBREERNERT

o ABMBWMEERZEI0%
BB BREERFE125E R
BB GFTERIFE275 (185
) REFE

o BEGFTERIFEI2N (BF]
R) TRHEENTHMEE
o]

o EHABEFTEAFEI6H (EF]
) - FEE B EE A AT E
EHRKE

R B R RN E A& AT HIE
el R AE 2B (o] 3 5] 2E Rl sk &
B o BRINZ AT %f%ﬂ%ﬁ%
MR ERNNTERMIT -

BERAMBREENFE105 - &
BB REEAE12HRREE
S ERIE27H (BFTA) » KR
EHEER

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those ZIEFTRAMEF A LIS BB
parents which qualify to be an investment entity as BMEEAEI0RAENKREE
defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities BHEARNGEARELR - &
are required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value BEBEERANEBENEZETR
through profit or loss. These amendments do not have ERENMBAR - ARARF

an impact on the Group’s financial statements as the
Company does not qualify to be an investment entity.

TIAHFEREERENTE © %
SR AHAEB NIRRT
(TR 2 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E 5

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities

BF$ESN -

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria

in HKAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on

the Group’s financial statements as they are consistent

with the policies already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount

disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 modify the disclosure

requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among

them, the amendments expand the disclosures required

for an impaired asset or cash generating unit whose

recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of

disposal. The Group early adopted the amendments in

the annual financial statements for the year ended
December 20183.

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

31

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The

Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,

to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and

has the ability to affect those returns through its power

over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has

power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and

other parties) are considered.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(d) FRARKRFEFMEES (F)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statements of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity holders/shareholders
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statements and the consolidated statements
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity/
shareholders holders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statements of
financial position in accordance with Notes 1(i) depending
on the nature of the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E 5

BF$ESN -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in the consolidated income statements. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 1(i)) or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(l)(i)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Company
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBERAF

1

BIAARETFTIIR)

EXRSETEE (#)

(d) FRARAKRFEGEETS (&)

(e)

HMAKRERFRARNERZH T
SR AIEGIRE - AERRE
RN MREEEERZE
HX&#T HERE SRS
CARBRAARAE R EE) - T
E%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁlﬂja}Q%&T%ﬁ?ﬁ%?ﬁ
B o

EAEERAYEFAAZEH
o BEREERNZTRRNMAA
Bm Al MAMELENERERS

PERE R R o (R RAE
il E B DR E MR AT T A Bl
BRAABERER - Mt A

BRONTEREREENAAE
B (REEEG) - = (m@ER) 1
FPHRABNBEARHSEEEN
REMMRA -

RARBWFBARRAKRS - BT
RAMRERK AR EERER
KB (RHEE1()6) - HERHIEE
DRERFHEHE RN (HETA
DERBELENHESRE) -

BERNARGEDLRE

BERRREARA R UHZR
Taﬁ?i*@”‘ﬁﬁ’] TE B8
B2EPBEREERE AF
G ARZEHEEEENE

EE °©
BECEREARARAEEMI A
BHRARBD ZLHSHNE
HHE - AEEBBLTEFENF
BEMER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
group’s interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Company ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in income statement. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see Note 1(i)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses (see Note 1(l)())), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BUAARETITIIR)

1 EXRSFHHE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(f) Fixed assets (f) BEEE
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated B EEELKATRERTITE R
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 1(|)(i)). EERBREBRXENFEAR (R
B EET()(ii))
The cost of self-constructed items of fixed assets includes ERRBEEEBENKABIEY
the cost of materials, direct labour and borrowing costs BRA - BEESTHAREEK
(see Note 1(r)). K (RHFEr) °
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of WENEERTEEMEENT
an item of fixed assets are determined as the difference SRIBERBRBSRIAFHN
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying EERABEZHANESE I
amount of the item and are recognised in the income RBEIEEATCLERHESPRE
statement on the date of retirement or disposal. R o
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items BEFEEBREBENERMFAIER
of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if any, FR - ENBRTEFRISEMER (10
using the straight line method over their estimated useful B) BAEGEHEKAGTE D
lives as follows: N
Estimated useful lives
At A ERER
Buildings held for use ZEY) 30-35 years 30-35%F
Motor vehicles EE S 5 years 54
Office and other equipments WA REMERAE 5 years 5%
Leasehold improvements HEMENRR T H 1-5 years 1-54F

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different useful
lives, the cost is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see
Note 1(I)(ii). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill
and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their estimated
useful lives are as follows:

1

BIAARETFTIIR)

EXRSETEE (#)

(9)

BVEE

HASEBEANEREERKAR
WA RS (WEEARFE
RER) REEREBEEX (RH
(i) B FVER - AEBEERIE
ERMEATTRESBHRER
BER -

T R 4 5070 R A T 7
TYHA B 5 A R B DA AR
SEEAFIBR o AT AR ER
£ B A 8 A0 R
R ITHESS - T4 A 5 PR 4
M

Estimated useful lives

{531 T 48 IR

B

Software

2-10 years

2-104F

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to the income statement in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the income statement as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to the income
statement in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial instruments

(i)

Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in
the statements of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a
financial instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
initially at fair value, plus, for instruments not
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, any
directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are

categorised as follows:

e [oans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative

financial assets held by the Group with fixed or

determinable recoverable amounts that are not
quoted in an active market, other than

(@) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the near-term, which will
be classified as held for trading;
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B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEARSHEBE (&)
(CONTINUED)
() Financial instruments (continued) () €®MI A (&)

() THEERABENERN
& (&)

() Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities (continued)

e [oans and receivables (continued) o EXRENIE (&)
(b) those that the Group, upon initial (b) FIATERE WAL
recognition, designates as at fair value EEERARAE

through profit or loss or as available-for- Bt B HEHET

sale; or AZHEZN SR
BENSAIHMEES

TTESREE 3K

(c) those where the Group may not recover ) BKRAEBAGERE

substantially all of its initial investment,
other than because of credit deterioration,

e & D BRI H
ETREEN £

which will be classified as available-for- REE ] BB LA

sale. B & Fir B #4615
BRFITESRE
= o

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and

receivables are stated at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

e Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-

derivative financial assets that are designated

RIIARERR - EFM
JE W R IEER AR B R A
B BN o

R ESHEE

AfthESRmEERE
TA 0146 HiE SR s BN AR 46

upon initial recognition as available-for-sale AAHEENIETES
and other financial assets are not classified as REE - kR TYEE
financial assets at fair value through profit or BENIMIESRERE :

loss,

loans and receivables or held-to-maturity

assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)

() Recognition and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value,
without any deduction for transaction costs
that may occur on sale and changes therein,
except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses from monetary
financial assets, are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income. When an investment
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to
income statement.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than the financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
classified as other financial liabilities.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets other than
those at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed
by the Group at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is provided. Objective evidence of impairment
in the financial asset represents events that occur
after the initial recognition of the financial asset and
have impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the asset, which can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence includes the following loss event:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— itis becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— disappearance of an active market for financial
assets because of financial difficulties;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E 5

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

a significant or prolonged decline in the fair

value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

Loans and receivables

The Group uses two methods of assessing

impairment losses: those assessed individually

and those assessed on a collective basis.

Individual assessment

Loans and receivables, which are

considered individually significant, are
assessed individually for impairment. If
there is objective evidence of impairment of
loans and receivables, the amount of loss
is measured as the excess of its carrying
amount over the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. The
impairment losses are recognised in the
income statement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSHEX (&)
(CONTINUED)
() Financial instruments (continued) () €®MI A (&)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i) eMEERE (&)
e [oans and receivables (continued) o EHRIENIE ()
- Individual assessment (continued) — ARG (&)
Cash flows relating to short-term loans MR EE S R ER
and receivables are not discounted when FIEMNFEE Z 2
assessing impairment loss if the difference KEMTEFTARIKIER
between the estimated future cash flows eREHEERER
and its present value is immaterial. ZR/AN - FEREEAE
BB ERERKXR
The calculation of the present value of THEFTHTIR -
the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised loan or receivable reflects the BEANERRIE
cash flows that may result from foreclosure WRIB M TEET R 2R
less costs for obtaining and selling the REeERERESM
collateral. BREX {5 A0 T & 45 1
mMER -
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B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

e [oans and receivables (continued)

Collective assessment

LLoans and receivables which are assessed

collectively for impairment include
individually assessed loans and receivables
with no objective evidence of impairment
on an individual basis, and homogeneous
groups of loans and receivables which
are not considered individually significant
and not assessed individually. Loans
and receivables are grouped for similar
credit risk characteristics for collective
assessment. The objective evidence of
impairment mainly includes that, though it
is unable to identify the decrease of cash
flow of each individual asset, after collective
assessment based on observable data,
there is observable evidence indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flow from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition

of those assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEARSHEBE (&)
(CONTINUED)
() Financial instruments (continued) () €®MI A (&)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

The Group periodically reviews and assesses

(i) ERMEERE (&)

EAREWNZE (&)

A& B SR TR A [

the impaired loans and receivables for any WEEEHRAMER
subsequent changes to the estimated MEERBEBREES
recoverable amounts and the resulted changes &) i E BiEE B K AT Ah R

in the provisions for impairment losses.

If, in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement. The reversal shall not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset
that exceeds the amortised cost at the date
of the reversal had the impairment not been

EE R R B FHIA -

B RN e YRR HERRR
BEIRKRR  WATEE
BRAZTREEEE
BiRE - BERE L EE
RRBERRELNER
B RERHRER
RH T AL - SFAE
iR - ZEERME
E{EETEBRE N

recognised. RREEEELTZS
BEELER A AER
B o

When the Group determines that a loan has EAEBDLHEIT T

no reasonable prospect of recovery after the
Group has completed all the necessary legal
or other claim proceedings, the loan is written
off against its provisions for impairment losses
upon necessary approval.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to the income statement.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in the income statement is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the income
statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through the income
statement. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 BEARSHEBE (&)
(CONTINUED)
() Financial instruments (continued) () €®MI A (&)

(iii) 2AREEE

(iii) Fair value measurement

If there is an active market for a financial asset or
financial liability, the quoted price in the active market
without adjusting for transaction costs that may be
incurred upon future disposal or settlement is used
to establish the fair value of the financial asset or
financial liability.

If no active market exists for a financial instrument, a
valuation technique is used to establish the fair value.
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties; reference to the current fair value of
another instrument that is substantially the same;
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models. Where discounted cash flow technique is
used, future cash flows are estimated based on
management’s best estimates and the discount
rate used is the prevailing market rate applicable for
instrument with similar terms and conditions at the
end of each reporting period. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on market data
at the end of each reporting period.

In estimating the fair value of a financial asset and
financial liability, the Group considers all factors
including, but not limited to, risk-free interest rate,
credit risk, foreign exchange rate and market
volatility, that are likely to affect the fair value of the
financial asset and financial liability.

The Group obtains market data from the same
market where the financial instrument was originated
or purchased.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXGHEX (#)
(CONTINUED)
() Financial instruments (continued) (i) €®MIAH (&)
(iv) Derecognition of financial assets and (iv) RIEEZSHEERSHM

financial liabilities afE
Financial assets (or a part of a financial asset or ERE TGSz &
group of financial assets) are derecognised when the BMEE (RemBEEMN—
financial assets meet one of the following conditions: Mk EAEREUNSREE

B— 1) M LERERR ¢

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the — WHRZEemEER®N
financial asset expire; or ENERERLIE 5
- the Group transfers substantially all the risks — AEBECDEBHEZER
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets BEMBEEHEMNLT
or where substantially all the risks and rewards 2 0 HY [ ez R0 3 B =k BT
of ownership of a financial asset are neither RBREB M AREREZ
retained nor transferred, the control over that TRMEEFBEEE BN
asset is relinquished. e 2 E0 A [ e A0 e B
i A 2R ¥ 5% & E 81T
il o
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially i 25 &2 B 3 AR 88 7% ok (R B £
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial ZeMEEFBREBBERL
asset, but retains control, the Group continues to T IR R e FERE - B4R
recognise the financial asset and relevant liability ByEslE - AIRNEERERE
to the extent of its continuing involvement in the B NZEREENEEE
financial asset. REMEERBHAEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X =

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets and

(v)

financial liabilities (continued)

The financial liability (or part of it) is derecognised
only when the underlying present obligation (or
part of it) specified in the contracts is discharged,
cancelled or expired. An agreement between
the Group and an existing lender to replace the
original financial liability with a new financial liability
with substantially different terms, or a substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and recognition of a new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the derecognised financial liability and
the consideration paid is recognised in the income
statement.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement
of financial position when the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and the transactions are intended to be settled on a
net basis, or by realising the asset and settling the
liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

1)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

(vi) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in the income statement, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting
or hedge the net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case recognition of any resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in the income statement over the period of
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Impairment of non-financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more
of the loss events in Note 1(i)(i). When any such
evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount in accordance
with Note 1(d) and Note 1(e). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
in accordance with Note 1(l)(ii).

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  Fixed assets; and

— Intangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXSHEX (&)
(CONTINUED)
() Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) () FEMEERME (&)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

(i) HtbEEHRE (&)

- Reversals of impairment losses —  EBEREEXAEE
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been MAREERA W E &5

a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of

B {5 5B R B
ft - BIRBERNE ER
IS T UAEE

ZELROEEEET
BB RE NaHEEER
BEEABATZEEHR
EOEMEEER- @

impairment losses are credited to the income Bl &) & R (B 18 R i R
statement in the year in which the reversals are REBELNFE NG

recognised. A& BfEs -
(m) Employee benefits (m) BT &M
Short term employee benefits and contributions to EHRIFHREERERERE
defined contribution retirement plans AHELE

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and defined
contribution the Group makes pursuant to the relevant
laws and regulations of the PRC are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC have joined
defined contributions for the employees, such as basic
pension scheme, housing fund, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, injury insurance and maternity
insurance. The Group makes contributions to the above
mentioned schemes at the applicable rates based on the
amounts stipulated by the government organisation. The
contributions are charged to the income statement on
an accrual basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in the income statement except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the vyear, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credit, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

the same taxable entity; or

different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ERSHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(o) Financial guarantees issued

(o) BHMMBIER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within liabilities from guarantees. The
fair value of financial guarantees issued at the time of
issuance is determined by reference to fees charged in
an arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated
by reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing
the actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in the income statement on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in the income statement
over the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with Note 1(p)(i) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in liabilities from guarantees in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Provisions for guarantee losses

When determining the amounts to be recognised
in respect of liabilities arising from the guarantee
business, management estimates the provisions
based on prior experience and default history of
the business. It is possible that the prior experience
and default history is not indicative of future loss on
the guarantees issued. Any increase or decrease in
the provisions would affect the income statement in
future years.

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

(g) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in the income statement as follows:

(i)

Guarantee and consulting fee income

Guarantee income is recognised when guarantee
contracts have been made whereby the related
guarantee obligation has been accepted, the
economic benefits associated with the guarantee
contracts will probably flow in, and the amount
of revenue associated with guarantee contracts
can be measured reliably. Guarantee income is
determined based on the total agreed fee in the
guarantee contracts and is recognised in the
income statement over the period of guarantee. The
Group receives consulting fee income in relation to
guarantee services in full at inception and records it
as unearned income before amortising it throughout
the period of guarantee.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest and handling fee income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. The Group receives
handling fee income from loan services in full at
inception and records it as unearned income before
amortising it throughout the contractual period of
the loan.

Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

— Dividend listed
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

income from investments

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
providing guarantee services to SMEs under certain
criteria are recognised as income in the income
statement upon receiving such grants. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the assets
and consequently are effectively recognised in the
income statement over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share awards granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Cox-Ross-Rubinstein
Binomial Pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the awards were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the awards,
the total estimated fair value of the awards is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the awards will vest.
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B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Share-based payments (continued)

®)

During the vesting period, the number of share awards
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of awards that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is included in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are physical assets or property
rights obtained by the Group from debtors, warrantors
or third parties following the enforcement of its creditor’s
rights. The initial cost of repossessed assets is measured
at the lower of the net carrying amount of loans and
advances and the fair value of the assets less costs to
sell on the acquisition date. Repossessed assets are not
depreciated or amortized. The impairment losses of initial
measurement and subsequent revaluation are charged to
the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X =

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member);

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

party;

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E 5

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(u) Related parties (continued)

BF$ESN -

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.

(v) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and

geographical locations.

Individually material

operating segments are not

aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share

a majority of these criteria.

2 NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME

1
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The principal activities of the Group are the provision of credit
guarantee and related consulting services, loans to customers
and agency services in the PRC. Net fee and interest income
represents net guarantee and consulting fee income and
net interest and handling fee income. The amount of each
significant category of net fee and interest income recognised

is as follows:
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B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME

BUAARETITIIR)

RFRERAEWA (F)

(CONTINUED)
2014 2013
20145 2013%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Guarantee and consulting ERREBHEBRA
fee income
Financing guarantee and BB ER KA AERA
consulting fee income 957,718 908,041
Performance guarantee and B HIEIR R FEAEIRA
consulting fee income 1,892 5,447
Litigation guarantee and FRERRBAERA
consulting fee income 421 789
960,031 914,277
Less: Re-guarantee expenses o BIERE A (1,754) (1,213)
Net guarantee and consulting ERRBAEFTBRA
fee income 958,277 913,064
Interest and handling fee income FERFEERA
arising from: ®xE :
- Loans and advances to — BEMER KRB
customers 1,209,140 727,151
— Cash at banks — RITEFER 36,782 22,315
— Restricted bank deposits — FHERRES 38,570 31,937
1,284,492 781,403
Interest and commission expenses FIERFEELH
arising from: *E :
- Borrowings from banks —RITEE (43,464) (41,222)
- Borrowings from non-bank — FEIRITHIBEE
institutions (21,771) (17,562)
- Financial assets sold under —BEHEESRHEE
repurchase agreements (157,452) (28,240)
— Commission paid to agents —FEBRATH (19,324) (30,711)
(242,011) (117,735)
Net interest and handling fee income FIERFEEZWA 1,042,481 663,668
2,000,758 1,576,732
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

2 NET FEE AND INTEREST INCOME 2

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s customer base is diversified and has no customer
with whom transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s net
fee and interest income during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2013. Details of concentrations of credit risk are set

out in Note 30(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities are

RFEEBERAEWA (HF)

AEERBZTIEHBEFPER - RE
Z£2014%F KX2013F12A831H It F &
WAERSHBBASEFFEE KT
BRAIOBHEF - BREAEFREER
BT IR TP MIEE30 (a) ©

BERAEETZEBOFBHIINM

disclosed in Note 29. 5¥29 -
3 OTHER REVENUE 3 HkA
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETFr
Government grants BT 48 B 28,899 42,684
Others HAh 636 1,277
29,535 43,961
4 |IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 4 EEREERX
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMF T
Trade and other receivables JFE LS K L b W 3R TR
(Note 14(b)) (Bt5t14(b)) 250,308 173,718
Loans and advances to customers BIWE RN BT (K1:216(1))
(Note 16(f)) 181,420 120,649
431,728 294,367

202 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

5 FHAFE

REATFE 2 0k

(a) Staff costs (a) ETHBE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Salaries, wages, bonuses and IE. 8¢ ZHK
other benefits H A2 7 238,596 201,117
Contributions to retirement EEZRE
schemes 45,913 30,215
Equity-settled share-based AR E AR
payment expenses X 120,871 144,202
405,380 375,534

The Group is required to participate in pension schemes
organised by the respective municipal governments of
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) whereby the
Group is required to pay annual contributions for PRC
based employees at certain rate of the standard wages
determined by the relevant authorities in the PRC during
the year. The Group has no other material obligation
for payment of retirement benefits to the PRC based
employees beyond the annual contributions described
above.

AREBEAZEPFEARKME ([
B 1) MHREE ™ BT AE S HE R R ET
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 BATFE (&)
(b) Other items (b) HIEH

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FIT AREFT

Operating lease charges in FEEEHEER
respect of buildings 75,832 50,546
Depreciation expenses (Note 19) ITEBMR (#/:719) 40,534 21,093
Amortisation expenses (Note 20)  #$HE B (47:£20) 1,285 608
Auditors’ remuneration BT E 5,978 5,348
Net foreign exchange loss (ERERE=ES 7,416 -
131,045 77,595

(c) Other net losses (c) HitFEE#E
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
Net (gain)/losses on disposal HEBEEEF

of fixed assets (W) /&8 (60) 137
Others Eifh 3,463 1,037
3,403 1,174

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT

(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement:

(b)

SO FBRPAEHR

(a) EHRDERBBIR :

BUAARETITIIR)

2014 20183
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM¥FT AREFT
Current tax (Note 26(a)) EHER (A15t26(a))
Provision for PRC income tax REFHRFTBEH
for the year 227,310 218,706
Deferred tax (Note 26(b)) BIEFTIST (Hat26(b))
Origination and reversal of O A BV E A I B
temporary differences (70,214) (108,182)
157,096 115,524

Reconciliation between tax expense and

(b) ZERBRFAENFHEHER

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HETAENAE X
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFT ARETF T
Profit before taxation B ATR)HE 664,520 472,272
Notional tax on profit before HBATEMRTERN
taxation, calculated at the rates FTiS® (#17t)
applicable in the jurisdictions
concerned (Note) 97,634 68,352
Effect of non-deductible expenses “NAIIEFHIL H B 75 5o 22 3,895 3,690
Effect of non-deductible AR EINEE W =R
investment income MG 2 11,961 -
Effect of unused tax losses AR ARBIBANTE
not recognized 43,606 43,482
Actual income tax expense FriStiBR &R 157,096 115,524
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B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Note:

Except for Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd, Chongging Hanhua
Assets Management Co., Ltd., Chongqging Yuzhong Hanhua
Micro-credit Co., Ltd., Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co.,
Ltd., Xi’an Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd., and Nanning Hanhua
Micro-credit Co., Ltd., the Company and its subsidiaries are
subject to PRC income tax rate of 25%.

Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd, Chongging Hanhua Assets
Management Co., Ltd., Chongging Yuzhong Hanhua Micro-
credit Co., Ltd. and Sichuan Hanhua Financing Guarantee Co.,
Ltd. are qualified enterprises located in the Western Region
and are therefore entitled to preferential tax rate of 15% in
2013 and 2014. Xi’an Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. is qualified
enterprises located in the Western Region in 2014 and is entitled
to preferential tax rate of 15% for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Nanning Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. is a qualified enterprise
located in Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region and is therefore
entitled to preferential tax rate of 9% for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBERAF
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6 AHFBERTRAES (&)

(b) ZERBRAENHEHER

HEHFBNRER (&)

UEE

BREERERNERIF  EEBE
EEEBRERRAR ZEMATERY
ENEEREREEAR - WIIBE
MERREBAR  ARMBE R
EFBRARMEEDHE NEEK
BRABNUIN ARAREEFRRR
FR25 % B 1S i i R A%

BEERROBBRAE  EEHES
EEERBRAR  EETAPEEE
NEERBRETA R LTI HER
BRRABRAAAFEADAME
M EEHE - BiR2013F
2014FZHBEEHE15% - AR
HENEERERABA014FEHFEE
BAFAEFBEZLE  AmMREZE
2014F12A31BLFE=ZHEEH
R15% °

EEMHENEERERARAARE
Btk EaERRERCE B
REE2014F12A31BILEEEE
BEFEI%



DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of

BUAARETITIIR)

7 ESMESHM

RIFZFHER QAR E11 5578

Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, BHIIRTE » LA R & &5 F161
with reference to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong BHHET EENESHFMEBEED
Companies Ordinance, is as follows: T
Salaries
allowances
Director’s  and benefits Discretionary Share-based 2014
fees in kind bonuses Sub-total payments Total
M BMR NEREE 2014
EZE RfEH #®e Nt HRRGEA EEAH
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFr  AEEFT  ARETR
Chairman £
Zhang Guoxiang (Appointed on REH (R2013%
13 March 2013) 3R13REZM) - 1,800 900 2,700 75,049 71,749
Executive directors HTEs
Lin Feng (Appointed on Mg (W2013%
13 March 2013 3R13REZA
resigned on 17 March 2015) Ri2015%
SA1THEE - 1,440 500 1,940 6,781 8,721
Non-executive directors FunEs
Tu Jianhua (Appointed on RRE (M2013%
13 March 2013) SA13HEZRT) - - - - - -
Duan Xiaohua (Appointed on BBEE (1A2013%
17 June 2013) 6A1THEZM) - - - - - -
Liu Jiaoyang (Appointed on 2%5 (R2013%
13 March 2013) SH13HEZH) - 174 159 333 - 333
Liu Tingrong (Appointed on FIEs (R2013%
13 March 2013) 3R13AEES) - = - - - -
Wang Fangfel (Appointed on THE (R2013%
13 March 2013) 3R13REE() - - - - - -
Feng Yongxiang (Appointed on Bk (120135
13 March 2013) 3R13REZf) - & - - - -
Zhou Xinyu (Appointed on BFHF (R2013%F
17 June 2013) 6A17TAEZM) - - - - - -
Liu Bolin (Appointed on Y@ (R2013%
17 June 2013) 6A17THEZ() - = - - - -
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7 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

BIAARETFTIIR)

7 ESNEEHM (&)

Salaries
allowances
Director’s  and benefits Discretionary Share-based 2014
fees in kind bonuses Sub-total payments Total
B 28R NERLE 2014
- £3 | EftfEH #e M BRGXA Egat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETT  ARETT  ARETT  AREFT  AEETT  AEETL
Independent non-executive directors BV FH{TES
Bai Qinxian (Appointed on BHE (20135
13 March 2013) SR13REZA) - 158 - 158 - 158
Deng Zhaoyu (Appointed on HEW (20135
13 March 2013) 3R13ARZM) - 158 - 158 - 158
Qian Shizheng (Appointed on B (R2013%
17 June 2013) BR1THEZRE) - 158 - 158 - 158
Ng Leung Sing (Appointed on R E (R2013%
17 June 2013) BRA1THEZH) - 158 - 158 - 158
Yuan Xiaobin (Appointed on R (1R2013%
17 June 2013) BR17TAEZM) - 158 - 158 - 158
Supervisor EZ
Zhou Daoxue (Appointed on A2 (120135
13 March 2013) 3E13REZRM) = = - = = =
Chen Zhonghua (Appointed on RHE (R2013F
13 March 2013) SA13HEZRR) - 190 210 400 - 400
Li Ruping (Appointed on FIF (R2013%
13 March 2013) 3A13REZA) - 720 300 1,020 4,895 5,915
- 5,114 2,069 7,183 86,725 93,908

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBERAF



Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X ERH AN - HUAARETTIIR)

DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 7 EENEEHM (&)

Salaries
allowances
Director's  and benefits  Discretionary Share-based 2013
fees in kind bonuses Sub-total payments Total
#H - 2ER WEREE 2013
2B Bt iR #e NE BRGXA ERAH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETL
Chairman £l
Tu Minghai (Resigned on RHE (R2013%
6 February 2013) 2R6RE) - - - - -
Tu Jianhua (Appointed on RRE (M2013%
February 6, 2013 and 2R6RAEZMAR
resigned on 6 March 2013) R2013F3A6A
BHE) = - - - -
Zhang Guoxiang (Appointed on KERE (R2013F
13 March 2013) 3A13HEZM) 1,454 400 1,854 89,535 91,389
Executive directors YirEs
Li Ruping (Resigned on ZMT (R2013%
13 March 2013) 3R13AEM) 82 20 102 950 1,062
Lin Feng (Appointed on % (120135
13 March 2013 3R13REZA
resigned on 17 March 2015) ER2015%
SA1TERE 800 280 1,080 7,698 8,738
Non-executive directors FunES
Tu Jianhua (Appointed on REE (R2013%
13 March 2013) 3R13REZM) - - - - -
Duan Xiaohua (Appointed on BEE (120135
17 June 2013) 6A17TRERT) - - - - -
Liu Jiaoyang (Appointed on 2B15 (R2013%
13 March 2013) 3A13REZM) 113 847 660 - 660
Liu Tingrong (Appointed on AR (20135
13 March 2013) 3R13REZE() - - - - -
Wang Fangfel (Appointed on THE (R2013%
13 March 2013) SA13REZE) 49 8 57 - o
Feng Yongxiang (Appointed on o (120135
13 March 2013) 3R13REZf) - - - - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

7 DIRECTOR’S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

7 ESNEEHM (&)

Salaries
allowances
Director's  and benefits  Discretionary Share-based 2013
fees in kind bonuses Sub-total payments Total
b 2R WEREE 2013
E%E Eftiaf #e Nt BRGXA FEA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEEFT ANEEfT  AREfT  AREFT  AREFT AREfT
Zhou Xinyu (Appointed on AT (M2013%
17 June 2013) 6A1TEEZM) = = = = = =
Liu Bolin (Appointed on 2R (R2013%
17 June 2013) 6A1THEZM) = = = = = =
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Bai Qinxian (Appointed on AL (R20135F
13 March 2013) 3A13RER() - 100 - 100 - 100
Deng Zhaoyu (Appointed on H]E (R2013%
13 March 2013) SH13HEZH) - 100 - 100 - 100
Qian Shizheng (Appointed on B (120135
17 June 2013) 6R17TREZM) = = = = = =
Ng Leung Sing (Appointed on RRE (M2013%
17 June 2013) 6A17TAEZM) = = = = = =
Yuan Xiaobin (Appointed on R (182013%
17 June 2013) 6A17THEZS) = = = = = =
Supervisor Bz
Li Changjin (Resigned on 283 (R2013%
13 March 2013) 3R13AE) - 168 40 208 - 208
Zhou Daoxue (Appointed on AEZ (R2013%
13 March 2013) 3R13REZM) = = = = = =
Chen Zhonghua (Appointed on R (R2013%
13 March 2013) SR13HEZRT) - 145 300 445 - 445
Li Ruping (Appointed on Z0F (R2013%
13 March 2013) SA13HEZME) = 448 100 548 4,890 5,438
- 3,459 1,695 5,154 103,033 108,187

There were no amounts paid during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 to the directors in connection with
their retirement from employment or compensation for loss
of office with the Group, or inducement to join. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the years ended 31 December

2014 and 2018.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2013:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
(2013: three) individuals are as follows:

8

BUAARETITIIR)

REHMAL

AEEaFHALTH HARSE
(2013%F : MB) BARRESE  FE
RSB R sE7IREE -

FIth= 7 (20135 : =%) AAMH
MemEnzImT

2014 2013

20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETT

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind  Z Bl ~ E8L R E 2R 3,600 2,904

Discretionary bonuses iy 2,300 1,020
Equity settled share-based payment VAR i 45 & LARR (9 A

expenses AR R 14,263 17,016

20,163 20,940

The emoluments of the three (2013: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

—EZBReHM AL (2013F : =£&)
R HanT

2014 2013
201445 20134
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AZ A&
RMB
AR¥
Nil # — 6,500,000 - =
6,500,000 - 7,000,000 3 2

7,000,000 - 7,500,000

No emoluments are paid or payable to these individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

R E 220144 M2013F12H31H It
FE AEBRAZFATIMARIR
S Bl B A (2 sk N B 42 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

9 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 9 ZAANTBREELLER
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders RARREIERGE BN BIEEEA
of the Company includes a loss of RMB115.2 million (2013: R#11528 87T (2013F A AR
RMB84.1 million) which has been dealt with in the financial B41E&ET)  MREEBENRARA
statements of the Company (see Note 27(a)). PissREAFERE (RMF27() °
10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HitiRE W=
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) HEMEZEWER MBS
comprehensive income 2
2014 2013
20145 2013F
Before-tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount  Tax benefit amount amount Tax benefit amount

LRI REkE NRBERE RATHE WEkE MRRERE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  AMBO0O  AMBO00  RMB'000

Note 26(b) Note 26/)
ARETR  AREFT  AREFT  AREFr  AREFT  ARETT
(Hit26(b) (Hi261)
Avalable-for-sale A ER
financial assets: SREE:
net movement in fair NELE]
value reserve - E)t 148 (87) 111 (407) 102 (305)

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBERAF



Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X ERH AN - HUAARETTIIR)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HittiRE Wz ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) EFPTERABRNEMEGS W R
including reclassification adjustments =3

2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT

Available-for-sale financial assets: R HESRIEE -
Changes in fair value recognised ~ AFEZ R AL

during the year BEZ 111 (305)
Net movement in the fair value REREMERE WS
reserve during the year BRI AR BEFEE
recognised in other
comprehensive income 111 (305)
11 EARNING PER SHARE 11 ERKE
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on ﬁmtﬂxuﬁz SIRIE LA N ARE B INA
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the NEEBIRARREAEFE R D BT
Company and the weighted average of ordinary shares in issue EBAR R INRE L EETE -
during the year, calculated as follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
Profit attributable to the equity BB B R A
shareholders of the Company FFE (AREFT)
(RMB’000) 432,002 279,736
Weighted average number of REsTE E AR =R
ordinary shares in issue for the BETERR
purpose of basic earnings per g (FA)
share ("000) 4,056,904 2,803,463
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BEXRGRKE (AR T) 0.11 0.10
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

11 EARNING PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 11 SRW=E (&)
() Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i) SEROMEFLIH
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Issued ordinary shares at MTA1TBEBTEER
1 January 3,430,000 300,000
Effect of new issues BT E 626,904 2,508,463
Weighted average number of Mm12H31H
ordinary shares at 31 December 3% HY INHE T 15 &L 4,056,904 2,803,463
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the REZE2014F X2013F12A31H
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, and therefore, EFE REEEAMENL B
diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic B At BEERKEESER
earnings per share. BEXRGRIE -
12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 EES
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) EELBIE:
The Group REE

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Cash in hand EFRE 63 288
Cash at banks RITHEH 2,531,049 940,257
Cash and cash equivalents in AHBELRERNELES
the consolidated cash flow
statements 2,531,112 940,545

21 4 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 E¥&ES (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) EESBIE . ()
(continued)
The Company RAF

At 31 December

M12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARETFT
Cash in hand EFE4S 9 7
Cash at banks RITEN 80,680 445
Cash and cash equivalents in BRI EFI R EE S
the statement of
financial position 80,689 452
The Group’s provision of guarantee and loan to customer AEBETRELERTPRHN
services in the PRC are conducted in RMB. RMB is not a EREERRIEAANREET
freely convertible currency and the remittance of RMB out ARBIIEATERRLIBNER -
of the PRC is subject to the relevant rules and regulations A RE B BIRINEZ F
of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC I 7844 49 48 B S0 EEE 8 ) AR I e
government. ERPTHIR o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

12 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 12 EES (#)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BATF EEKEETBAMANE
used in operations: SWHAEX
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Profit before taxation B A1) 664,520 472,272
Adjustments for: R
Impairment losses BERMEEX 431,728 294,367
Provisions for guarantee losses REBETEHES 72,055 148,984
Depreciation and amortisation MEREHER 41,819 21,701
(Gain)/losses on disposal of RERBTEETF
fixed assets (W) /BB (60) 137
Interest expenses FEZH 222,687 87,024
Equity-settled share-based ARG T
payment 120,871 144,202
Foreign exchange loss =P S 7,416 -
Change in working capitals: LEESEE -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted  FHIERFEES
bank deposits md (1) 168,718 (85,954)
Increase in loans and advances B B R R BRI AN
to customers (1,602,893) (2,738,952)
Increase in trade and other JE U Rz E th R U SR IE 8 N
receivables (412,225) (221,684)
Decrease in customer pledged TFARE & 18R
deposits (51,077) (368,747)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals FEET M E Ath FEAS 5R08
and other payables (R A), 1 mn (69,934) 245,557
Cash used in operations IRESEB TR IR S (406,375) (2,001,093)

21 6 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBERAF



(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

13 RESRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

14

All restricted bank deposits represent the deposits at

banks according to the requirements from banks or related

government regulations for the credit guarantees that the

Group provides to third parties for their borrowing from banks.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group

BUAARETITIIR)

13 FHERFRES

BT B RIRE S RIB R AT X
BUMERRE - AEEREBTER
WS =T R A R TR A
TR -

14 EW R HMEWFIE
rEH

At 31 December

M12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AR For
Trade receivables and receivables for FEWBR T R FE (B =X
default payments (Note 14(a)) (Hizt14(a) 737,233 408,208
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B BERER (M 14(0))
(Note 14(b)) (449,154) (288,488)
288,079 119,720
Interest receivables FEWFIE 59,846 44,711
Other prepayments, deposits and HEMENZIE - #E& Kk
other receivables H Ath FE Y 5RIE 56,384 77,439
404,309 241,870

As at 31 December 2014, except for deposits of RMB18.0
million (2013: RMB17.2 million), all of the remaining trade and
other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised

as expense within one year.

M2014F12H318 - i€ AR
18.08 & 7t (M2013F12831H A A
R¥1728&7T) o Ht B EIK
K H b FEUGRIETE ST — F A I Bl 5%
WRAER -

Annual Report 2014
—B-MEER

217




Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 B R EMERRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company VNN |

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWF AT
(Note 14(c)) SKIE (M5t 14(c)) 60,122 -
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - ek
receivables H b fE Uk 5108 24,348 6,377
84,470 6,377
All of the other trade and other receivables were expected to B b P A FE U B Lt E R IR TR ET R
be recovered or recognised as expense within one year. —FRKREISERAER -

21 8 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 W R HAiEWRIE (&
(CONTINUED)
(a) Ageing analysis: (a) BRERDAT :
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RIEEHR - RBEEERH R
of trade receivables and receivables for default payments, B 132 BR YE R 14 1Y JE AR SR I JlE LR
based on the invoice date and net of allowance for REFNRRSTAT

doubtful debts, is as follows:

The Group KEE

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Within 1 year —F AR 437,078 235,825
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —3_ 179,839 148,442
Over 2 years but less than 3 years =Em=kE 113,251 15,941
Over 3 years but less than 4 years =ENF 7,065 8,000
737,233 408,208
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B EEERMEE (449,154) (288,488)
288,079 119,720
Receivables that were not impaired relate to a number i A B B FE W SR IE 3 & Z (A
of independent customers that have a good track record AREBBRERTLENB YR
with the Group. Based on past experience, management F-REBELR TEERA
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary HBEMNESEGERRERE -
in respect of these balances as there has not been a ERACHEETESAEE -
significant change in credit quality and the balances are mEZEERTERIET 2 S

still considered fully recoverable. E
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 B R HttEWRIE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables: (b) EWERME :
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables and FEURR 3R & FE LR B R0 & R
receivables for default payments are recorded using an BERAAFEIRGDEE - BRIEASE
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that ERAKBEEEFENKSE
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the M EZBEAT  BERBBEEBX
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables 15 B 18 e WOAR 51 K JE L (BT
and receivables for default payments directly (see Note FAzsE (RHER13)i) ©
1(i)(ii)).
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during LA & & =2014F K%2013F12
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, including AR IEFEMEREEED
both specific and collective loss components, is as (BFEER RAEEKXIHLG)
follows:

220 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables: (continued)

The Group

BUAARETITIIR)

14 BWRKEMEWRRIER (&

(b) FEWFHERE : (&)

rEE

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBFT
At 1 January M1 AR 288,488 114,770
Impairment losses recognised in A& GFF B RER
the consolidated income BERMBERE
statement (Note 4) (Htit4) 250,308 173,718
Write-offs REZEH (89,642) -
At 31 December M®12H31H 449,154 288,488

At 31 December 2014, the Group’s receivables for
default payments of RMB734.5 million (2013:RMB405.1
million) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables were related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected
to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts of RMB449.2 million (2013:RMB288.5
million) were made at 31 December 2014.

Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(c)

MR2014F12A31H A& B A
AR 73455 & 7T (K2013F
12A31B AARB405.18ET)
B JE WA B R E B EE E AR
1B o 1875 B FE W GRIB S & B 75
RENZFE @ MEBEEEFELTMG
B IR TE T ERE IR B & o 301D B e
Wkag - Bk - EE2014512H
31HEH ARMB44928 8 T
(R2013F12A318 A A B
288.5E B IT) KIEBIIEAR AR -

P F A R

BETRARFAREERR 28
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

15 LOANS TO OFFICERS

Loans to officers of the company disclosed pursuant to
section 78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, with reference to section 161B of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

(a) Loans made by a third party under a guarantee

15

EREEAEBEN
AR A AR R B 7 2 B 41 P 451

F4%11
BTG M2 BRI F K0 161BIKIE B
NARBSREEABER

(@) F=FHEADAERTEHHD

given by the Company BE®;
Name of borrower Cui Weilan Li Ruping
BB EHR Ut
Position Secretary of the Board/ Supervisor/
Vice President General Manager
v ExgwE Ex
Bl RS L
Particulars of guarantee given Guarantee given to Guarantee given to
(RMB’000) financial institution financial institution
in respect of a loan of  in respect of a loan of
1,000 1,000
KT HEERFE FE 1,000 #E 1,000
(AR®ETFT) BT RgEanER BT RgEanER
Maximum liability under ERTHRE=AE
the guarantee (RMB’000) (AEBTFT)
—at 1 January 2013 — 20131420134 1,000 1,000
1H1H
- at 31 December 2013 — 20137820134 = =
12H31H
- at 31 December 2014 — 2014520144 = =
12H31H
Amount paid or liability BERTEX &8k Nil Nil
incurred under DELAE i Eas

the guarantee

The guarantees are given without recourse to the directors
and have expired by September 2013.
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X =

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

15 LOANS TO OFFICERS (CONTINUED)

(b) Loans made by the Group

Name of borrower

tERA R

Position

4w

Terms of the loans
— duration
— loan amount (RMB’000)
— interest rate
— securities

Balance of the loan
(RMB’000)
—at 1 January 2013
—at 31 December 2013
—at 31 December 2014

Maximum balance
outstanding (RMB’000)
— during 2013
— during 2014

BRFH
HAPR
BEReE (ARETT)
FE
R

Bt (AKREFT)
M2013%F1 A1H
72013412 A31H
M2014F12H31H

RaE (AR TT)

MR20134F
MR2014%

There was neither amount due but unpaid, nor any

provision made against the principal amount or interest
on these loans at 31 December 2013 and 2014.

AAEFIE - BAARETITIIR)

15 BREBEABER (&)

(b) FAEEFEHHER

Li Changjin
FE

Supervisor

(Resigned on 13 March 2013)
BE=E

(201363 A 13 B T)

six months-one year
6fE A =14

750

10%-12%

None #&

90

90

A2013E K2014E12 8310 * 5
EEPMAEENSEE  NEHR
I EERARE S BB B -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 16 BHERREX
(a) Analysed by nature (a) TBHUEEDW
The Group REH

At 31 December

Mm12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fr AREFT
Micro-lending NI EER 3,528,027 2,392,587
Retail loans BABER 2,385,937 2,164,091
Loans to individual business BAIBRFER
proprietor 372,066 220,722
Gross loans and advances to BER KRBT
QUEIDTIETS __6:286,030 77400
Less: Allowances for B BEROREERE
impairment losses
— Individually assessed & BIET 52 (48,145) (49,344)
— Collectively assessed HEFTR (240,710) (148,154)
Total allowances for impairment B EEFERE
losses (288,855) (1 97,498_)
Net loans and advances to BEWER N AT FRE
customers 5,997,175 4,579,902
Loans and advances to customers included loans under MR2014F12A31H » W E &K
repurchase agreements, amounting to RMB2,101.2 Rt aEEHOESLOTE
million (2013: RMB794.0 million) as at 31 December FHEEEEARARK2101.28
2014 (See Note 22). Bt (R2013F12A31HAAR

¥794.0868 L) (RHizE22) -

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBERAF



Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 16 BHERREXK (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Analysed by industry sector (b) RITEDW
The Group EH
At 31 December At 31 December
W12A31R R12A31H
2014 2013
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARE T % AREFT %
Wholesale and retail BEBEMTEE 2,023,138 32.18% 1,913,045 40.04%
Construction BEE 1,293,663 20.58% 406,530 8.51%
Manufacturing gl 922,373 14.67% 669,401 14.01%
Real estate EiE 711,150 11.31% 604,910 12.66%
Leasing and commercial services HEMEERS 173,570 2.76% 197,703 4.14%
Others Hith 1,162,136 18.50% 985,811 20.64%

6,286,030 100.00% 4,777,400 100.00%

Gross loans and advances to customers — EWEZRBRAE 6,286,030 100.00% 4,777,400 100.00%
Less: Allowancss for impairment losses B BERRBEER (288,855) (197,498)
Net loans and advances to customers BHETRBIEE 5,997,175 4,579,902
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (fk X E 2 A A oh

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Analysed by type of collateral

The Group

(c) ZHERRERIN

rEH

CBHUAARBTTIIR)

16 BHERKRBR (&)

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFr
Guaranteed loans REEK 3,357,212 1,993,651
Unsecured loans mIEREK 1,076,643 1,648,062
Secured loans BERERK 1,852,175 1,235,687
Gross loans and advances to BWER B4R
customers 6,286,030 4,777,400
Less: Allowances for impairment 5 : E0RE%ERE
losses
- Individually assessed & RIEHR (48,145) (49,344)
— Collectively assessed HAEFTIR (240,710) (148,154)
Total allowances for impairment ERRBEEEERE
losses (288,855) (197,498)
Net loans and advances to BERER N BFFEE
customers 5,997,175 4,579,902

226 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X ERH AN - HUAARETTIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 16 BHERRBN (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Overdue loans analysed by overdue period (d) ERHERNERIRS T
The Group EH

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT ABRETFT
Overdue within 3 months EEASEA AR (E3EA)
(inclusive) 131,400 46,378
Overdue more than 3 months to 1 E31E A Z=6{& A
6 months (inclusive) (&26fEA) 110,260 41,787
Overdue more than 6 months to ~ BHIGME A =14 (Z14)
one year (inclusive) 38,204 28,524
Overdue more than one year BETF LA 10,827 33,165
290,691 149,854
Overdue loans represent loans, of which the whole or EEEEREEEKLH NS
part of the principal or interest were overdue for one day st s ER1 Kak A B -
or more.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

BIAARETFTIIR)

16 BHERKRBR (&)

(CONTINUED)
(e) Analysed by methods for assessing allowances (e) BHERRBRIRAESTESR
for impairment losses FEARIRMT
The Group AEE
At 31 December 2014
20145128318
Loans and Impaired loans and advances
advances EREERRER
for which for which for which
allowances  allowances  allowances
are are are
collectively  collectively individually
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total
RESHR
bR E HAE HAE
B BERAE  EBERER
EXREH FR FRFME N &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  AREFT  ARETZ AREFT  AREFZT
Micro-lending MIREER 3,392,450 28,036 107,541 135,577 3,528,027
Retail Loans AAER 2,302,170 70,878 12,889 83,767 2,385,937
Loans to individual business ~ [EETIEFPEH
proprigtors 363,047 9,019 - 9,019 372,066
Gross loans and advances to W ER LB A%E
customers 6,057,667 107,933 120,430 228,363 6,286,030
Less: Allowances for impairment Ji : EZUREER
losses (147,463) (93,247) (48,145) (141,392) (288,855)
Net loans and advances to S EEE
customers 5,910,204 14,686 72,285 86,971 5,997,175

228 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X ERH AN - HUAARETTIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 16 BHERKRBR (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Analysed by methods for assessing allowances (e) BHERREBRRASNES
for impairment losses (continued) FEARIN RO (&)
The Group (continued) REE ()

At 31 December 2013

R2013512F318
Loans and Impaired loans and advances
advances BEREESRRER
for which for which for which
allowances allowances allowances
are are are
collectively collectively individually
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total

CIENEN
aHERE HRfE MG
Efw  RRRAS  EERER
ERRBR HARHE H3HE g At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETT  ARETT  AEETr  ARETT  AEETn

Micro-lending IMIGEER 2,317,863 31,202 43,522 74,724 2,392,587
Retail Loans EAET 2,118,300 29,561 16,230 45,791 2,164,091
Loans to individual business ~ AEIEFER

proprigtors 218,405 2,317 - 2,317 220,722

Gross loans and advances o~ EHEF kB FHAE
customers 4,654,568 63,080 59,752 122,832 4,777,400

Less: Allowances for impairment J, : EZUREER
losses (93,931) (54,229) (49,344) (103,567) (197,498)

Net loans and advances to EWETRBTFE
customers 4,560,637 8,857 10,408 19,265 4,579,902
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(ff Movements of allowances for impairment

losses

The Group

16 BHERKRBR (&)

(f)

At 31 December 2014

RRERRBRRELERSD

AKEE

120145128318
Allowances for impaired
Allowances
for loans loans and advances
and advances ERERARERNAELH
which are which are which are
collectively  collectively individually
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total
RASHR
R E HiAfE HAfE
BEN  EBRES  EERER
ERRBH FRHE FRHE et &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFL  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETZ
As at 1 January 1A18 93,931 54,223 49,344 103,567 197,498
Charge for the year (Note 4 A%F5HE (#ii#4) 53,532 85,748 42,140 127,888 181,420
Write-offs RERH = (47,285) (43,339) (90,624) (90,624)
Recoveries KEBZHERREH - 561 - 561 561
As at 31 December 12A31H 147,463 93,247 48,145 141,392 288,855

230 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (X & 2 H Ao -

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

(CONTINUED)

(f) Movements of allowances for impairment

losses (continued)

The Group (continued)

B S ¥R R B

BUAARETITIIR)

16 BHERKRBR (&)

() BRERRBRBEEEZS
(#8)

&M (&)

At 31 December 2013
R2013512F318
Allowances for impaired

Allowances
for loans loans and advances
and acvances EREERRSRNAELE
which are which are which are
collectively collectively individually
assessed assessed assessed Subtotal Total
wrEa N
HERE HifE HAfE
BEN REREs EERER
BEARBH AR BT gt AEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  AREFr  AREFr  AREFfr  ARETI
As at 1 January 1A1H 37,241 30,798 15,958 46,756 83,997
Charge for the year (Note 4) KER (H1i4) 56,690 30,573 33,386 63,959 120,649
Write-offs RERH - (7,429) = (7,423) (7,429)
Recoveries KEBZHERREH - 275 - 275 275
As at 31 December 12A318 93,931 54,223 49,344 108,567 197,498
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

16 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 16 BHERRBR (&)

(CONTINUED)
(g) Analysed by credit quality

The Group

() BEEEENIHIIRMT
rEE

At 31 December

M12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
Gross balance of loans and BER KRBT
advances to customers
Neither past due nor impaired R EAARR(E 5,995,339 4,627,546
Overdue but not impaired B AR A 62,328 27,022
Impaired ERE 228,363 122,832
6,286,030 4,777,400
Less: allowances for impairment W BIRER LB
losses BB
Neither past due nor impaired ABEA AR E (138,183) (90,296)
Overdue but not impaired B AR E (9,280) (3,635)
Impaired BiRE (141,392) (103,567)
_______________________________________________________ (288,855) _______(197,498)
Net balance F R
Neither past due nor impaired R ERRE 5,857,156 4,537,250
Overdue but not impaired BRI E 53,048 23,387
Impaired 2RE 86,971 19,265
5,997,175 4,579,902
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

17 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 17 THHEHEEMEE
The Group NEH

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTFT AREFT

Unlisted available-for-sale FEEMAHEE

equity instruments EamTHE 11,841 9,593
Wealth management products T8 B EE R 146,000 =
157,841 9,593
The types of structured entities that the Group does not AEEBBEEFBREMERH K
consolidate but in which it holds an interest include entities HEERERINEBLERBR=ER
set up for wealth management products issued by banks. The MiEmARITEMER - BE&B(E
nature and purpose of these structured entities are to generate FREMNGEENENTESERERES
fees from managing assets on behalf of third party investors. WEETRDMEESE  HppEH7AR
These vehicles are financed through the issue of units to FREEZITHEHEREERNMHE -
investors. The variable interest from these structured entities AEEBELELEBCEEBAEREMNT
are not significant thus we do not consolidate these structured SRRITTEE  AEAEERKE
entities. The maximum loss exposure of interests held by the LA BETRBMARSENS I
Group is the same as the carrying amount. WERNEHEE - XEBEEELER

fEERBPHRARBREOBARNEE
FANEDNIREEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18 HFAAMNKRE

The Company b NN |
At 31 December
M12A31H
2014 20183
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFT
Unlisted shares, at cost TRy - RAANET 6,198,749 4,327,989
Less: impairment loss B REEE - -
6,198,749 4,327,989

The following list contains the information of the Company’s

subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014.

Equity interest held by the Group
FEEFENRAFER

Place and date of
incorporation/

At 31 December

Particulars of paid
in capital as at

TREF|ARQFN2014F12A31HH
BT RRIMER -

establishment M12A318 31 December 2014 Principal
3L A 2014 2013 R2014612831H activity
B R B 2014%F 20134 BRERHFE TEEK
Sichuan Hanhua Financing Chengdu  100.00%  100.00% 600,000 Financial
Guarantee Co., Ltd. 19 May 2005 guarantee
(m)IEREERERAR) FX 8200558 19H BB HER
Beijing Hanhua Financing Beijing  100.00%  100.00% 400,000 Financial
Guarantee Co., Ltd. 11 August 2006 guarantee
(ERBEREERERAA) 172006468 A11H BB HER
Liaoning Hanhua Investment Shenyang  100.00% 100.00% 300,000 Financial
Guarantee Co., Ltd. 25 August 2006 guarantee
(EEREREERERRAR) 520068 A25H BHIE IR
Chongging Hanhua Assets Chongging  100.00%  100.00% 100,000 Assets
Management Co., Ltd. 29 May 2007 management
(EEBELEEEERAA) BE20075E5A29H BEEE
Chongging Yuzhong Hanhua Chongging 86.00% 56.00% 500,000 SME
Micro-credit Co., Ltd. 25 September 2008 lending
(EEMAHERENERR E[E2008%F9A25H R ER
BREERQRF])
Sichuan Hanhua Micro-credit Chengdu 61.43% 76.00% 700,000 SME
Co., Ltd. 19 May 2009 lending
(M) ENEERERAF) Bk 8200958194 N EER

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

BESEROBERAF



(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

(CONTINUED)

The Company (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

BUAARETITIIR)

18 YWFRANKRE (&)

Equity interest held by the Group
FEERENRAER

Place and date of
incorporation/

At 31 December

Particulars of paid
in capital as at

establishment M12A31H 31 December 2014 Principal
B 2014 2013 M2014%E12A318 activity
WK B 20145 20135 BRERHFE TEXEB

Hanhua Guarantee Co., Ltd Chongging  100.00%  100.00% 3,500,000 Financial

(HEERROABRRA) 19 August 2009 guarantee
BE2009%F8 A19A FIBHER

Sichuan Small & Medium-sized Chengdu  100.00%  100.00% 200,000 Assets
Assets Management Co., Ltd. 21 October 2010 management
(mHHEEERERAR) AR #F20106F10 7217 BEEE

Tianjin Hanhua Micro-credit Tianjin ~ 100.00%  100.00% 200,000 SME
Co., Ltd. 29 June 2011 lending
(REHEEEFBRAR) RAE201156A29H RGBSR

Shenyang Financial and Shenyang  100.00%  100.00% 300,000 SME
Commercial Development 30 September 2011 lending
District Hanhua Technology BI52011F9A30H RN EEE
Micro-credit Co., Ltd.

(BEeRABEREERE
NEEFERRA)

Tianjin Small & Medium-sized Tianjin ~ 100.00%  100.00% 10,000 Investment
International Factoring Co., Ltd. 11 November 2011 consulting
(REFHBERFREERAF) RE2011F11 A11H BEHH

Nanning Hanhua Micro-credit Nanning  100.00%  100.00% 150,000 SME
Co., Ltd. 8 December 2011 lending
(BAEMHENEERARRT) BE20114612A8H FNREER

Beijing Hanhua Credit Beijing  100.00% 100.00% 5,000 Investment
Management Co., Ltd. 15 March 2012 consulting
(ERBEERERERATF) k201293 A15H REH®H

Chongaing Huiwei Investment Chongging  100.00%  100.00% 3,000 Investment
Co., Ltd. 7 January 2013 consulting
(BEESMIREERAA) BE2013F1A7H BB

Changchun Hanhua Micro-credit Changchun 60.00% 60.00% 150,000 SME
Co., Ltd. 25 January 2013 lending
(RETHENEERARAR) &&201351H25H R/ EER

Xi'an Hanhua Micro-credit Xi'an 65.00% 65.00% 400,000 SME
Co., Ltd. 12 September 2013 lending
(BEmBENEERERAF) F%201359H12H N EER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

18 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

BIAARETFTIIR)

18 $WFRANKRE (&)

The Company (continued)

Equity interest held by the Group
FEERFENRETER

Place and date of
incorporation/

At 31 December
M12A31H

Particulars of paid
in capital as at

establishment 31 December 2014 Principal
M R 2014 2013 M2014FE12A318 activity
HER B 2014%F 20135 BRERNFE TEEB

Beijing Hanhua Internet Technology Beijing  100.00%  100.00% 50,000 Technical
Co., Ltd. 11 October 2013 consulting and
(L RBEREREBRAF) JER2013%F10A11H technical service

U
il R %

Kunming Panlong District Hanhua Kunming  100.00%  100.00% 200,000 SME
Micro-credit. Co., Ltd. 6 December 2013 lending
(BEAMRERBE NEEK B 852013512 A6H RNV EEER
BRAF)

Guiyang Nanming District Hanhua Guiyang  100.00% N/A 50,000 SME
Micro-credit. Co., Ltd. 10 April 2014 lending
(BfamEAESE NEER 52014547108 R B
BRAF)

Chongging Changjiang Financial Chongging 90.00% N/A 300,000 Financial
Factoring Co., Ltd. 1 July 2014 Factoring
(EBRISRABERAR) BEE2014F7A1H8 SRIRE

Nanjing Hanhua Technology Nanjing 60.00% N/A 150,000 SME
Micro-credit. Co., Ltd. 29 October 2014 lending
(ARTHENMREERERAR) FR2014F10829R NV RER

Beijing Hanhua Information Beijing  100.00% N/A 10,000 Investment
Service Co., Ltd. 13 November 2014 consulting
(ERBEEERBERRR) JtR2014%F11 A13A REKS

Harbin Hanhua Micro-credit Co., Ltd. Harbin 95.00% N/A 200,000 SME
(BRABERE NEER 27 November 2014 lending
BEREMERR) MAERE2014F11 A27H HNPEER

All of the above subsidiaries are companies with limited liability
incorporated and operated in the PRC. The English translation
of the names of these companies is for reference only. The
official names of these companies are in Chinese.

The group has no subsidiaries that have non-controlling
interests that are material to the Group.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROGARAE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

19 FIXED ASSETS 19 BEEE
The Group rEE
Buildings Office and
held for Motor other Leasehold  Construction Total
own use vehicles equipments  improvements inprocess fixed assets
HAR iV

REN ELpid ARk BRXH ERIE BREEAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

AT AEETn  ARRTn ARBTr ARRTr ARETR

Cost: B
At 1 January 2013 201351 A1 41,438 19,947 20,664 29,628 519 112,196
Additions AR 213,708 4373 6,712 8,295 7421 240,509
Transfers in/{out) g\ /(&) - - 3,673 - (3,679 -
Disposals RE - (1,130) (943) - - (2,073
At 31 December 2013 R2013E12A31H

and 1 January 2014 R2014%51A18 255,146 23,190 30,106 37,928 4,267 350,632
Additions AEEN 37,616 4,557 11,632 25,818 48,731 128,354
Transfers in/{out) g\ /(&) 7,286 = 261 = (7.547) =
Transfers to infanglble assets BRTEYEE - = = = (596) (596)
Disposals RE = (1,379 (514) - - (1,887)
At 31 December 2014 20145128318 300,048 26,374 41,485 63,741 44,855 476,503
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHTE
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1A (2,404) (7,336) (7,412 (13,600) - (30,752)
Charge for the year REHE (2,952) (4,049 (4,487) (9,605) - (21,099)
Written back on disposals READ - 621 746 - - 1,367
At 31 December 2013 R2013512A31R

and 1 January 2014 R2014£151A (5,356) (10,764) (11,153 (23,205) - (50,478)
Charge for the year REGIR (16,618) (4,099) {7,01) (12,806) - (40,534)
Written back on disposals REEMD - 878 371 - - 1,249
At 31 December 2014 20145124318 (21,974) (13,985) (17,793 (36,011) - (89,769)
Net book value: EHEE
At 31 December 2014 R2014512A314 278,074 12,389 23,692 21,730 44,855 386,740
At 31 December 2013 R2013512A31R 249,790 12,426 18,953 14,718 4,267 300,154
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

19 FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 10 BEEEE (&)

The Company KAT
Office and
Motor other Construction Total
vehicles  equipments in process fixed assets
AR EE
EmRE Htbk s EEIRE BEEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1A1H 1,277 62 - 1,339
Additions ZRERE - - 940 940
Transfers to intangible assets ~ BEEEFEE = = (788) (788)
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12831H
and 1 January 2014 K2014F181H 1,277 62 152 1,491
Disposals RE - ) - 3)
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12831H 1,277 62 1,282 2,621
Accumulated depreciation: Rt E :
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1A18 (1,038) (38) - (1,076)
Charge for the year AFFHR (81) (8) - (89)
At 31 December 2013 #2013%F12H31H
and 1 January 2014 201451818 (1,119) (46) - (1,165)
Charge for the year REFHR (80) (4) - (84)
At 31 December 2014 72014512831 H (1,199) (50) - (1,249)
Net book value: IREFE
At 31 December 2014 M2014512831H 78 12 1,282 1,372
At 31 December 2013 M2013%12831H 158 16 152 326

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

All intangible assets of the Group are software during the years

ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

20 BREE
AEH

R E 220144 N2013%F12H31H It
FE  AEBNMEEFEEARY -

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
2014%F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Cost %N
At the beginning of the year REH] 5,957 1,450
Additions AN AN 1,464 4,507
At the end of the year RER 7,421 5,957
Less: Accumulated amortization B BErEes
At the beginning of the year REH] (1,427) (819)
Charge for the year AREETHR (1,285) (608)
At the end of the year RER (2,712) (1,427)
Net book value REFE
At the end of the year RER 4,709 4,530
At the beginning of the year REA 4,530 631
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

20 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 20 BILEE (&)
The Company N
At 31 December
M12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR Fr
Cost %N
At the beginning of the year REF 2,718 -
Additions ZRAF3E AN - 2,718
At the end of the year RER 2,718 2,718
Less: Accumulated amortisation o RETEEGE
At the beginning of the year REH] (107) -
Charge for the year REFR (544) (107)
At the end of the year REXR (651) (107)
Net book value BRTEFEE
At the end of the year RER 2,067 2,611
At the beginning of the year RED 2,611 -
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B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

21 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 21 TEMERK
The interest-bearing borrowings were repayable as follows: STEEFIRERRGERTOT ¢
The Group NEER
At 31 December
M12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFr
Within 1 year or on demand ERFEEI1FUR 735,607 724,500
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FEZE2F 80,000 116,000
After 2 years but within 5 years 2FEE5F - 126,240
After 5 years 5% A = -
815,607 966,740
The interest-bearing borrowings were secured as follows: STEERERERAASFTAT :
The Group rEE
At 31 December
M12A831H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFIT
Bank loans (Note (i) IRITER (Ka20)
- Unsecured — mER 207,907 167,240
— Guaranteed by third parties —F=FER 115,000 440,000
- Secured by properties of the Group ~— — ZREE Y ZE T
(Note (if) (Hiaz(i) 91,000 97,000
413,907 704,240
Loans from related parties RERETHER
- Unsecured — EmYER - 20,000
Other loans (Note (i) EMEFK (KL i)
- Unsecured — EmER 401,700 242,500
815,607 966,740
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B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

21 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(CONTINUED)

The Group
Notes:

() All of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the fulfiiment
of covenants commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the covenants,
the loans would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
Note 30(c). At 31 December 2014, none of covenants relating
to the bank loans had been breached.

(i) The bank loans are secured by the Group’s buildings held for
own use. The aggregate carrying value of the secured properties
amounted to RMB205.0 million (2013: RMB211.9 million) as at
31 December 2014.

(i) Other loans bear interest at a range from 6% to 12% per annum,
are unsecured and are repayable by 26 September 2016.

21

&M

gz

() FBREEMNRTEXREARITHEHSR
WIBFT VU MERER - MASEER
HE BERAREGRAEREE - A&
BETHEZEROBR AEEHR
FMEREENEZFBRAN T
30(c) ° R2014412H310 « iz
HER ©

(i) MOEFBHAEEZEMER - B
2014%F12A318 « KIF W EH AR
HE A AR205.08 &7t (20134
12A31BAARK211.98 &) °

(i) EMERHFEEERNNRE%E12% -
AEERIY A &EANR20165F9H26

HEE -
22 FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER 22 BEHEBESHMEE
REPURCHASE AGREEMENT
The Group rRE
At 31 December
MA12H31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETT
Benefit rights of loans and BNE R KRB R =i
advances to customers 2,182,446 797,959

Details of the carrying values of underlying assets of financial
assets under repurchased agreement are set out in Note 16(a).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

23 LIABILITIES FROM GUARANTEES 23 ERMUEEE
The Group rEE
At 31 December
M12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFT
Deferred income BT A 410,906 423,794
Provisions for guarantee losses RENEBETLEES
(Note 23(a)) (H5+23(a)) 501,254 429,199
912,160 852,993
The Company ZNANS
At 31 December
M12A31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFT
Deferred income EIEI A = 44
Provisions for guarantee losses REPETEES
(Note 23(a)) (H1:t23(a) 122 127
122 171
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B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

23 LIABILITIES FROM GUARANTEES

BIAARETFTIIR)

23 ERUEERE (A)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Provisions for guarantee losses (a) REHETEES
The Group TEH
At 31 December
MW12H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFT
At the beginning of the year F1) 429,199 280,215
Charge for the year REFHE 447,221 322,702
Transfers out i (375,166) (173,718)
At the end of the year FR 501,254 429,199
The Company ARF
At 31 December
M12H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETF T
At the beginning of the year F1) 127 127
Transfers out =Nl (5) -
At the end of the year FR 122 127

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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24 CUSTOMER PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(a)

(b)

Customer pledged deposits

Customer pledged deposits refer to deposits received

from customers as collateral security of the credit

guarantee issued by the Group. These deposits are

interest-free, and will be returned to customers after the

guarantee contracts expire.

Accruals and other payables

BUAARETITIIR)

24 FARBEREFREMEN

IE

(a) FARESE
FARERIERETF MR RE
T AMERANEBEIRHIEROTE

RER - HERSHES - AH
REREVERFRERS

(b) FEET R H M EARRIE

The Group rEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR¥For
Accrued staff cost JE A< B8 T 5
— Salaries, wages, bonuses and —T%& - 8% 28
other benefits N E b A& ) 62,002 62,670
— Contribution to retirement scheme — BERR - 51
Interest payables FERT R B 3,297 2,720
Other payables H b fE{ 3RI8 43,792 19,362
Financial liabilities measured at R HRCAR T E
amortised cost TRIBE 109,091 84,803
Business tax and other JERT &R K
surcharges payable HAHtnE 12,758 16,688
Receipts in advance T8 U IE 154,551 231,377
Total SEr 276,400 332,868
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

24 CUSTOMER PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND 24 GAGRBEREFTREMENS
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES I (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Company ¥ NN
2014 2013
2014%F 2013%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Amount due to subsidiaries FEFR T HOE 665,861 99,430
Other accruals and payables E T KB FIR 28,734 9,819
Total A& 694,595 109,249
25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 LEREENROXN
TRANSACTION
Chongging Huitai Company Limited (“Huitai”) was established EEERKEBRAR([EXR]) 2
as the Group’s vehicle for implementing a share-based BEARANGEANBEERRNDAB
incentive scheme (the “Share Incentive Scheme”) to provide WEEERLEERBRO 2ERT
share incentive to the senior management of the Group. On MRS BB IR E IR AR B R
20 June 2013 (the “Grant Date”), details of the Share Incentive ) ([Ax BN ET &) P9S8
Scheme were finalised under which 15 directors, supervisors WEER AT - ABRREZBETE
and senior management of the Company (the “Grantees”) were f£2013F6 208 ([®HETH)) #
granted entitlement to shares of the Company through their EARNBIMIGRESE EEMNSE
equity interests in Huitai (the “share awards”) at a discounted ([BEER]) AFTNERERERD
price. The share awards would vest in installments on a MgV EZEREARRINRG - B
monthly basis over the 8-year service period from 1 January 2013F1HA1H ZE2020F12AH318 -
2013 to 31 December 2020. When a Grantee terminates RSB #E TERZ 8 N IE A 5 HARERR o
his/her employment with the Group, any unvested portion IMEMAEN S REFANEER - Z
of benefits will be reallocated to the remaining Grantees in BERAREE DA B EARERS B AR
proportion to their then respective interests in Huitai. HEE RIERERNFREOI=ZES -
Huitai held 7.88% of the equity interests of the Company on EERHEBETFTH ERHEAFARQ A
the Grant Date for the purpose of the Share Incentive Scheme 7.88%H) X HE - 2 E0 A A AR B T
and did not carry out any other business. g AR BNEBREEMEMZERS -
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B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as

BUAARETITIIR)

25 DIEREENRG T (&)

(a) BTIHE R RIESFWELT

follows: Frg
Number of
Instruments Vesting conditions
BROBE  TEGN
Awards granted to directors and
SUpEervisors:
—on 20 June 2013 193,918,615 Every month from 1 January 2013 to
31 December 2020
RTERREFHND 201341 A1AZE2020F12 A31 A K
#2013F6H20H T8 B s Al SRR R AR D
Awards granted to employees:
—on 20 June 2013 76,351,233 Every month from 1 January 2013 to
31 December 2020
RTaEamn #2013F1 A1 H£2020F12A31HA)
720136 H20H &8 B b A S AR R AR
Total share awards granted 270,269,848
BT IR 428K

The number and weighted average exercise
prices of share awards are as follows:

(b) BREBBHBEMFIITEN

T :

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12H831B1LFEE

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price shares
FITHREE ROHE

(RMB)

(AR#)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year FHNELTEIN 0.42 270,269,848
Granted during the year REFRT = =
Exercised during the year REITHE = -
Outstanding at the end of the year FREEITEID 0.42 270,269,848
Exercisable at the end of the year FRAJITHE 0.42 67,567,462
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value of share awards and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
awards granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share awards granted. The Company accounts
for the Share Incentives Scheme on the basis of the
pool of shares granted rather than treating the individual
Grantee as the unit of account. The fair value of the total
pool of shares is measured at the Grant Date with the
non-vesting condition effectively ignored for valuation
purposes. Subsequent forfeitures and reallocations would
have no effect on the accounting treatment and the
measurement of share awards granted to management.
The estimate of the fair value of the share awards granted
is measured based on a Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
Pricing model. The contractual life of the share awards is
used as an input into this model.

BIAARETFTIIR)

25 DIEREENRG T (&)

(c) RBENIABERREBR

AN A LASR H AR 17 BR 4 T € R &Y
BRENAABELSERTARS
HENAAREBEBEREE A2 F
T RES R S ETE R
W A ESR AR B ET &
mA 2B EREE RERET
BEtZE - RIEFEEVEH A
nREBEEXTHTE - BHEET
BEMNGEDNEBITRGS - &
TRHEZEEWNENE Y R B
REBEE  ZABDERRER
SR B IRRES B H R RS
RERBREERNFREOIER S
Bt - ZEFDEHSERERE
TE - RO EBE-S
Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
RAGELTEET - RODHBENER
FRIEAUIER N —THRE

Share awards

granted on
Fair value of share awards and assumptions 20 June 2013
201356 H20H
BROHEARSEERRR =T 0 B9 2 A
Fair value at measurement date (RMB) RETEHHNAABE (ARK) 1.77
Share price (RMB) WITRE (ARKE) 2.26
Exercise price (RMB) THEER (AR®) 0.53
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted A& BT H K
average volatility used in the modelling (PACox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial
under Cox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial A B8 AR &Y DN R IR RN )
Pricing model) 64.3%
Option life (expressed as weighted average Hi#EH 5 A
life used in the modelling under Cox-Ross- (LACox-Ross-Rubinstein Binomial 7.53 years
Rubinstein Binomial Pricing model) FE R FTiE AR Y IR F PR B R R ) 7.53%F
Expected dividend yield TEET AR 1.3%
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange MEERFIE (REBINEESZE)
Fund Notes) 1.45%
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X ERH AN - HUAARETTIIR)

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (CONTINUED)

25 DIEREENRG T (&)

(c) Fair value of share awards and assumptions

(c) RGN ABERREBR

(continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share awards), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share awards were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in
the grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share awards grants.

(%)

BRERNSHREERNE LK
R (AEFAFEORD BE
MRS RER)  ERARH
AERFHEREARKE KB X
TR AN ERETAE - &
HR A AR B S ORI B0 - &
ABENZCEH AR EENG
RAELEARE -

B HRRERBEETET
e ERXTEHNRABENET
RERIE BN - & IS
W R TIG R o

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

26 FRUBAMRRRFTED

(a) Movements in current taxation in the (a) BPEARIERN S Gt BARR RN
consolidated statement of financial position are BEWMT
as follows:
The Group KEE
At 31 December
M12H31H
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AR F T

Balance of income tax payable at FHEAZ TSR
the beginning of the year 140,861 113,816
Provision for income tax on the FRILETERTEFTEH

estimated taxable profit for the SHEMFAIEHRE R
year (Note 6(a)) (H1:26(a)) 227,310 218,706
Income tax paid during the year EE BANFTIS R (219,958) (191,661)

Balance of income tax payable FREZEM &R
at the end of the year 148,213 140,861
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
The Group
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statements of financial

position and the movements during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

26 HRMBRRKRNOAES (&)

(b) CERELEFEHEERAS :

rEH

RE SRR R B IR E AT
SHREE (AR BHEKEZE
20144 K2013%F12H318 It F
ERNEHHmT .

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
ERHFEHEE BEHFEHAR
Fair value Fair value
adjustments adjustments
Provisions on on
Provisions for  available- available-
for guarantee for-sale for-sale
impairment  Accrued lossesand  financial financial - Government
losses  staff cost  accruals assets Total assets grants Total Net
U8 THEE e
EERE Eff BEERER SHEEN SHEEN
Deferred tax arising from: BEREELR BXRE  BIEM RUER 0LEE%E & DAEESD  BEED ait FE
RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB0O0  RMB0O0  ARMB0O0  ARMB0O0  RMB00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ANRETT ARETT AREFr ARETT ARETT AREFL ARETT ARETT AREFR
At 1 January 2013 201351418 25,751 5540 112,398 - 143689 - (1,389) (1389 142,33
Recognised to the consolidated income RabiERER
statements (Note 6(a)) (W) 56,122 5817 39,890 - 101829 - 1,353 13853 108,182
Charged to reserves (Note 10(a) iTALES
(Hi10) - - - 102 102 - - - 102
At 31 Decerber 2013 and 12013512318 R
at 1 January 2014 01451A18 81,873 11,357 152,288 102 245620 - - - 45620
Recognised to the consolidated income RabiERER
statements (Note 6() (Hitef) 78,346 355 (8,487) - 70214 - - - 70214
Charged to reserves (Note 10(a) STARES (Hit10y) - - - @7 @7 - - - (37
At 81 December 2014 Ro01412A31R 160219 11712 143,801 65 315797 - - - 315797
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(c)

(continued)

The Company

There were no significant deferred tax assets and liabilities
at 31 December 2013 and 2014.

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
1(n), the Group and the Company have not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of RMB373.7 million (2013:RMB199.3 million) at 31
December 2014, as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
tax losses will expire in five years since initial occurrence
under current tax legislation.

BUAARETITIIR)

26 HRMBRRKRNOAED (&)

(b) CERBELFEHEERARE

(c)

(%)
ENAN

A2013F M2014F12A8318 » i
EIMNENEEMBSHEERSE

& e

AERNIELEFREHEE

BESHRM 1IN ST EE
BRARAR AT KRR g7 Al 78 B &Y
RS A AR B FEEER
REREBFE  WAEBRAR
A) I #& 3£2014F12H31H M &
FTATEME B A ARKI73TE
BT (20135F12A31 B ABARKE
199.3B & L) MARELMISHE
E o MEBBITHE - JEAEE
BEEFERAYNEDTBIBSF
Y HA ] A0 AR SR E R A1) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(a) Movement in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and closing of

each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is
set out in the consolidated statements of changes in

BIAARETFTIIR)

27 BEX - RERRE

BHREESH

AEEFONREREHBNES
DB REIIN G G R s
BHR - ARFBYLERER

equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual HEVEFERNEF B0
components of equity between the beginning and the end T
of the year are set out below:
The Company b /N
Retained
Paid-in- Capital- eamnings/
share share Capital Surplus General  (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
AR
-U¢.v4 ax/ — T/
kE  RhEE  EARE RBAE  BRER  (REEER) it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
NEETL ARETT ARETT  AREFT  AREFT ARETT  ARETR
Note27(c) ~ Note27(d)f) ~ Note27(d)fi) ~ Note27(a)(ii) ~ Note27(d)(iv)
Hiene  mEoey  WeEemow  Wienan)  MEony)
Balance at 1 January 2013 2013E1B1RMEE 300,000 = = 50,122 50,122 76,116 476,360
Changes in equity for 2013: 2013 EHEE |
Loss for the year and FERRGANGEE
total comprehensive income - - - - - (84,128) (84,128)
Capital injection FBERAEWER 2,011,608 1480,163 - - - - 3691771
Equity-settled share-based ~ DERRERRA I
payment - - 144,202 - - - 144,202
Share capital increased by~ AARAIEERRA
retained eamings transfer 125,549 - - - - (125,549) -
Conversion into AL G
joint stock company 792,843 (657,201) - (60,122) (60,122) (35,398) -
Balance at 31 December 2013 20131231 A fEHE 3,430,000 822,962 144,202 = = (168,959) 4,228,205
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B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX - RERKRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Movement in components of equity (continued) (a) #ZIBEEE (&)
The Company (continued) RKQF (&)
Share Share Capital Surplus General Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
-k

o Rt U SRR BREE ARHER At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARRFL  ARBTT  AREFZ  ARETT  AREFZ  ARRTT  AREFZ
Note 27(c)  Note 27(d)(i)  Note 27(d)(ii) Note 27(d)(iii) Note 27(d)(iv)
W) W) - RE2na) - Bz - Kz

Balance at 201451516 H

1 January 2014 BE 3,430,000 822,962 144,202 - - (168,959) 4,228,205
Changes in equity N14MEREE |

for 2014:
Loss for the year and FERRGE

total comprehensive hinss

income - - - - - (115,169) (115,169)
Issuance of new shares  E{THIR(A 1,170,000 268,593 = = - - 1,438,599
Equity-settled share-based  DAEGREEA

payment RS - - 120,871 - - - 120,871
Balance at 2014F12531A8

31 December 2014 73] 4,600,000 1,091,555 265,073 - - (284,128) 5,672,500
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(CONTINUED)

(b) Dividends

In accordance with the resolution of the Company’s board
of directors meeting on 27 March 2015, the proposed
dividends appropriations for the year ended 31 December
2014 are as follows:

— Declare cash dividends to all shareholders of
RMB460 million representing RMB1.00 per 10 shares

before tax.

The profit appropriation resolution mentioned above has
yet to be approved by the Company’s shareholders.

The Company has not distributed any dividend to the

I=}
RE » AN BI20144F

NN 502015¢3H27E1§$
2 B3
EH&*‘J%HEEKZZDT

— REERRRZEIRSRKE
HF10M% R A R #1.007T (%"
Al - HEFARB46ET

bt FE 5
PRERALAE -

DEEDRHAEARR

KRN BIRE E2013F12831H

equity shareholders during the year ended 31 December IEF 2 BB A R R B R AT R
2018. B e
(c) Share capital (c) B=&

The share capital of the Group as at 31 December 2013
and 2014 represented the share capital of the Company.

1,150,000,000 ordinary shares, par value of RMB1.00
each, were authorised and issued on 19 June 2014.

The Company exercised the over-allotment option and
issued an aggregate of 20,000,000 H shares with par
value of RMB1.00 each. Such shares were firstly traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited on 14 July 2014.
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Capital/share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the shares of the Company
and capital proceeds received from the issuance of
the shares of the Company.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly comprises the following:

—  the cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets held at the
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies in Note

10)(0);

— the portion of the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to employees
of the Company that has been recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for share-based payments in Note 1(s).

Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve represents statutory surplus
reserve fund. The Company is required to appropriate
10% of its net profit as determined under the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and
other relevant requirements issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC after making good prior year’s
accumulated loss, to the statutory surplus reserve
fund until the reserve fund balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital.

BUAARETITIIR)

27 EX - RERKRE (&)

(d) RHEMEEREH

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BF RIDEE

Bein s EEARRBRPDEE
B EITAR AR FA1FHIA
ZEHERR °

BEXRRNE
BAREBRETIRE

— RREHRATIFAAH
HESHEENARE
BERRHFES B
REM () FTEN S
ETBUR IR

— EREM () AERS
REE B IR A FTER A
V& 5T SR B R ) A A
AREEREHRFER
RIERTEHBHN AR
BEZBG -

BEBRAR

BHABREITABATRE
o RBHEARTFEMNRE
EE%  ARREREFEH
BF I EB 28 40 ) 1B 3 & 5 2E R
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) General reserve

Pursuant to relevant regulations, the Company
and its subsidiaries engaged in credit guarantee
business are required to set aside a general reserve
through appropriations of profit after tax according
to 10% of its profit after tax as determined under the
Accounting Standard for Business Enterprise and
other relevant requirements issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC after making good prior year’s
accumulated loss to cover potential losses against
their assets.

While subsidiaries engaged in SME lending business
are required to set aside a general reserve through
appropriations of profit after tax according to a
certain provision ratio of the ending balance of gross
risk-bearing assets to cover potential losses against
their assets. In principal, the general reserve balance
should not be lower than 1% of the ending balance
of gross risk-bearing assets.

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
equity shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurate with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
equity holder/shareholders returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013.

Particularly for guarantee and credit loan operation,
the Group monitors regularly the residual balance of
outstanding guarantees or/and credit loans for single
customers and multiples of the total outstanding
guarantees or/and credit loans in relation to paid-in/share
capital of companies in the Group engaging guarantee
or/and credit loan business respectively, so as to keep
the capital risk within an acceptable limit. The decision
to manage the share capital of companies in the Group
to meet the needs of developing guarantee or/and credit
loans business rests with the directors.

28 CONSOLIDATED STUCTURED ENTITY

The Group has consolidated a structured entity which issued
micro loan backed securities of RMB500 million (“the Product”)
to institutional investors. The Product is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and has a duration of nine months. The
Group acquired all the interests of the subordinated tranche
of the Product, which represented 5% of the total value of
the Product issued. In addition, the Group provided financial
guarantee against the investors that acquired the senior
tranche, which presents 95% of the total value of the Product
issued.

27 EX - RERKRE (&)
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28 CONSOLIDATED STUCTURED ENTITY

29

(CONTINUED)

The relevant activities of the structured entities are directed
by means of contractual arrangement and the entity has been
designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant
factor in deciding who has control. The structured entity is
consolidated as the Group is exposed or has the right to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect its returns through its power over the entity.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by business lines. Consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
defines reporting segments based on the following operating
segments:

Guarantee business

This segment represents the provision of a range of guarantee
and related consulting services to customers. These guarantee
services include financing guarantee, performance guarantee
and litigation guarantee. The consulting services include
the provision of debt financing, internal control and risk
management related consulting services to the guarantee
customers.

SME lending

This segment represents the provision of a range of loan and
services to the small and medium sized and micro enterprises
(“SME enterprises”) or the owners of SME enterprises.

Others
This segment represents the aggregation of other non-

significant business lines and the operational results of the
headquarters.
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29 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of deferred tax assets.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities managed directly
by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the year is set
out below:

A FTIESN
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29 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 29 pE|E (&)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) 2HAE - BEREE (&)

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A31HILFEE

Guarantee SME
business lending Others Total
RN
BERER BEREH Hth 5% &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARKMTT ARMFT AR®ETT AR®TrR

Net guarantee and EREBABEFRA

consulting fee income 958,277 - - 958,277
Net interest and FERFEEFRA

handling fee income 97,448 945,007 26 1,042,481
Reportable segment 2 EBUTA

revenue 1,055,725 945,007 26 2,000,758
Other net revenue Em U A F5E 25,435 3,120 (2,423) 26,132
Provisions for REHE T EES

guarantee losses (72,055) - - (72,055)
Impairment losses BERERBX (250,308) (181,420) - (431,728)
Administrative expenses 5N EIRE (393,815) (288,072) (176,700) (858,587)
Reportable segment 53 B A5 A A

profit before taxation 364,982 478,635 (179,097) 664,520

At 31 December 2014
M2014F12H31H

Guarantee SME
business lending Others Total
RN
EREK BERES Hith 7 &5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT ARETFRT ARETT

Segment assets DEEE 4,519,720 7,029,514 73,321 11,622,555
Segment liabilities NEPBE 1,237,463 3,120,453 4,015 4,361,931

260 Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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29 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 29 pH|E (&)

THRAE  BERER (&)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

(a)

Year ended 31 December 2013
HZE2013F12A31HILFEE

Guarantee SME
business lending Others Total
S VINTE
ERES BERER H fth 575 A%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
Net guarantee and EREEREFIRA
consulting fee income 913,064 - - 913,064
Net interest and FMERFEEFIRA
handling fee income 51,413 612,255 = 663,668
Reportable segment A EBUEA
revenue 964,477 612,255 - 1,576,732
Other net revenue E MU F R 41,054 1,201 532 42,787
Provisions for guarantee REIHIETEES
losses (148,984) - - (148,984)
Impairment losses BEREERK (173,718) (120,649) = (294,367)
Administrative expenses N EIRE (365,695) (161,386) (176,815) (703,896)
Reportable segment 7 EB AR F
profit before taxation 317,134 331,421 (176,283) 472,272
At 31 December 2013
M2013F12A31H
Guarantee SME
business lending Others Total
S VINTES
BRFERS BRER HAth 375 &a&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBEFTT ARETFT AREFT ARETT
Segment assets DEEE 3,371,269 5,001,480 9,593 8,382,342
Segment liabilities DEEE 1,206,366 1,963,237 - 3,169,603
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29 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment assets

29 DE®E (&)
(b) 7 EEEMAE

At 31 December

M12A31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMEFT

Assets

Reportable segment assets DEPE E 11,622,555 8,382,342
Deferred tax assets BIEFSIREE 315,797 245,620
Consolidated total assets BEAR 11,938,352 8,627,962

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

Exposure to credit, interest rate and liquidity risks arises in the

normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practice used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from a customer’s inability or
unwillingness to meet its financial obligations to make
timely payments under loans the Group guaranteed or
provided. Credit risk is primarily attributable to unexpired
guarantee issued by the Group and the loan business of
the Group, loans and advances to customers and trade
and other receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the net carrying amount of each type of financial assets
as at the end of the reporting periods. Except for the
guarantee as disclosed below, the Group has no credit
risk arising from any other guarantee.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 REREEREMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) =HREB (&)

Credit risk arising from guarantee business

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from guarantee business. The Group manages
credit risk at every stage of the risk management system,
including pre-approval, review and credit approval and
post-transaction monitoring processes. The Group
conducts customer acceptance and due diligence by
business department and risk management department
during the pre-approval process. A transaction may be
subject to the review and approval of credit approval
officer, regional risk committee, deputy chairman and
chairman depending on the transaction size.

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the
Group conducts on-site inspection and ongoing post-
transaction reviews focusing on various aspects, including
but not limited to customers’ product markets, operating
income, assets and liabilities, cash flows from operating
activities to detect potential risks. The Group takes
proactive preventive actions based on the risk analysis
and design contingency plans accordingly.

When a certain number of clients undertake the same
business activities, stay in the same geographical
locations, or bear similar economic features for their
industries, their ability to fulfill contracts will be affected
by the same economic changes. Concentration of credit
risk reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s operating results
to specific industries or geographical locations. As the
Group mainly operates its businesses in the PRC, there
exists a certain level of geographical concentration risk
for its guarantee and loan portfolios in that it might be
affected by changes in the PRC economic conditions.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 EREEREMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EHE (&)

BEREBELENERARAR (&)

Credit risk arising from guarantee business
(continued)

The guarantees issued and outstanding are analysed by ERBBIREBESNOT -
type as follows:

The Group AEM
At 31 December
M12H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Bank financing guarantees RITRLE IR 14,561,417 15,893,483
REEE R
Funds and bonds financing guarantees BIER A ER 5,966,390 1,544,700
Other non-bank financing guarantees EMIERITREE R 2,176,156 2,715,934
Performance guarantees B 4R 862,544 1,146,118
Maximum amount guarantee EIRERER 23,566,507 21,300,235
Less: customer pledged deposits A FARES (27,105) (78,182)
Net guarantee exposure SFEVERE R 23,539,402 21,222,053
The Company VNN
At 31 December
®W12H31H
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Bank financing guarantees RITREER - 970
Performance guarantees AR 60,000 122,106
Maximum amount guarantee PERERER 60,000 123,076
Less: customer pledged deposits B FAREBES (130) (130)
Net guarantee exposure FERE R 59,870 122,946
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

30 HEAREEREMTAND
REE (&)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) =HREB (&)

Credit risk arising from guarantee business

(continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
guarantees by industry at 31 December 2013 and 2014

EREBELENERARAR (&)

R20134F K 2014F12 A31 BikrT
HEZ DI ERTAEN & AER

is as follows: BT -
The Group KEE

At 31 December 2014
R2014%F12831H

At 31 December 2013
R2013%F12A31H

RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR¥TFT % ARKEFT %
Manufacturing and processing BEH 5,112,530 21.69% 6,207,461 29.14%
Construction e 4,936,332 20.95% 4,661,024 21.88%
Commercial services mE 4,917,688 20.87% 6,076,881 28.53%
Funds financing guarantee RAESER 4,586,690 19.46% 1,000,000 4.69%
Household Goods 24 2,188,058 9.28% 1,315,531 6.18%
Service industry MR % 486,054 2.06% 448,711 2.11%
Energy EEV 305,200 1.30% 605,395 2.84%
Agricultural processing industry BEMMT 264,300 1.12% 366,046 1.72%
Agriculture B¥ 240,683 1.02% 79,718 0.37%
Telecommunications, computer = Bl
services and software MR % 212,341 0.90% 277,690 1.30%
Others HA, 316,631 1.35% 261,778 1.24%
Subtotal of guarantee FERDNGT 23,566,507 100.00% 21,300,235 100.00%
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 EREEREMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EHE (&)

Credit risk arising from guarantee business

BEREBELENERARAR (&)

(continued)
The Company AAT
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
M2014F12831H 2013612 A31H
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AREFr % AREFT %
Manufacturing and processing BlLEE 60,000 100.00% 60,000 48.75%
Construction BEE - - 48,600 39.49%
Commercial services e - - 5,380 4.37%
Others Hih = = 9,096 7.39%
Subtotal of guarantee RN 60,000 100.00% 123,076 100.00%
Credit risk arising from micro-lending business REKRNIE AR

The Group adopts the same pre-approval, review and
credit approval risk management system for credit risk
arising from micro-lending business. During the post-
transaction monitoring process, the Group conducts a
visit of customers within one month after disbursement
of loans, and conducts on-site inspection on a semi-
annual basis. The review focuses on the use of loans,
the financial and operational conditions of the borrowers
or the progress of projects and status of the collateral.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk arising from micro-lending business
(continued)

The Group adopts a loan risk classification approach
to manage its loan portfolio risk. Loans are generally
classified as normal, special mention, substandard,
doubtful and loss according to their levels of risk.
Substandard, doubtful and loss loans are considered to
be impaired loans and advances. They are classified as
such when one or more events demonstrate that there is
objective evidence of a loss event. The impairment loss is
assessed collectively or individually as appropriate.

The core definitions of the five categories of loans and
advances are set out below:

Normal: Borrowers can honour the terms of
their loans. There is no reason to
doubt their ability to repay principal
and interest in full on a timely basis.

Special Mention: Borrowers are currently able to service
their loans and interest, although
repayment may be adversely affected
by specific factors.

Substandard: Borrowers’ ability to service their
loans is in question and they cannot
rely entirely on normal business
revenues to repay principal and
interest. Losses may ensue even
when collateral or guarantees are
invoked.

SHEFEN - AAARETITIIR)

MHEREEREMIANA
REE (&)

(a)

=RER (&)

EXEBNERARR (&)

K%IRQEAHKAWE%#
‘lff-?%tih a’)\i‘ﬂ/\ﬂ Hj(/ﬂl
m&i Kz RBIZE S EE%
xR AEmkELB=
@ﬁﬁﬁaﬂ@fﬁ B E
—HSZEEHEEFRARTER
@ﬁ%TE'ﬂT%ﬁﬁﬁ%
B ZERRBREATERER
BEER &i c EREERRE
HREVREB R EEEGE B R AA
& sk (B Rl 77 =LA o

IRERRBRNTEERERT

ﬁDT 1

EEE: ERAERHBETER
BB RMIBHERER
KE TR EREE
-

Bt BEERABRIARES
EEERAE  BFE
— A EREAT

MEEHREE -

RBIR  ERARERENHIR
AR A R ?i*’z\@?
35,\IE%MZ)\E%W
ﬁ%ﬁ%v%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
MmER - BAIeES
ER—ERK -

Annual Report 2014
—B-MEER

267



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

30 YHEEAREEREMIAND
REE (&)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EHE (&)

Credit risk arising from micro-lending business
(continued)

Doubtful: Borrowers cannot repay principal and
interest in full and significant losses
will need to be recognised even when
collateral or guarantees are invoked.

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot

be recovered or only a small portion
of them can be recovered after taking
all possible measures or resorting to
all necessary legal procedures.

The Group has established relevant mechanisms to
apply tiered management of credit risks, and set limits
to acceptable risks for different individual or group
counterparties, different industries and geographical
regions. The Group monitors the risk status of these
customers regularly and reviews their risk positions at
least on a quarterly basis.

In accordance with accounting policies and regulations,
if there is objective evidence that indicates the cash flow
for a particular loan is expected to decrease, and the
amount can be estimated, the loan is recorded as an
impaired loan and the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement.

The Group’s policy requires regular review of the quality
of individually significant financial assets. For assets
for which an allowance for impairment loss is provided
individually, the amount is determined by an evaluation
of the incurred loss at reporting date on a case-by-case
basis. In making such assessments, the Group considers
the value of collateral held and expected future cash flows
from the asset.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 REREEREMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) =HREB (&)

Credit risk arising from micro-lending business
(continued)

Impairment allowances are provided for the following
portfolios according to historical data, experience and
statistical techniques: (i) those consisting of homogeneous
assets that are individually below materiality thresholds;
and (ii) those where losses that have been incurred but
have not yet been individually identified with any specific
asset within the portfolio.

Other credit risks

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluation focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loans and advances
to customers and trade and other receivables are set out
in Note 16 and Note 14, respectively.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of credit
guarantee, lending and related consulting services to
SME enterprises in the PRC. Its interest rate risk arises
primarily from deposits with banks, loans and advances
to customers and interest-bearing borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk

(i)

Interest rate profile
The following tables details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s and the Company’s assets and liabilities

as at the end of the year:

The Group

30 EBREEREHMIAEND

REE (&)

(b) F/Z=mEbx
(i) FI=EEHR
REBREARABIREREE
KB &R A = E R a0
-
A%

At 31 December

MA12H31H
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F T AREFT
Fixed interest rate FFR
Financial assets SREE
- Restricted bank deposits — FEHERR
zE 1,756,346 1,672,208
- Loans and advances to —BHERK&
customers 25K 5,997,175 4,579,902
___________________________________________________ 7,753,521 6,252,110
Financial liabilities =L
- Interest-bearing borrowings — 5T EER (685,367) (622,500)
— Financial assets sold under —BHEE
repurchase agreement TREE (2,182,446) (797,959)
(2,867,813) (1,420,459)
Net HE 4,885,708 4,831,651

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate profile (continued)

The Group

30

BUAARETITIIR)

MERABEEREMIANA
REE (&)
(b) FIREE (&)
() FIEREBER (&)
K

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARETFr
Variable interest rate P ) P
Financial assets SREE
— Cash and cash equivalents —EEES 2,531,049 940,257
— Restricted bank deposits — EHERR
BE 368,119 620,975
2,899,1_6? ________ 1,_5_6_1_,2_5:2_
Financial liabilities TREE
- Interest-bearing borrowings —stEER (130,240) (344,240)
Net FE 2,768,928 1,216,992
Fixed rate financial liabilities as a BEMEEHARE
percentage of total financial HEEHBEN
liabilities Aok 95.66% 80.49%
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate profile (continued)

The Company

BIAARETFTIIR)

REE (&)

(b) FI=mE b (&)

30 EBREEREHMIAEND

() F=EpER (&)

Z/NS|

At 31 December

MA12H31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFr
Fixed interest rate & 7E FI) 2
Financial assets TREE
— Trade and other receivables — BHER B 23,750 =
Financial liabilities TRIBE
— Interest-bearing borrowings — BT EER = =
Net FE 23,750 =
Variable interest rate B FIE
Financial assets SREE
- Cash and cash equivalents —EKES 80,680 445
80,680 445

Fixed rate financial liabilities as
a percentage of total financial
liabilities

BEMEEMAE
HRTRAEN
Bk -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X ERH AN - HUAARETTIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased
the Group’s profit before taxation for the next 12
months by approximately RMB13.8 million (2013:
RMB6.1 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

BIAARETFTIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 MBEREEREMIANA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk

Management regularly monitors the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

The following tables provide an analysis of financial assets
and liabilities of the Group and the Company into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining periods to
repayment at the end of the year:

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 MBEREEREMIANA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

(c) wEMEREM (&)

The Group NEEF
At 31 December 2014
20145127318
Between
three Between
Within months one More
Repayable three and one year and than five
Indefinite  on demand months year five years years Total
BRE EREE =R =fAZ-% -£ZIf RENE fit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Financial assets SREE
Cash and cash equivalents S#%4&4 - 2,144,855 386,257 - - - 2,531,112
Restricted bank deposits ~ FHERRFES - 368,119 524,685 1,231,511 150 - 2,124,465
Trade and other receivables JEML X Lt fE Uk IE - 299,047 67,930 12,390 18,042 - 397,409
Loansand advancesto ~ EMERRBH
customers 75,593 29997 2,187,644 3,565,335 138,606 - 5,997,175
Available-for-sale financial A/t HESHEE
assets 11,841 95,000 30,000 21,000 - - 157,841
Total &t 87,434 2,937,018 3,196,516 4,830,236 156,798 - 11,208,002
Financial liabilities SHEE
Customer pledged deposits FARES - 11,826 5,116 4,945 4,668 550 21,105
Interest-bearing borrowings 3t 8E = - 309,407 426,200 80,000 - 815,607
Financial assets sold under EHEESEEE
repurchase agreement - - 555,589 1,626,857 - - 2,182,446
Accruals and other payables [E: & E ft B - - 109,091 - - S 109,091
Total Bt - 11,826 979,203 2,058,002 84,668 550 3,134,249
Net BE 87,434 2,925,192 2,217,313 2,772,234 72,130 (550) 8,073,753

Guarantee issued RENREER
Maximum amount ERtRe%

guaranteed”

i

- 311,397 3,764,045 16,145,112 2,573,948 744,900 23,539,402

Annual Report 2014
—E-MEFR

275




276

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group (continued)

30

BIAARETFTIIR)

REE (&)

(c) REMERBE (&)

&M (&)

At 31 December 2013

BHEEREERTBMIANA

#2013512A31H
Between
three Between
Within months one More
Repayable three and one year and than five
Indefinite  on demand months year five years years Total
ERM  ERER AR ZEAE-F —-f£ERE  IfNE aif
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREfT AREFT AREFT
Financial assets THEE
Cash and cash equivalents E%%% - 937,478 3,067 - - - 940,545
Restricted bank deposits it Ef&{RES - 620,975 444733 1,214,800 12,675 - 2,293,183
Trade and other receivables U £ B IR - 130,843 31,818 48,670 17,767 - 229,098
Loans and advancesto  EMEFRRER
customers - 26,111 1,364,532 3,055,369 133,890 - 4,579,902
Available-for-sale financial ~ [t HELRER
assets 9,593 - - - - - 9,593
Total &5t 9598 1715407 1,844,150 4,318,839 164,332 - 8,052,321
Financial liabilities ERAR
Customer pledged deposits FEARES = 69,415 2,190 6,577 - - 78,182
Interest-bearing borrowings 5t 8E - - 95,000 629,500 242 240 - 966,740
Financial assets sold under EfOESHEE
repurchase agreement - - 125,000 672,959 - - 797,959
Accruals and other payables [Ezt [ E A B TE = - 76,544 8,259 - - 84,803
Total S - 69,415 298,734 1,317,295 242,240 - 1,927,684
Net B 9593 1645992 1545416 3,001,544 (77,908) - 6,124,637
Guarantee issued RENHEER
Maximum amount ERIREE
guaranteed” - 345415 3,614,687 14,864,036 2,362,742 35,173 21,222,053

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 XEREEREMIANA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) "EBMRAK (&)
The Company ¥ NN

At 31 December 2014

#20145127318
Between
three Between
Within months one More
Repayable three and one year and than five
Indefinite  on demand months year five years years Total
BRH EREE =R =fAZ-§ -£ZIf BENE fit

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTT ARRTn ARETn  ARETn  ARETx  AREFn  ARRFx

Financial assets SHEE
Cash and cash equivalents S%%4 - 80,689 - - - - 80,689
Trade and other receivables JEML % Uk TE - - 534 23,750 - - 24,284
Total &t - 80,689 534 23,750 - - 104,9_7§
Financial liabilities tREE
Customer pledged deposits ZARES - 130 - - - - 130
Accruals and other payables FE:t R K thfE 508 - 27,423 996 - - - 28,419
Total &% - 27,553 996 - - - 28,549
Net RE - 53,136 (462) 23,750 - - 76,424
Guarantee issued RENREER
Maximum amount ERtRe%

guaranteed® - 59,870 - - - - 59,870
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

BIAARETFTIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 MBEREEREMIANA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT ~EE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Company (continued)

(c) REMERBE (&)

AN (&)

At 31 December 2013

H2013%512A31H
Between
three Between
Within months one More
Repayable three and one year and than five
Indefinite  on demand months year five years years Total
ERM  ERER AR ZEAZE-F& -£ER§ RN aif
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANEETT AREFT  AEETT AEETT AREFT ARETT  AEETx
Financial assets SHEE
Cash and cash equivalents E%%44 - 452 - - - - 452
Trade and other receivables EU R EftELEIA - 64 - - 470 - 534
Total CE - 516 - - 470 - 986
Financial liabilties TRAR
Customer pledged deposits 7 AR = 130 - - - - 130
Accruals and other payables fEzt R E fti e 508 - 108,704 = = = = 108,704
Total o - 108,834 - - - - 108,834
Net FE - (108,318) - - 470 - (107,848)
Guarantee issued RUNBEER
Maximum amount EREREHE
guaranteed® - 122,946 - - - - 122,946

The maximum amount guaranteed represents the total

amount of liability less the amount of customer pledged
deposits should all customers default. Since a significant
portion of guarantee is expected to expire without being
called upon, the maximum liabilities do not represent

expected future cash outflows.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 XEREEREMIANA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)

(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) "EBMRAK (&)
The following tables show the remaining contractual AREBRARARNBRERAKRAIE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the MESHEBEZRARTRENEGRE
Group’s and the Company’s non-derivative financial enE (BHEEREAERANERTER
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted FE - MERZZHFRARRE
cash flows (including interest payments computed using HRBIR{THRAENFE) B
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at TR A QAR @ AR ER T
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the M&xFBEEIT

Group and the Company can be required to pay:

The Group NEEF
2014
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
AENERRLTE
Between

three Between Carrying
Within months one year amount
Repayable three and one and five  More than at 31
Indefinite  on demand months year years five years Total  December

MM2A31H

ERY  EREE -EAr c@ERE-F -FERE  BENE A REEE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFZ AREFT ARETT AREFZ AREFT ARETZ

Customer pledged FARES

deposits - 11,826 5,116 4,945 4,668 550 27,105 27,105
Interest-bearing TEER
borrowings - - 114,760 557,366 213,544 - 885,670 815,607

Financial assets sold ~ EREBLHEE
under repurchase

agreement - - 811,104 1,497,875 - - 2308979 2,182,446
Accruals and other it Rt

payables iR - - 109,091 - - - 109,091 109,091
Total o - 11,826 1,040,071 2,060,186 218,212 550 3,330,845 3,134,249
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group (continued)

30

BIAARETFTIIR)

MHEREEREMIANA
REE (&)

(c) REMERBE (&)

&M (&)

2013
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
ATANERR SRS
Between
three Between Carying
Within months one year amount
Repayable three and one andfve  More than at 31
Indefinite  on demand months year years five years Total  December
1124318
ERE  ERER  Am ZEAE-§£ 20 LENE st HREEE
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  ARMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
NEETT  AEETT ARETT  ARETT  AEETT  AREFT  ARETT  ARETL
Customer pledged EARES
deposits - 69,415 2,190 6,677 - - 78,182 78,182
Interest-bearing TEER
borrowings - - 106,995 669,211 262,214 - 1,088,420 966,740
Financial assets sold ~ EREBSHEE
under repurchase
agreement - - 132,969 743,275 - - 876,244 797,959
Accruals and other T REMER
payables | - = 76,544 8,259 - - 84,803 84,803
Total fit - 69,415 318,698 1,427,322 262,214 - 2077649 1,927,684

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 XEREEREMIANA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) "EBMRAK (&)
The Company RAT]
2014
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
AENERRLTE
Between
three Between Carrying
Within months one year amount
Repayable three and one and five  More than at 31
Indefinite  on demand months year years five years Total  December
M2A31R

#RE  EEME  cfiAm =@AE-F -FEIF  BEENL A REEE
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'00  RMB'000
ARRTE ARRTR ARETx  ARETn  ARETr ARRTZ  ARRTr  ARETZ

Customer pledged EARES

deposits - 130 - - - - 130 130
Accruals and other B R EM

payables B3 - 27,423 996 - - - 28,419 28,419
Total &it - 21,553 996 - - - 28,549 28,549
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(CONTINUED)

30 YHEAREEREMTAND
REE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) mEMMERR (&)

The Company (continued)

AN (&)

2013
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
ATRNERR RS
Between
three Between Carying
Within months one year amount
Repayable three and one andfve  More than at 31
Indefinite  on demand months year years five years Total  December
1M2A318
ERE  ERER  -lAm ZEAE-§£ -§£2nf  LENE st HREEE
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000 ~ ARMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ANEETT  AEETT ARETT  ARETT AEETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFL
Customer pledged EARES
deposits - 130 - - - - 130 130
Accruals and other T RAMER R
payables B - 108,704 - - - - 108,704 108,704
Total fit = 108,834 - - - - 108,834 108,834
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 XEREEREMIANA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Fair values measurement (d) AREMETE
() Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BAABEFENESEME
fair value EREE
Fair value hierarchy DAEEER
The following table presents the fair value of the TR AEBREEHEE
group’s financial instruments measured at the end of ERFRERRTZELIRIER
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised B BHREERFEIZR A
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined AEEZ] MATH =
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level NAEBEEASENESHRT
into which a fair value measurement is classified BERnfBE - AABEME
is determined with reference to the observability M=EEF EI2EME
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation F AR R B A BUE B A B
technique as follows: RIEENEEHEBEFHOT ¢
e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using o FIERMHME: RXKA
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted FAE F A BE (A
prices in active markets for identical assets or A—&EEXBERTE
liabilities at the measurement date H BT & BB S S 8
RICHAERE) 5TEN
AnEE
e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o  F2EMMHE: HASE2
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which [E A% i A BUiE (BD K B8
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant EEFE1ERM A EER
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are BARE) L TRAE
inputs for which market data are not available AANA] B R g A B ET
ENAREE  TAIH
Rig AR R ETIHE
B2 B ABE
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using o FEIEHKME: FAHE
significant unobservable inputs AR ER B A BUR T
ENAREE
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B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) ([ X & 2 E Fitssh -

(CONTINUED)

(i)

BIAARETFTIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 IXEREEREMIAENA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT nEE (&)
(d) Fair values measurement (continued) (d) AREEE (&)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at (i) BAABEEFENESEME
fair value (continued) EREE ()
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NAIEEER ()
The Group has a team headed by the finance EEBE ST HPBEE
manager performing valuations for the financial FEZEK aERemT
instruments, including the unlisted available-for- B (PHEFELTAHEER
sale equity securities. The team reports directly to RFEH) ETHE - ZEBK
the chief financial officer and the audit committee. BEERERAVERENEFELZE
A valuation report with analysis of changes in fair eHE - HELNABETE
value measurement is prepared by the team at BB DT 2 EEHRE T A
each interim and annual reporting date, and is B sR B REEEwE R
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer. wmE o WH AR &
Discussion of the valuation process and results with BE - BEBEERRE R
the chief financial officer and the audit committee REFHPBRAERESFE
is held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting BTN 0 LA
dates. HERHBRE -
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2014 categorised into
R2014%128318 2
MMEEHERES
Fair value at
31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R2014%
1283182
NMERE F1ER BN EXE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFR AEEFR AEETR ARETT
Recurring fair value measurement ~ £EMAAEETE
Financial assets: PHEE
Available-for-sale equity instrument; MEHERRTE
- Unlisted —3¥tm 11,841 - - 11,841
Wealth management products BHER 146,000 - - 146,000

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 HEEKREEREHRIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT REE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Fair values measurement (continued) (d) AREEE (&)
() Financial assets and liabilities measured at () BOARBEFENERE
fair value (continued) ERAE (&)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013 categorised into
201351243102
MAEEHERER

Fair value at
31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R20136F
1283182
RrfEE F1ER F2ED FER
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AERTL  ARETZ AERTT NERTT

Recurring fair value measurement ~ EE# A AEEE

Financial assets: PRAE
Available-for-sale equity instrument; MEHERRTE
- Unlisted o A 9,593 - - 9,593
The movement during the period in the balance of FIER AR BETELES
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: HRERRE BT -
At 31 December At 31 December
2014 2013
M2014%F 20134
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFT
At 1 January M1A1H 9,593 10,000
Payment for purchases BE 148,100 =
Net unrealised gains or losses  HARR H 4R 4 Urzs
recognised in other EREAREIR
comprehensive income W e ok BT 18 5 R
during the period 148 (407)
At 31 December M12H31H 157,841 9,593
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B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 30 IXEREEREMIANA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT nEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Fair values measurement (continued) (d) AREEE (&)
(ii) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (i) BRAABEUINMIERZE
carried at other than fair value MEEREBBZAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial M2013F12H31H k2014
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are F12A31H » ZEBIZEA
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 SEEK ARSI A
December 2013 and 2014. ZEHEREAARBELE
ERER -
31 COMMITMENTS 31 &g
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 (a) H2014512H31 B E KRB
December 2014 not provided for in the financial BRERP RRHEARAEZED
statements were as follows: T
The Group AEHE

At 31 December

M12A31H
2014 20183
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Commitments in respect of EEETEE BN
purchase of fixed assets/
intangible assets
— Contracted for —BERBAH 9,664 5,119

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X EZEFTIEIN - HUAREFILIIR)

31 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 31 &I (&)

(b) At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum (b) H2014F12A318 & RETTA
lease payments under non-cancellable BENEREKSEREHE - K
operating leases of properties are payable as EEESZAHNARZEHRER
follows: B/ :

The Group rEE

At 31 December

M12H31H
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Within 1 year (inclusive) —FRN(E—%F) 82,868 47,907
After 1 year but within —FLE=FA

3 years (inclusive) (B8=%) 130,581 29,296
Over 3 years =FAE 54,923 113,389
Total At 268,372 190,592
The Company AT

At 31 December
M12H31H
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Within 1 year (inclusive) —FRN(8—F) 21,871 2,782
After 1 year but within 3 years —FULE=FR (E=F)

(inclusive) 43,742 8,164
Over 3 years =FE 20,048 =
Total At 85,661 10,946
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of AEESRBEEHERRZIEA
properties held under operating leases. The leases MENARA  HRESH K
typically run for an initial period of 1-5 years, at the end R—ERF YAIRERPIRE
of which period all terms are renegotiated. None of the HEERATA RS - BB BEXR
leases include contingent rentals. M -
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B 5 ¥ R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 EXEBMAERS

(a) Transactions with key management personnel (a) EEEFREBABZENRS
remuneration

Years ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FT AREFT
Key management personnel A EIE A B EH N
remuneration (Note (i) (H1aEa) 127,430 143,541

Interest income FEHA - 52

Interest expenses FEZ T - (318)

Repayment of interest-bearing EEFTEER

borrowings - (12,000)

Additions of loans and advances G EMERRBK

to customers - 540
Repayment of loans and advances U [Bl 3 E F % 4 3X
to customers - (630)

Releasing guarantee HIMNERER - (2,000)

Notes: Htat -

()  Remuneration for key management personnel of the i) AEBENEREEABEFHE
Group includes amounts paid to the Company’ s ERME7THEN SIS FARF]
directors as disclosed in Note 7 and the highest paid EENSHEENM TS EN R
employees as disclosed in Note 8. mEBMAL -

(i) Al the balances with key management personnel are iy FIBERAREREABNGEHRNAE
disclosed in relevant notes of this section. ERFERAPN SR R o

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE
(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B X ERH AN - HUAARETTIIR)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

32 EXBMLERE (&)

(b) Transactions with related parties other than key
management personnel

(b) EERREAGEETE A B LSRR
FTENXS

Years ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Guarantee income ERBA 430 1,063
Interest income FLEWA - 742
Interest expenses B H (371) (10,972)
Acquisition of equity interests in U B 7~ m] AR A
subsidiaries 460,650 -
Additions in interest-bearing AT EER
borrowings - 260,000
Repayment of interest-bearing BB BB (Hat0)
borrowings (Note (i) (20,000) (652,600)
Additions of loans and advances LB NE R RER
to customers - 250
Repayment of loans and advances Y[ 25 & FRAI 2 FR
to customers - (4,483)
Additions of other receivables 38 HL b JE IR R IR -
Receipt of other receivables B fth FE U FR IR - (27,988)
Providing guarantee HIMER 20,000 35,000
Releasing guarantee HIMNRBRPER (33,000) (25,850)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 e HZ2014F 12431 HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

32 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with related parties other than key
management personnel (continued)

Notes:

()  RMB266.5 million out of the total repayment of interest-
bearing borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2013
was settled as capital injection to the Company by one of

its shareholders.

(i) At 31 December 2013 and 2014 the outstanding guarantee
provided to related parties are RMB30.0 million, and
RMB17.0 million, respectively. The balances of other
transactions with related parties are disclosed in relevant
notes of this section.

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules related to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of acquisition
of equity interests in subsidiaries above constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in the Reports of Board

of the Directors.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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32 EXBMLRE (&)

(b) EERREEEEIE A B UUSMY B
FTENXS (&)

(c)

(i)

» & 20136128318 1t F
A EERMNREESES
MARB266.58 & T2 HRR
K ERE BE AR B M IRAE o

R20134F F20145F12A31H -
RETFHEESINERBES A
ARB300BEE T AR
170BE L EBEEFNE
fth 32 5 45 4 50 2N &0 AR B BT s AP

EHRAGBRERZNERM

At AR R SR U EE T AR
BERSHER T ETRANE14A

=z poi
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=
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

33 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Note 25 and Note 30 contains information about the

assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of

share awards granted to directors, supervisors and senior

management of the Company and financial instruments. Other

key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

Impairment of receivables, loans and advances
and available-for-sale financial assets

The Group reviews portfolios of receivables, loans
and advances and available-for-sale financial assets
periodically to assess whether any impairment losses
exist and the amount of impairment losses if there is
any indication of impairment. Objective evidence for
impairment includes observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows for receivables, loans and advances and available-
for-sale financial assets. It also includes observable data
indicating adverse changes in the repayment status of
the debtors, or change in national or local economic
conditions that causes the default in payment.

The impairment loss for receivables and loans and
advances that is individually assessed for impairment
is the net decrease in the estimated discounted future
cash flow of the assets. When the financial assets are
collectively assessed for impairment, the estimate is
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to the financial assets. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflect current economic conditions
and the judgement based on management’s historical
experience. Management reviews the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating future cash flows regularly
to reduce any difference between loss estimates and
actual loss.

BUAARETITIIR)

33 BT HEREE

25 R30S TAMR TALRAE

E

EEhkaEnBROPRERSRT

AN BEMNRRKEERBREE -
HAs AHEE Bt EERRMT ¢

(a)

BWRIE - BRERRBRR
AHHESHMEERE

AEBERERBMIR - B
ERkBREAHEHESRE
E - UFHARE LR EMEER
BIRK - A REHBRERDRED
- AIFHEEHEEERERSS
B RETEIEREENBER
BEUNEMGRIR C ERERRR
RARAHHESREEMNTAT R
KRR A EERREE - Ut
sh o MEBRABRBBRBRRNER
ANBVE TG AR 8 - 3
B 2K k3 05 A IR 0L 3R 2 B

fiE 51 5F A B (B A FE MR IR - B
ERRBRNEERERAAE
EBAARRRSRERERR D
FEE - EERRAMBEENSRE
E-DIREBEREZEMEEARNE
UERRARBSBNEENBERS
BREMETE - BEBRERR
1 AT i B R B A7 AR ST B T R R
BELEEERBELRIELDN
HETMAE - EEESENERX
BAFARKRREREN T ERRK
& AORETEA ER R EREE
Z B EMERR -
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(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (B E R E AN - HUAARETTIIR)

33 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of receivables, loans and advances
and available-for-sale financial assets
(continued)

The objective evidence of impairment for available-for-sale
financial assets includes significant or continual decline in
fair value of investments. When deciding whether there
is significant or continual decline in fair value, the Group
will consider the historical fluctuation records of market
and debtors’ credit condition, financial position and
performance of related industry.

Impairment of long-lived assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with accounting policy for
impairment of long-lived assets as described in Note 1(I).
The carrying amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the carrying amounts.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell
and the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected future cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the carrying value
of the assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
BESEROBERAF

33 St R (&)

(a)

(b)

FEWRIE - BRERERBREK
AHHEESRMEERE (&)

AHEESREENTBRER
BEEBERELABEMNERRIE
BTHK -BEEAABERSH
REBANFE NH®E - AEEE
ZRMISBENREREBKAD
ERARR MR MR EITE
HRER

RMEERME

WEEPRBREHNEENRE
BEAEKE - BIZEER 4R
7 DRUE ] - AR 3% B ZE1() P 8K
ERRHEEREN S BRRE
REEREERRX - RHPBEENK
HESEHER - UFE A E
RS ERKREE - 7 4o
FREERKEE - AREESR
EAREEHE - TRESESR
REBEREEEREEERR
KREREMNBENKSE - &£
ETEERFARRERENS
B BEELWETRARRS
MERRRERE - AF ek
FREERAEHEZHE - &
SEFNAAARE BB
BRENRGEIERENRRIE
H el 5 B S s AR B K = B K
ARE)fhEr - AEE AT E 2 5
BEHE RSHNELEYH
BERHAEBEBAEATE  YEH
7R 2R HA PR MBS H 3RO (B 98 [ 5
Pl



Notes to the Financial Statements

B S ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 o & Z2014F 12 A31HILFE

(Expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise indicated) (FxX = S EFTIEIN

33 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Depreciation and amortisation

Fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated and
amortised using the straight-line method over their useful
lives after taking into account estimated residual value.
The useful lives and residual value are regularly reviewed
to determine the depreciation and amortisation costs
charged in each reporting period. The useful lives are
determined based on historical experience of similar
assets and the estimated technical changes. If there
is an indication that there has been a change in the
factors used to determine the depreciation, the rate of
depreciation is revised.

Provisions for guarantee losses
The Group makes reasonable estimate on costs
required to fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee
contracts when the Group computes the provisions of
guarantee losses. Such estimation is made based on the
available information as at the balance sheet date and is
determined by the Group’s practical experience, taking

into consideration of industry information and market
data.

BUAARETITIIR)

33 St AR (&)

(c)

(d)

IR Y5 £

AEBEZERETEENRELE
ErHRER - EBAAER
FHIRBERERITE NS
AR E HAEBI A AT AT (2 A 1
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HREy I B RN SHAX R  FERT AT
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F 38 1 A B I A R A B g 2

HEE - WA B BERARAEEN
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33 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(e) Tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and
tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax credits can be utilised, management’s
judgement is required to assess the probability of
future taxable profits. Management’s assessment is
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax assets
are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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34 IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 34 NEZE2014F12A831HILLEE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EEMERKENNIEET  #F
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE EARBEBEHNTE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

BHELNSEMBEHRENTIELR &5
HMASEEMZIENEE20145F
12A31B L FERARERERILER
EERET AW AR KNS RT RFTAER -

Up to the date of issue of the Financial Statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments, and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2014 and which have not been adopted in the Financial
Statements. These include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
AT B Bk bATE

FIa st B AR

Amendments to HKAS 19, EEGTEAFE195 (BFTAK) - 1 July 2014
Defined benefit plans: HEZ il 2 20147 A 1H
Employee contribution 1E S (=%

Annual improvement to BEUBREENFE 1 July 2014
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle P#E2010-201 24 & HARE 20147 H1H
Annual improvement to ARV BREERFE 1 July 2014
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle 243#2011-20134 Z HARE 2014%7H1H

Amendments to HKFRS 11,

Accounting for acquisition of
interests in joint operations

FEMGREERF115R
(BRIAR) - AERHE

1 January 2016
201651 H1H

Amendments to HKAS 16 and BEEGEERFE165 R 1 January 2016

HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of

depreciation and amortisation

HKFRS 15, Revenue from
contracts with customers

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

FE 3B BBHITHNANEIHEY
AEXIA

BRP IS ERF 1555 -
RAEEFARBEA

BRP B HREEREI -
EMTA

20161 H1H

1 January 2017
2017%1A1H

1 January 2018
201851 H1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what

the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the

period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

Group’s results of operations and financial position.

AEEEZEFHELSERIBAEE
BHMBEREEINRY T RABARENF
B-E5 AEEABRMZFE
7] BRI MR T AR R HARH
MR ERERMTHINOBREATE
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35 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to current year’s presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2014.

36 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

According to the resolution of the Company’s board of
directors meeting on 27 March 2015, the details of dividends
appropriation is set out in Note 27 (b).

Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd.
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